3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


€3FiISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIF

National Fish Habitat Board Meeting

February 26" and 27", 2013
Draft Agenda

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Headquarters, Room 530

4401 North Fairfax Drive, Arlington, VA

[This meeting will be available by conference call and web-ex.

See instructions below under “additional information”]

Tuesday, February 26™ (8:30AM — 5:15PM EST)

8:30-8:45

8:45-9:15

9:15-10:00

10:00-10:15

10:15-10:45

10:45-11:15

11:15-12:00

12:00-1:30

Welcome and Introductions

Housekeeping
Desired outcomes:

e Board action to approve draft agenda and draft minutes.

e Board review of future meeting schedules.

501(c)(3)

Desired outcome:
¢ Informational update on establishing the Board as a
501(c(3)).

Break

Minimum Benchmark Set of Fish Habitat Conservation

Project Prioritization Criteria

Desired outcome:

e Board action to approve the recommended minimum
benchmark set of fish habitat conservation project
prioritization criteria.

FHP Performance Evaluation

Desired outcome:

e Board action to approve the recommended FHP
performance evaluation process and procedures.

FHP Board Representation

Desired outcome:

e Board action to modify the charter to establish a FHP
seat on the Board.

Lunch

Tab 1a
Tab 1b

NA

Tab 2

Tab 3

Tab 4

Steve Perry (Board
Vice-Chair/NEAFWA

Steve Perry (Board
Vice-Chair/NEAFWA)

Matt Menashes
(Board Staff/AFWA)

Steve Perry (Board
Vice-Chair/NEAFWA)

Steve Perry (Board
Vice-Chair/NEAFWA)

Ron Regan (Board
Member/AFWA)





E3FiSH HABITAT

1:30-2:00

2:00-2:15

2:15-2:45

2:45-3:15

3:15-3:30

3:30-4:15

4:15-4:45

4:45-5:15

USFWS Proposed FHP Funding Allocation

Desired outcome:

¢ Informational update on the USFWS pending decision
on allocating project funds to FHPs.

e Board discussion on future communications associated
with this issue.

FHP Organizational Development Project Update

Desired outcome:

e Informational update on the Portland FHP training and
related efforts

FHP Presentation: Midwest Glacial Lakes Partnership
Desired outcome:
¢ Informational update

FHP Presentation: Matanuska-Susitnha Basin Salmon Habitat

Partnership
Desired outcome:

e Informational update

Break

Draft conservation strategies

Desired outcome:

¢ Informational update on draft strategies
e Board discussion on desired next steps.

GoV't affairs update

Desired outcome:

e Informational update on a strategy for the new
Congressional session.

Science and Data Committee Report

Desired outcome:

¢ Informational update on the effectiveness measure
group membership; science and data committee
membership; the upgraded data system; and the FHP
assessment survey.

Tab 5

Tab 6

NA

Tab 7a
Tab 7b
Tab 7c
Tab 7d

NA

Tab 8

Jeff Underwood
(Board
Member/USFWS)
Steve Perry (Board
Vice-Chair/ NEAFWA)

Tom Busiahn (Board
Staff/USFWS)

Matt Menashes
(Board Staff/AFWA)

Katie Haws (MGLP
Coordinator-
Minnesota
Department of
Natural Resources)

Sue Rodman (Alaska
Department of Fish
and Game)

Mike Stone (Board
Member/Western
Association of Fish
and Wildlife
Agencies)

Gordon Robertson
(Board member/-
ASA)/ Steve Moyer
(Board
member/Trout
Unlimited)

Gary Whelan (Board
Staff -Michigan
Department of
Natural Resources)
/Andrea Ostroff
(Board Staff - U.S.
Geological Survey)





€3FiISH HABITAT

6:00

PARTNERSHIF

Social hour location — Bailey’s Pub, Ballston Common Mall,

4238 Wilson Blvd, Arlington, VA

Wednesday, February 27th

8:30-9:30

9:30-10:30

Communications Committee Report:

Desired outcome:

Informational update on progress towards
communications priority projects.

Informational update on communication strategy
review.

Informational update on Hill briefing tools, to include

appropriate communication and methods for Hill visits.

Board discussion on desired next steps.

Federal agency reports under NFHP Secretarial MOU

Desired outcome:

Informational update on the Federal agency reports.
Board discussion on using the reports to elevate NFHP
among Federal agencies.

Board action to send a letter on the need and
importance of these reports to Federal agency
leadership.

Tab 9a
Tab 9b
Tab 9c

Tab 10a
Tab 10b
Tab 10c
Tab 10d
Tab 10e
Tab 10f
Tab 10g

Ryan Roberts (Board
Staff — AFWA)

Opening remarks:
Rebecca Wodder
(Senior Advisor to the
Secretary,
Department of the
Interior)

Terra Lederhouse
(NOAA Fisheries)

Stephanie Carman
(Bureau of Land
Management)

Amy Unthank (USDA
Forest Service)

Closing remarks:
Stan Moberly
(American Fisheries
Society)





€3FiISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIF

10:30-10:45 Break

10:45- 11:15 NOAA Recreational Fishing Engagement Initiative Tab 11
Desired outcome:
e Informational update on NOAA’s Recreational Fishing
Engagement Initiative, habitat connections, and
coordination possibilities.

11:15-12:00 Coordination among LCCs, JVs and FHPs Tab 12a
Desired outcome: Tab 12b

¢ Informational update on the development of Landscape Tab 12c

Conservation Cooperatives and how they are working Tab 12d

with Fish Habitat Partnerships.

e Board Action to approve the Executive Leadership Team
to designate a NFHP representative to the National LCC
Council.

Additional Information:
e Board members and staff contacts Tab 13
e Board member guide Tab 14

Conference call and Web-ex instructions:

Russ Dunn
(Recreational Fishing
Advisor to the NMFS
Assistant
Administrator)

Doug Austen (U.S.
Fish and Wildlife
Service)/ Steve Perry
(NEAFWA)

Note: Board members who wish to participate by conference call must get prior approval from the Chair.

Call in: 866-707-9322 / participant passcode 3163558.
Go join the online meeting :

1. Go to attp://www.mymeetings.com/nc/join.php?sigkey =mymeetings&i=749207290&p =habitat&t=c

2. Enter your name and email address.

3. Enter the meeting password: habitat

4. Click "Join Now".

5. Follow the instructions that appear on your screen.



http://www.mymeetings.com/nc/join.php?sigKey=mymeetings&i=749207290&p=habitat&t=c



		Untitled




National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab la

X3IFISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Draft National Fish Habitat Board Conference Call Summary: January 16,

2013
Members Present:
Kelly Hepler, Chair (ADF&G) Bob Mahood (SAFMC)
Steve Perry, Vice Chair ( NH FGD/ NEAFWA) Stan Moberly (AFS)
Stan Allen (PSMFC) - for Randy Fisher Steve Moyer (TU) — for Chris Wood
Mike Andrews (TNC) Sam Rauch (NOAA Fisheries)
Doug Boyd (SFBPC) Ron Regan (AFWA)
Jim Estes (FLFWCC) for Nick Wiley Gordon Robertson (ASA)
Brad Gentner (Gentner Consulting Group/CCA Mike Stone (WY GFD/WAFWA rep)
rep) Chris Savage (US FS) for Anne Zimmerman

Rowan Gould (US FWS)- for Dan Ashe
Chris Horton (CSF)

Members Absent:
Joe Larscheid, Fred Matt, Krystyna Wolniakowski

Motions Approved by Consensus:
e Agenda and October 16-17, 2012 Meeting Minutes: Approved with correction. Add Matt Menashes to
list of attendees.

e 2013 Board Priorities and Budget: Approved. Discussion of the Priorities and Budget included the
following points:

» Stan Moberly noted the importance of striving for measurable conservation results, and to
have these stated in plain English so that individuals can understand progress being made by
the Board and Partnerships. It was stated that this needs to be emphasized as a desired
outcome of the Board and that the Board should move in this direction.

» Per arequest by Ron Regan, staff confirmed the task in Priority M requiring $953,000 in
funding is not built into the budget. The Funding Committee will look into how these funding
needs can be met.

» Stan Moberly asked how the development of a national set of conservation strategies will
impact future budgets. This is unclear at this point, however it is expected the development of
these strategies will fold into other efforts being undertaken by the Board such as the
effectiveness measures working group.

Updates and Discussion:

e Steve Perry is retiring from NHF&G but will remain as the Board’s NEAFWA representative through
the February 2013 meeting.

e Gordon Roberson provided an overview of the fate of the Sportsman Bill in the 112" Congress and
potential strategies for the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act in the 113" Congress.

o Jeff Underwood provided comments on the allocation of FWS 2013 project funds to FHPs.
Discussions with the FWS Director need to take place, no decisions have been made, and if the Board
or NFHP community has ideas, the Service is willing to listen. The Service and Board members
recognized fiscal challenges, and some Board members suggested different options should be
considered by the Service to ensure an equitable result. This issue will be discussed in more detail
during the February Board meeting.

Action items:
e Board chair will talk with AFWA (Ron Regan) about filling upcoming Board vacancies.
e Keep America Fishing one-pager on the Sportsmen’s Package will be shared with the Board when the
meeting minutes are disseminated. (See: http://fishhabitat.org/news/national-fish-habitat-conservation-
act-included-2012-sportsmens-package)




http://fishhabitat.org/news/national-fish-habitat-conservation-act-included-2012-sportsmens-package

http://fishhabitat.org/news/national-fish-habitat-conservation-act-included-2012-sportsmens-package



National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab 1a
e The Board chair requested the congressional affairs team provide an update on the Sportsmen’s
Package future and a strategy for the 113" Congress at the February Board meeting.
e Tom Busiahn will share with Jeff Underwood a set of criteria developed by the Board for allocating
funds.
o Adiscussion of the Fish and Wildlife Service Fisheries program reorganization will be added to the
FWS project fund allocation discussion at the February Board meeting.
Future 2013 meetings:
e February 26" & 27" - Arlington, VA
e June 25" and 26" - Salt Lake City, UT
e  October - TBD
Board approved policy and/or technical documents:
e 2013 Board Priorities and Budget
Additional attendees:
Chris Meaney, NOAA Fisheries-HQ and Board Jeff Underwood, FWS- HQ
staff Doug Besler, EBTJV Steering Committee Chair
Tom Busiahn, FWS-HQ and Board staff Robin Knox, WNTI
Matt Menashes, AFWA Director of Ops and Board David Wigglesworth, FWS Alaska
Staff Libby Yranski, ASA
Andrea Ostroff, USGS, Co-chair, Science and Cindy Williams, FWS Southeast
Data Committee Christopher Estes, Chalkboard Enterprises LLC
Ryan Roberts, AFWA and Board Dan Shively, FWS Pacific Northwest
Communications Director Scott Roth, FWS Mountain-Prairie
Cecilia Lewis FWS HQ and Board Staff Callie McMunigal, FWS Northeast
Amy Unthank USFS Board Staff







E3FISH HABITAT

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tablb
Meetings of the National Fish Habitat Board 2006-2012
Year Date Location Facility
1 | 2006 | September 22 Aspen, Colorado Hotel
2 November 16 Washington, DC Hall of States
3 | 2007 | January 16 Teleconference
4 March 1-2 Washington, DC Environmental Protection Agency
5 June 6-7 Washington, DC Commerce Department
6 October 2-3 Arlington, VA Hotel
7 | 2008 | February 20-21 | St. Petersburg, FL | Tampa Bay Watch
8 May 13-14 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy
9 October 7-8 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy
10 | 2009 | March 4-5 Harrisburg, PA Pennsylvania Fish & Boat Commission
11 June 25, 2009 Leesburg, VA National Conference Center
12 October 7-8 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy
13 | 2010 | January 15 Teleconference
14 March 3-4 Memphis, TN Ducks Unlimited
15 June 9-10 Silver Spring, MD NOAA headquarters
16 August 25 Teleconference
17 October 12-14 Portland, OR Columbia River Intertribal Fish. Comm.
18 | 2011 | January 13 Teleconference
19 March 11 Teleconference
20 April 12-13 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy
21 July 26-27 Madison, WI Hotel
22 October 19-20 Albuguerque, NM FWS Regional Office
23 | 2012 | January 12 Teleconference
24 March 1 Teleconference
25 April 17-18 Arlington, VA The Nature Conservancy
26 July 10-11 Portland, ME Hotel
27 October 16-17 Ridgedale, MO Big Cedar Lodge
28 | 2013 | January 16 teleconference
29 February 26-27 | Arlington, VA FWS headquarters
Proposed schedule of future Board meetings 2013-2014
Year Date Location Comments
30 | 2013 | June 25-26 Salt Lake City, UT Utah Division of Wildlife Resources
(Tue-Wed)
31 October 22-23 Southeast U.S. — FWS ARDs Oct 21-25
(Tue-Wed) location TBD
32 | 2014 | January 15 Teleconference
(Wed)
33 March 4-5 Washington DC TNC - get on the schedule
(Tue-Wed) area
34 June 25-26 West coast
(Wed-Thu) (California?)
35 October 21-22 Great Lakes FWS ARDs Oct 20-24 in Midwest

(Wed-Thu)

(Michigan?)

Region







E3FiSH HABITAT

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 2

Minimum Benchmark Set of Fish Habitat Conservation Project Prioritization Criteria
Recommended by the Partnership Committee

The minimum benchmark set of Fish Habitat Conservation Project prioritization criteria are
intended to ensure core tenets of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan are considered by Fish
Habitat Partnership when ranking projects for funding.

1. Direct linkages of project to specific Fish Habitat Partnership strategic plan/framework
priorities and/or National Fish Habitat Partnership action plan (2" edition)/priority
conservation strategies.

2. Project alignment/compatibility with other conservation plans (e.g. State Wildlife Plans;
Biological Opinions, Land Management Plans).

3. Project identification of specific measures of success and performance targets that are
observable and amenable to pre- and post-project monitoring.

4. Capabilities/experience of project proponents to complete what is proposed.

5. Well-defined budget linked to clear deliverables and outcomes.

6. Leveraging of funds.

7. Project protects aquatic habitat or addresses the causes and processes behind aquatic habitat
decline.

8. Project has an outreach/education component in the local community.






NATIONAL
'S-iFlSH HAQRIT:J[QI National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab3
Evaluating Fish Habitat Partnership Performance
Final Draft 1-25-13

Introduction

The National Fish Habitat Partnership is an unprecedented effort to build and support
partnerships that are strategically focused on fish habitat conservation. The National Fish Habitat
Action Plan (Action Plan) guides this initiative and establishes processes for bringing partners
together, challenging them to collaboratively advance strategic priorities, as well as measure and
report on the outcomes of their conservation actions. The geographic scope and focus on fish
habitat conservation distinguishes the National Fish Habitat Partnership from other more local
fish habitat initiatives.

To uphold the high standards set by the Action Plan, the National Fish Habitat Board (Board)
adopted a set of ten measures aimed at evaluating Fish Habitat Partnership performance levels
for core operational functions (i.e., coordination, scientific assessment, strategic planning, data
management, project administration, communications, and outreach). At its July 2012 meeting,
the Board voted to begin the first “formal” performance evaluation of Fish Habitat Partnerships
in January 2015, covering a 3-year period (2012-2014), and to repeat this process every 3 years
thereafter.

Performance Evaluation Process

Each Fish Habitat Partnership will submit a completed performance evaluation form by April 1,
2015. A Board-appointed team will assess each partnership’s responses to the ten measures and
rate their level of performance using a scale of 1 (low) to 4 (high). The performance evaluation
outcomes will be sent to each Fish Habitat Partnership for their review and response prior to
being finalized by the team.

Performance measures 1-5 are focused on fish habitat conservation projects, which are defined
as (a) approved actions taken for the conservation or management of aquatic habitat for fish and
other aquatic organisms; (b) the provision of technical assistance to states, Indian tribes, or local
communities to facilitate the development of strategies and priorities for aquatic habitat
conservation; and, (c) the obtaining of real property interest in lands or waters, including water
rights, if the obtaining of such interest is subject to terms and conditions that will ensure the real
property will be administered for the long-term conservation of such lands and waters and the
fish dependent thereon. Real property interest means any ownership interest in lands or a
building or an object that is permanently affixed to land.

Performance Evaluation Form Instructions

Please provide a complete description of the information requested for each performance
measure as the review team will rely on your responses when assessing your partnership’s level
of performance. The time period that is being covered by this performance evaluation is
calendar years 2012-2014.





NATIONAL
'S-iFlSH HAQRIT:J[QI National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab3
Fish Habitat Performance Evaluation Form

1. For calendar years 2012-2014, list the title of each of your partnership’s fish habitat
conservation projects that:

a. Used National Fish Habitat Action Plan (NFHAP) funding sources (e.g., US Fish &
Wildlife Service); or,

b. Your partnership developed and were funded by non-NFHAP sources; or,

c. Were neither funded by NFHAP sources nor developed by your partnership, but were
formerly endorsed by your partnership.

For each project listed, identify the project type (a, b, or c) as well as the specific FHP and/or
national conservation priority (i.e., geographic focus areas, habitat types, key stressors or
impairments) the project addresses.

The following information should be provided for each Fish Habitat Conservation Project:
o Year that the project was funded or endorsed

o Project title

o Project type

o Project location

o FHP conservation priority being addressed along with a narrative that details how it is
being addressed by the project

o National conservation priority being addressed along with a narrative that details how it
is being addressed by the project

o Why the project was endorsed by your FHP (if applicable)

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a. Less than 70% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focused on addressing FHP
and/or national conservation priorities (1 point).

b. 70% to 79% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focused on addressing FHP
and/or national conservation priorities (2 points).

c. 80% to 89% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focused on addressing FHP
and/or national conservation priorities (3 points).

d. 90% or more of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focused on addressing FHP
and/or national conservation priorities (4 points).





¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab3

2. Describe the effectiveness measures that are being used to track short- and long-term

progress toward achieving the expected conservation outcomes* for each fish habitat
conservation project listed under Performance Measure 1. (*Outcomes represent “a desired
future state” while outputs are “immediate project products.” Providing fish in a stream
unimpeded access to spawning habitat is a conservation outcome, whereas removing a
manmade barrier is a project output.)

The following information should be provided for each Fish Habitat Conservation Project:
o Project title

o Expected conservation outcome

o Effectiveness measure being used to track short-term progress

o Effectiveness measure being used to track long-term progress

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a.

b.

Less Fhan 70% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly used effectiveness measures

%‘_500;22'9% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly used effectiveness measures (2

gg;;)ti)). 89% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly used effectiveness measures (3
gg;;)tso;r. more of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly used effectiveness measures (4
points).





NATIONAL
'S-iFlSH HAQRIT:J[QI National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab3

3. Describe vulnerable fish habitat being protected or the causes of and processes influencing
fish habitat decline that are being addressed by each fish habitat conservation project listed
under Performance Measure 1.

The following information should be provided for each Fish Habitat Conservation Project:
o Project title
o Vulnerable fish habitat being protected

o Causes of and processes influencing fish habitat decline being addressed

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a. Less than 70% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focus on protecting vulnerable
fish habitats or addressing the causes/processes behind its decline (1 point).

b. 70% to 79% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focus on protecting vulnerable
fish habitats or addressing the causes/processes behind its decline (2 points).

c. 80% to 89% of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focus on protecting vulnerable
fish habitats or addressing the causes/processes behind its decline (3 points).

d. 90% or more of the fish habitat conservation projects clearly focus on protecting vulnerable
fish habitats or addressing the causes/processes behind its decline (4 points).





¥3FISH HABITAT

4.

PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab3

For the fish habitat conservation projects listed under Performance Measure 1, what is the

amount of NFHAP funds (i.e., US Fish and Wildlife Service NFHAP funds) allocated in

support of these projects, and what is the total amount of funding from all other sources?

The following information should be provided for each Fish Habitat Conservation Project:

o Project title

o Amount of NFHAP funds supporting the project

o Amount of other federal funds supporting the project

o Amount of non-federal funds supporting the project

o If pertinent, also include a description of how funding the project assisted with generating
additional sources of non-NFHAP funding that is being targeted towards your
partnership’s priorities. For example, using NFHAP funds for a fish habitat conservation

project that subsequently lead to a new funding source devoted to addressing one or more
of your priorities.

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a.

In aggregate, non-NFHAP funding (including the value of new sources of funding that were
generated by the project) for these fish habitat conservation projects was less than NFHAP
funding (1 point).

In aggregate, non-NFHAP funding (including the value of new sources of funding that were
generated by the project) for these fish habitat conservation projects was equal to or up to 1.5
times higher than NFHAP funding (2 points).

In aggregate, non-NFHAP funding (including the value of new sources of funding that were
generated by the project) for these fish habitat conservation projects was more than 1.5 and
up to 2.0 times higher than NFHAP (3 points).

In aggregate, non-NFHAP funding (including the value of new sources of funding that were
generated by the project) for these fish habitat conservation projects was more than 2.0 times
higher than NFHAP funding (4 points).





NATIONAL
'S-iFlSH HAQRIT:J[QI National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab3

5. Please provide a copy of the criteria your partnership uses to prioritize fish habitat
conservation projects for funding.

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a. Less than 70% of the Board’s minimum benchmark set of criteria are being used by the
partnership to prioritize fish habitat conservation projects for funding (1 point).

b. 70% to 79% of the Board’s minimum benchmark set of criteria are being used by the
partnership to prioritize fish habitat conservation projects for funding (2 points).

c. 80% to 89% of the Board’s minimum benchmark set of criteria are being used by the
partnership to prioritize fish habitat conservation projects for funding (3 points).

d. 90% or more of the Board’s minimum benchmark set of criteria are being used by the
partnership to prioritize fish habitat conservation projects for funding (4 points).





¥3FISH HABITAT

6.

PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab3

Describe the ways your partnership has engaged with neighboring/overlapping Fish Habitat
Partnerships and/or other regional natural resource conservation entities during the past three
years (2012-2014) and what these engagements produced for outcomes (e.g. reduced
redundancy, enhanced message delivery or access to a larger outreach audience, greater
geographic coverage).

The following information should be included in your response:

o Name of the Fish Habitat Partnership/regional natural resource conservation entity
engaged.

o Type of engagement activity or activities (building awareness, coordination,
collaboration) that occurred with each Fish Habitat Partnership/regional natural resource
conservation entity.

o The outcome achieved by each engagement activity.

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure and the score will be cumulative, with each type of outcome (a-d)
listed below being worth 1 point. The maximum number of 4 points will be assigned if a Fish
Habitat Partnership has achieved outcomes for all four criteria.

a.

b.

C.

d.

The engagement outcomes with neighboring/overlapping FHPs and/or other regional natural
resource conservation entities improved the capacity for building awareness (1 point).

The engagement outcomes with neighboring/overlapping FHPs and/or other regional natural
resource conservation entities improved the coordination of mutually beneficial activities (1
point).

The engagement outcomes with neighboring/overlapping FHPs and/or other regional natural
resource conservation entities included generating collaboration that improved the delivery of
a conservation action (1 point).

The engagement outcomes with neighboring/overlapping FHPs and/or other regional natural
resource conservation entities increased the geographic scale of a conservation action (1
point).





¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab3

7. Describe how your partnership uses resource condition assessment and/or analysis results to
determine your conservation priorities and to identify the actions they require.

The following information should be included in your response:

o Title of the resource condition assessment(s) and/or analysis(es) used by your partnership
along with the date(s) it (they) were completed.

o A listing of the conservation priorities, and the actions they require, determined by the
resource condition assessment and/or analysis results.

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a. The partnership has not used resource condition assessment and/or analysis results to assist
with determining their conservation priorities and identifying the actions they require (1
point).

b. The partnership has used resource condition assessment and/or analysis results to assist with
either determining their conservation priorities or identifying the actions they require (2
points).

c. The partnership has used resource condition assessment and/or analysis results to assist with
determining both their conservation priorities and identifying the actions they require (3
points).

d. The partnership has further refined their conservation priorities and/or the actions they
require through newly acquired resource condition assessment and/or analysis results (4
points).





NATIONAL
'S-iFlSH HAQRIT:J[QI National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab3

8. Describe your partnership’s outreach activities aimed at: 1) sharing information about your
strategic priorities (i.e., geographic focus areas, habitat types, key stressors or impairments);
2) building broader visibility among local and regional partners; 3) tailoring events to garner
media coverage; and 4) strengthening relationships with policy-makers.

The Performance Review Team will use the outreach categories listed below to guide its
assessment of performance for this measure. Fish Habitat Partnerships whose activities includes
only one of these categories will receive 1 point; use of two categories will receive 2 points; use
of three categories will receive 3 points; and, use of all four categories will receive 4 points.

a. The partnership’s outreach activities were limited to information sharing.

b. The partnership’s outreach activities included building broader visibility among local and
regional partners.

c. The partnership’s outreach activities included events to garner media coverage.

d. The partnership’s outreach activities included strengthening relationships with policy-
makers.





¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab3

Describe the ways your partnership coordinated its aquatic resource data and regional
assessment information with the NFHP Science and Data Committee during the past 3 years
(2012-2014).

The following information/documents should be included in your response:

o The regional data sets and/or conservation outcomes you provided for integration into the
NFHP National Assessment.

o Documents your partnership produced that provide details about the effectiveness of the
conservation outcomes supported by your partnership.

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a.

b.

C.

d.

The partnership’s efforts to facilitate information exchange with the NFHP Science and Data
Committee were minimal (1 point).

The partnership facilitated information exchange with the NFHP Science and Data
Committee by providing either regional data sets or conservation outcomes for integration
into the NFHP National Assessment (2 points).

The partnership facilitated information exchange with the NFHP Science and Data
Committee by providing regional data sets and conservation outcomes for integration into the
NFHP National Assessment (3 points).

The partnership facilitated information exchange with the NFHP Science and Data
Committee by providing regional data sets and conservation outcomes for integration into the
NFHP National Assessment, and produced documents that provide details about the
effectiveness of the conservation actions supported by the partnership (4 points).

10





NATIONAL
'S-iFlSH HAQRIT:J[QI National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab3

10. List your partnership’s conservation priorities (i.e., geographic focus areas, habitat types, key
stressors or impairments) and describe the progress that has been made toward achieving
these priorities during the past 3 years (2012-2014).

The following information should be included in your response:
o Separate listings for short-term and long-term conservation priorities.
o Target dates for achieving each conservation priority.

o Current status of achieving each conservation priority by its target date (i.e. ahead of
schedule, on schedule, behind schedule).

o Efforts underway within the partnership that are focused on addressing each conservation
priority.

The Performance Review Team will use the criteria listed below to guide its assessment of
performance for this measure.

a. Less than 50% of the partnership’s conservation priorities are on track for achievement by
their target dates (1 point).

b. 50% to 69% of the partnership’s conservation priorities are on track for achievement by their
target dates (2 points).

c. 70% to 89% of the partnership’s conservation priorities are on track for achievement by their
target dates (3 points).

d. 90% or more of the partnership’s conservation priorities are on track for achievement by their
target dates (4 points).

11






NATIONAL National Fish Habitat Board
3 HABITAT Februnty 26,37, 2013

PARTNERSHIP
Tab 4

Title: Fish Habitat Partnership Membership on the National Fish Habitat Board

Desired outcome: Board action on establishing a representative of Fish Habitat Partnerships
(FHPs) as a Board member.

Background: The Board has had several discussions about expanding its membership to include
corporate/business representatives. The concept of providing FHPs with formal representation
on the Board arose after the July 2012 Board Meeting discussions, as they represent diverse
groups of public and private partners that are focused on conserving important fish habitat, and
as primary work units, FHPs play an essential role in implementing the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan.

Board Charter amendment options: If the Board votes to approve having a representative of
Fish Habitat Partnerships as a member of the National Fish Habitat Board, there are several

amendments to consider with regards to the Board’s Charter.

Amendment Proposal 1

Amend Section 111 B 5 to read as follows: The National Fish and Wildlife Foundation, and the
American Fisheries Society, and the Fish Habitat Partnerships each shall nominate a
representative for approval by the ELT.

Board adoption of amendment proposal 1 would then require a second amendment consisting of
one of the following two options (2a or 2b)

Amendment Proposal 2a

Amend Section 111 B 1 to read as follows: Members--The Board shall consist of up to 22 23
members.

OR
Amendment Proposal 2b

Amend Section 111 B 3 to read as follows: Federal Government Representatives--The Board
shall include up to five four representatives. (Note: There are currently three federal
government representatives on the Board.)






NATIONAL National Fish Habitat Board
3 HABITAT Februnty 26,37, 2013

PARTNERSHIP
Tab 4

Partnership Committee Feedback

The concept of having a representative of FHPs as a Board member and possibly establishing a
FHP Network that could undertake the nomination process (as well as possibly provide a forum
for facilitating stronger cooperation and collaboration among FHPs; serve as a conduit for
providing strategic guidance towards achieving common FHP objectives; and, address issues of
mutual FHP concern) was put forward to the Partnership Committee for initial feedback, which
resulted in the following comments from its members:

o | like the idea of having a FHP Board member. But would they be voting or non-voting
Board member?

o The idea of a FHP Network seems redundant to having a Partnerships Committee which
ostensibly is around to accomplish implementing the Action Plan and some "administrative"
tasks at the request of the Board. If you expand the committee to include all partnerships and
parse the work into sub-committees, it would be less confusing to the outside world than
having a FHP Network and a Partnership Committee. The Partnership Committee seems to
be already slated to address the issues of FHP coordination, common FHP objectives and
other issues of concern as they come up.

o Since there is a mix of individual FHP leadership amongst state, federal and private persons,
and some of those have restrictions on how they can sit on a policy-making Board, it may
limit the pool of applicants so to speak, for the FHP Board representative.

o The FHP Network and having a board member from FHPs seems like a good approach. |
agree that we probably do not need a Partnership Committee and an FHP Network. In
addition to the limited pool of applicants, another challenge is it could be difficult for one
person to represent all FHPs due to the differences in their size and scope. However, I think
having someone participate on the Board who is engaged with day-to-day operations of an
FHP would be valuable.

o One item that | would like to hear others thoughts on is adding another seat to an already
large Board. There has been discussion in the past about adding industry members to the
Board, and | would not want the FHP seat to displace a possible industry representative.
FHPs have opportunities to communicate with Board members, and most FHPs have at least
one Board member who has a relationship with the FHP. | think it would be valuable for an
FHP representative to be included in the Board deliberations from a seat at the Board table,
as opposed to commenting from the audience. That is more important to me than having a





NATIONAL National Fish Habitat Board
3 HABITAT Februnty 26,37, 2013

PARTNERSHIP
Tab 4

voting Board member. A designated FHP representative or non-voting member (in lieu of a
voting member) could help bring the FHP perspective to the Board without adding another
member or displacing a potential industry seat.

o ACFHP leadership agree with having an FHP seat on the Board, and suggest that the Board
consider having an eastern seat and a western seat to help address the unique
perspectives/challenges of each FHP. ACFHP considers anything to facilitate interaction
between FHPs and the Board a good thing, including having more FHP representatives at
meetings and participating in the discussions, even if they are not voting members.

o ACFHP has some concern with the time, resources, and travel that would be expected of the
FHP network and recommends linking it to existing infrastructure such as the existing
bimonthly calls with all of the FHPs or having it supplant existing groups (such as the
Partnership Committee, as you suggested in an earlier email).

o ACFHP also agrees with the suggestion that a designated FHP representative or non-voting
member (in lieu of a voting member) could help bring the FHP perspective to the Board
without adding another member or displacing a potential industry seat (and think it could
also apply for two FHP seats, eastern and western).

o It’s unclear what outcome or deliverable the Board seeks to achieve by providing one FHP
seat on the Board;

o For one FHP coordinator/representative to truly represent the interests of all FHPs, a great
deal of coordination and communication will need to occur. Given the lack of resources that
currently exist to fund either FHP coordinators or FHP programs/projects, it doesn’t seem
feasible to add this type of workload to one FHP representative.

o If the goal is to engage the FHPs more directly into the operations of NFHP, a more effective
approach might be quarterly conference calls with 4 FHPs and the Board to more directly
interface with the Board to share information, and discuss challenges, opportunities, and
perspectives.






EIFISH HABITAT

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 5

Allocation of funds for projects under the National Fish Habitat Action Plan

Summary
In FY 2013 the Fish and Wildlife Service is considering adoption of a formula-based approach to

allocate funds for projects that address priorities of Fish Habitat Partnerships. The formula
would be phased in from 2013 to 2015, and would result in significant changes in funds for some
FHPs.

Background
In 2006, the National Fish Habitat Action Plan was approved, and the FWS Fisheries Program

received its first appropriation of $1 million for NFHAP. The appropriation grew to $7.1 million
in FY 2012. The 2013 appropriation is expected to be similar to 2012.

Fiscal Year President’s Request Appropriated

($ millions) ($ millions)
2006 - 0.985
2007 2.985 2.985
2008 5.235 5.153
2009 5.153 5.153
2010 7.153 7.153
2011 7.153 7.153
2012 7.153 7.142
2013 7.142 -

Since 2007, the Service has focused its funds to meet national, regional, and local needs.

e National needs include FWS Headquarters staff and support for activities of the National
Fish Habitat Board.

e Regional needs include FWS Regional and field office staff and support for activities of Fish
Habitat Partnerships.

e Local needs include habitat restoration and assessment projects that address priorities of
FHPs.

Funds for national staff and regional needs are in the base budgets of the Headquarters and
Regional offices, to provide year-to-year consistency and capacity. In FY 2012 the base funds
totaled $3,351,314. Funds for Board activities and local projects are flexible, and can be re-
allocated to meet changing needs of Fish Habitat Partnerships and the Board. In FY 2012 the
flexible funds totaled $3,617,309, of which $300,000 was allocated to Board activities.

In 2009 the Service approved a policy to guide how NFHAP funds are used, accessible at
(http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fwl.html). The policy calls for the Director to allocate available
project funds each year in October. Traditionally the Director’s decision is based on a consensus
recommendation from the Fisheries Management Team (FMT, Fisheries Assistant Regional
Directors and Headquarters program leaders).




http://www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.html



¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 5

The FMT has struggled to achieve consensus on a recommendation to the Director for several

reasons.

e The FHPs vary widely in size and strategic focus.

e FWS Regions and their partners took divergent approaches in the development of FHPs.

e The options for allocating funds are diverse, including variations of formula, competition,
GI1S-based, and arbitrary methods.

e The number of FHPs approved by the National Fish Habitat Board has grown faster than the
funds available for projects (see charts below).

Fish Habitat Partnerships Project Funds (millions)

20 4

10 2 -

0 - 0 -
O N O A ANM O N0 OO O 1 AN N
O OO O 1 v o O O O O I 1 «—
OO OO0 OO0 Oo O O O O O O O O
NANNNNANANAN N NN NNNNAN

Pending decision

In FY 2013 the Fish and Wildlife Service is considering adoption of a formula-based approach to
allocate funds for projects that address priorities of Fish Habitat Partnerships. The formula
would be phased in from 2013 to 2015, and would result in significant changes in funds for some
FHPs. A minimum of $90,000 would be allocated to each FHP.

The formula 1s a modification of that used by the Service’s Sport Fish Restoration program for
allocating funds to States. The “modified Sport Fish Restoration” method uses human
population and land & water area as input variables. The formula accounts for the geographic
overlap of FHPs within FWS Regions, favoring FHPs that do not overlap. A full description of
the computations can be provided on request.

FWS has also decided not to provide project funds for FHPs approved by the Board after
December 2012, until such time as additional funds become available under NFHP.

The table on the next page shows the actual allocation of funds to FHPs since 2006 and the
projected allocation for 2013-2015 if the formula-based approach is adopted. The projections for
2013-2015 assume total available funds of $3.3 million. Actual funds may be different. At the





National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 5

time of this writing, Congress has not appropriated a full year budget for government agencies,
and may enact across-the-board budget cuts that would affect NFHP project funds.

For more information:
Tom Busiahn, FWS Coordinator, National Fish Habitat Partnership
Tom busiahn@fws.qgov, 703-358-2056




mailto:Tom_busiahn@fws.gov



£¥IFISH HABITA

PARTNERSHF

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab 5
Allocation of project funds to Fish Habitat Partnerships
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
actual actual actual actual actual actual actual projected | projected | projected

Demonstration projects - Candidate FHPs 600,000

Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership 221,625 440,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 556,800 541,497 547,097 552,697
Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture 197,000 440,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 556,800 408,959 276,904 144,849
Western Native Trout Initiative 197,000 440,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 556,800 520,100 503,477 486,854
Driftless Area Restoration Effort 98,500 220,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 278,400 210,191 150,095 90,000
Mat-Su Basin Salmon Habitat Partnership 98,500 220,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 278,400 210,191 150,095 90,000
SW Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 125,689 156,229 186,770
Desert Fish Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 157,978 232,054 306,130
Midwest Glacial Lakes Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 105,339 124,745 144,151
Hawaii Fish Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 161,282 238,790 316,298
Ohio River Basin Fish Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,657 91,314
Reservoir Fisheries Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
Great Lakes Basin FHP 90,000 90,000 90,000 92,837 99,258 105,678
Great Plains Fish Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 131,917 178,927 225,936
Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
California Fish Passage Forum 41,300 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
Fishers & Farmers Partnership 41,300 90,000 94,021 101,672 109,323
Pacific Marine & Estuarine Partnership 90,000 90,000 90,000
TOTAL $812,625 | $1.760M | $3.246 M | $2.746 M | $3.556 M | $3.638M | $3.317M | $3.3M $3.3 M $3.3 M







NATIONAL National Fish Habitat Board
¥3IFISH HABITAT s

PARTNERSHIP Tab 6

Briefing for the Board: Fish Habitat Partnership Excellence Project
National FHP Workshop, January 29-31, 2013

Background

¢ In 2011, the Board submitted a proposal for a Multistate Conservation Grant to support
organizational development training for Fish Habitat Partnerships to increase
capacity. The proposal was funded, with AFWA as the fiscal agent.

e In 2012, AFWA issued a Request for Proposals for a training contractor. River Network
was selected, taking advantage of their organizational development expertise.

e The project calls for a face-to-face 2-1/2 day workshop, an online discussion forum for
participants, and 3-6 additional webinars on topics that address the needs of all FHPs.

The Workshop

e The Fish Habitat Partnership workshop was held on January 29-31, 2013 in Portland,
Oregon. This was the first time FHPs had come together nationally since 2009.

e Thirty-three people from FHPs attended in addition to Board staff and River Network
trainers. Seventeen of 18 recognized FHPs were represented, as well as the candidate
Southeast Alaska FHP.

¢ Organizational development training occupied 2-1/2 days. The last afternoon was
sponsored by the Board’s Partnership Committee, focused on developing FHP strategic
priorities and measuring progress.

e Workshop sessions included:

o Vision and goals: overcoming barriers to success
Communicating our impact: messages and engagement opportunities
Models and strategies for engagement: organizational models
Getting the money we need: tapping private sector philanthropy
Getting it done: FHP leadership roles and responsibilities
Creating a learning network
o Creating change
e Each FHP completed an organizational development plan, and identified leadership
roles, target audiences, conditions necessary for change, and possible funding sources.
e Topics were identified for follow-through by the peer learning network, and individuals
signed up to lead or patrticipate for the various topics.

O O O O O

Outcomes of the Workshop
o The workshop was highly successful:
o A sense of commonality and solidarity was established among the FHPs.
o Participants received basic organizational training, and shared their own
successes and mistakes.
o FHPs recognized the importance and the potential of raising funds from private
sources.
o Topics of broad interest were identified for future training and peer networking.
o Feedback from participants was very favorable.
¢ River Network staff will initiate follow-through and planning for future webinars.
o Attendees strongly supported having regular face-to-face meetings of FHP coordinators
in the future.

Questions? Contact Matt Menashes (mattm@fishwildlife.org, 202-624-3602) or Tom Busiahn
(tom_busiahn@fws.gov, 703-358-2056)




mailto:mattm@fishwildlife.org

mailto:tom_busiahn@fws.gov




NATIONAL
$3IFISH HABITAT N
PARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board
February, 2013 Meeting

Tab 7a

Title: National Conservation Strategies
Desired outcome: Board action on a set of national conservation strategies.

Background: At its April 2012 Meeting, the Board established a Habitat Conservation
Committee to address the following priority issue:

e Establish a consensus set of national conservation strategies as a framework to guide future
actions and investment by the Fish Habitat Partnerships (Action Plan Objective 2).

A progress report on the HCC time frame and approach was presented at the October, 2012
Board meeting. Since then, several conservation strategy drafts have been reviewed and refined
through input from the diverse array of committee members (attached).

Proposed national conservation strategies are attached for Board consideration. A set of
Questions and Answers is provided to provide further explanation and address likely questions.






gii%i?h HABITAT National Fish Habitat Board

PARTNERSHIP
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 7b

National Conservation Strategies
HCC_DRAFT_012213

Introduction

National conservation strategies are intended as a framework to guide future actions and
investment by the FHPs while allowing the FHPs to develop meaningful goals and
approaches to conserve fish habitat. By establishing and communicating a national
framework to partners, these strategies emphasize the need to focus on the process-level
issues, not just the symptoms, to reverse the decline in fisheries and aquatic resources by
directly addressing the contributing factors. This enhances progress toward the National
Fish Habitat Partnership mission to protect, restore, and enhance the nation’s fish and
aquatic communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation and
improve the quality of life for the American people.

FHPs are encouraged to incorporate the concepts of these conservation strategies into
their strategic planning and development of site specific goals and approaches to achieve
results at a system level. Melding of the FHPs approaches with the national conservation
strategies will assist partners to focus on the common factors responsible for most of the
fisheries and habitat problems occurring today, namely: loss of connectivity, hydrologic
alteration, water quality alteration, and alteration of aquatic communities.

Variability among FHPs and local conditions is recognized in the development of
conservation strategies. FHPs will determine the extent to which each conservation
strategy fits their scope and resources. Goals and approaches for one FHP may not fit
conditions for another. Example actions listed under each conservation strategy are not
meant to be exhaustive or prescriptive, but to demonstrate types of actions that may be
undertaken.

While not identified as a specific conservation strategy, it is incumbent upon the FHPs to
assess the effectiveness of actions taken to protect, restore, and enhance habitats that
support fish and aquatic communities. Through evaluation of specific actions taken to
address those factors identified as responsible in the loss of fisheries habitats, FHPs can
focus and foster implementation of efforts of proven effectiveness.

The NFHP Board in cooperation with the FHPs and their work plans will develop a set of
meaningful and measurable habitat targets for each of the listed conservation strategies.
Effectiveness reporting measured against these targets in the annual Board progress
reports will, over time, provide a meaningful description of progress for the public.
Future revisions of the conservation strategies and habitat targets will recognize that
habitat conservation is a long term endeavor.

Partnerships, working relationships, planning, and funding are prerequisites to
implementation of any conservation measure and are therefore not included as
conservation strategies.





¥3FISH HABITAT

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 7b

PARTNERSHIP

Conservation Strateqgies

1. Protect intact and healthy waters.

Example actions:

@)
©)

O O O O O O O

Develop inventories and data support systems for priority waters.
Participate in land and water use planning and decisions at all geographic
and governmental levels to protect aquatic values.

Incorporate climate change into development of land and water use plans.
Acquire land, water rights or easements.

Implement management actions to maintain habitat values.

Prevent direct habitat alteration.

Avoid aquatic community alteration.

Implement best management practices to minimize habitat alteration.
Implement state and regional aquatic invasive species plans.

2. Restore hydrologic conditions for fish.

Example actions:

@)
©)

o O O O

o O

o

Restore natural variability in river and stream flows.

Restore natural variability in estuary and natural lake surface water
elevations.

Secure favorable conditions for reservoirs.

Secure favorable operating agreements on regulated systems.
Acquire water rights for streams, lakes and reservoirs.

Work with water users to incorporate fish habitat values into water
management.

Reconnect rivers to floodplains.

Restore ground and surface water hydrologic connections.

Manage vegetation to restore stream flow.

3. Reconnect fragmented fish habitats.

Example actions:

o

O

Identify access impairments to spawning, nursery, rearing and refugia
areas.

Facilitate fish passage through removal of physical barriers.

Restore concrete stream channels to natural form and structure.
Incorporate fish friendly designs in construction and rehabilitation of
water diversion structures.

Eliminate chemical/water quality barriers.

Restore habitat conditions (physical, temperature, lack of water, etc.) in
degraded reaches that fragment systems.

Daylight currently buried stream segments.





{ii‘é\igh HABITAT National Fish Habitat Board

PARTNERSHIP
February 26-27, 2013

Tab 7b

4. Restore water quality.

Example Actions:

©)
@)

O O O O

Identify sources of watershed degradation.

Control excessive rates of sedimentation, phosphorus, nitrogen and toxic
inputs to aquatic systems.

Control thermal impairments.

Control sources of pollutants.

Control surface runoff through land use practices.

Develop or maintain functioning wetlands and vegetation buffers.






giﬁitgh HABITAT National Fish Habitat Board

PARTNERSHIP February 26-27, 2013
Tab 7c

CS Q&A_012213
Conservation Strategies Q&A

Q 1: Why don’t the conservation strategies include numeric targets, strategic priorities,
effectiveness measures, development of coalitions/support and communication?

A 1: Ongoing efforts are underway for each of these needs (see NFHAP objectives 1, 2-5
and Board Work Plan for 2013). We recognized the conservation strategies are
interrelated with the numerous ongoing activities related to other NFHAP objectives, so
an effort was made to complement and provide consistency with these efforts while
avoiding overlap and redundancy. For example, a scheduled FHP Excellence Workshop
will address strategic prioritization and tracking progress. Likewise, evaluation measures
are best developed through integration of the conservation strategies into ongoing efforts
for other NFHAP objectives, vs. stand alone measures outside the context of FHP
strategic plans and project prioritization.

Q 2: How do these broad conservation strategies unite us?

A 2: The conservation strategies provide common national focus by tying them to the
common factors identified by the Science and Data Committee’s work (NFHAP,
Appendix 5). Additionally, these broad conservation strategies have a better chance of
providing unification than will a wide array of detailed, more specific strategies.
Example actions are listed to portray some of the diverse approaches available for
addressing the broader conservation strategies. All of the FHP’s should be able to
incorporate one or more of the conservation strategies into their planning and strategic
priorities.

Q 3: How are these conservation strategies distinguished from other efforts directed at
similar habitat factors?

A 3: The conservation strategies are intended to assist in providing a national focus on
the main factors responsible for the fish habitat problems occurring today. While
knowledge of these factors and strategies are widespread, only NFHP offers the ability to
generate coordinated national attention to these needs. In addition, linkages to these
conservation strategies can assist coordination with federal Interior, Agriculture and
Commerce agencies to implement the NFHAP.

Q 4: 1s my FHP expected to address all the conservation strategies and implement all of
the example actions?





¥3FISH HABITAT

EARTNERSHIP National Fish Habitat Board

February 26-27, 2013
Tab 7c

A 4: No, the great differences and unique characteristics among the 18 FHP’s are
recognized. The conservation strategies address a NFHP Board role to provide national
leadership to conserve fish habitats while supporting FHP’s and fostering new efforts.
We expect, however, that each FHP will find identity with one or more of the
conservation strategies and example actions. While not exhaustive or prescriptive, the
example actions give a flavor for the types of actions that address the broad strategy
statements. These examples will also stimulate development of additional actions
meaningful for individual FHP’s.

Q 5: Aren’t the conservation strategies so broad that almost any type of fish habitat
conservation project fits within one of them?

A 5: No, many types of projects that might be portrayed under the umbrella of fish
habitat conservation do not fit. For example, structures designed to simply attract fish do
not qualify. Projects proposed primarily for other purposes that seek to capture fisheries
community support but fail to address these strategies do not qualify.






¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Stan Allen
Mike Andrews
Jeff Boxrucker
Emily Greene
Kelly Hepler
Robin Knox
Christopher Meaney
Steve Perry
Scott Robinson
Doug Stang
Mike Stone

Gary Whelan

NFHB Habitat Conservation Committee

PSMFC — Board

TNC — Board

Reservoir FHP

Atlantic Coastal FHP

AK DFG - Board Chair

WNTI FHP

NOAA - Board Staff

NEAFWA - Board — Vice-chair

SARP FHP

EBTJV FHP

WAFWA — Board — HCC Chair

Science & Data Committee — Co-chair

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 7d






National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 8a

NATIONAL FISH HABITAT PARTNERSHIP ASSESSMENT INVENTORY
Background

At the July 2012 NFH Board meeting, the Board approved the Science and Data Committee’s 2015
Assessment Strategy that included an inventory of the NFHPs assessment work. At the October 2012
NFH Board meeting, the Science and Data Committee reported on the 2013 workplan, including a
description of the methods and tools for conducting the inventory, which the Board supported. The Board
has also directed the Science and Data Committee to begin reviewing FHP assessment products and
providing technical feedback to the FHPs on these products.

In additional to Board direction, the NFHP Data System 2.0 released in December 2012 requires
information from the FHPs on their assessment work and data products to ensure its full operability. The
NFHP Data System is the primary mechanism that will be used to collect, describe, and deliver data and
scientific products of the NFHP. The information provided from this questionnaire along with additional
expertise and support being provided through USGS will aid the FHPs with underlying data management
activities and use of related NFHP Data System tools.

The attached FHP assessment questionnaire is designed to inventory what habitat assessments have been
completed, what habitat assessments are in progress, what data and variables have been collected, and the
location of assessment products and results. Results of this questionnaire will be used to better
understand existing assessment and data efforts of FHPs to aid in immediate planning of the data
management activities needed to conduct the NFHP-wide inventory. In addition, your responses will
begin the process to determine to how best integrate regional FHP and national Board assessment efforts
to provide more comprehensive products, improve the Board’s responsiveness to FHP needs, and to
reduce redundant efforts between the FHPs and the Board.

On behalf of the NFHP Board and the Science and Data Committee — Thank you so much for all of your
efforts. Your responses to this questionnaire will be reported at the July 2013 National Fish Habitat
Board Meeting. In addition, a representative working with the NFHP Science and Data Committee will
be in contact to aid your FHP with upcoming steps to document the assessment and data products.

FHP Questionnaire — The following 8 questions are formatted in a spreadsheet format for
simplicity of completion and compilation of responses. The spreadsheet will be distributed to FHP
Coordinators for completion by April 15.

1. Fish Habitat Partnership Name and Name of Respondent

2. FHP Data Contacts (primary and secondary - the data contact will be the person from each
partnership to which questions and discussion about documenting and describing datasets
will be directed)





National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 8a

Please list all completed or planned the FHP habitat assessments or data products, contact
name(s), date of completion (or indicate “planned” or “underway"), the objective of each
assessment, a short description of the methods used, a description of the scale of the assessment
(i.e. reach, watershed, region....), project budget, and the website or FTP site where the
assessment results, products and metadata can be found in the table on the second page of the
guestionnaire.

Do you have any peer reviews of or publications generated from the completed assessment work?

If so, please provide the website or FTP site where the peer reviews can be found or the
citation(s) for the publications generated from the completed assessment work:

Do you anticipate any challenges or barriers, or have you overcome challenges, to
acquiring data products within your FHP?

If so, please list the challenge, key issues, and recommended ways to resolve or solutions
that worked.

. Are there data not currently available that you would like to see included in the NFHP
Data System to benefit your FHP or others?
If so, please list data needed and brief description of data or variable.

. Are there nationally consistent datasets (biological or disturbance) that you recommend
for use in the 2015 assessment of the conterminous U.S.?

If so, please list dataset name, key element, spatial extent, and location or organization
where it can be found.

Are there datasets (biological or disturbance) that you would recommend for use in a
regional assessment?

If so, please list dataset name, key element, spatial extent, and location or organization
where it can be found.






National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 9a

¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Title: Communications Committee Report

Desired outcome: An informational briefing to the Board on the committee’s 2013 work plan
and update the Board on progress of Board priorities for the committee in 2013.

Background: At its January 2013 conference call, Board priorities were approved for 2013 and
priority tasks were assigned to the committees under the National Fish Habitat Partnership. The
communications committee was assigned the following as its priority tasks as they relate to the

relevant objective in the second edition of National Fish Habitat Action Plan:

Action Plan Objective 3: Broaden the community of support for fish habitat conservation by
increasing fishing opportunities, fostering the participation of local communities — especially young
people — in conservation activities, and raising public awareness of the role healthy fish habitats play
in the quality of life and economic well-being of local communities.

Priority Task D: Review 2012 Communications Strategy, and revise as necessary, to ensure
there is a principal focus towards raising public awareness on the role healthy fish habitats play
in the economic well-being of local communities; (Communications Committee)

Priority Task E: Increase the size of the Partner Coalition and improve the management and
maintenance of the Partner Coalition database; (Communications Committee)

Priority Task F: Develop a comprehensive congressional and administration outreach strategy;
(Congressional Affairs Team and Communications Committee)

Action Plan Objective 5: Communicate the conservation outcomes produced collectively by
Fish Habitat Partnerships as well as new opportunities and voluntary approaches for conserving
fish habitat to the public and conservation partners.

Priority Task N: Broaden the visibility of the 10 Waters to Watch list by selecting waters that
reflect key fish habitat conservation priorities/needs, track advancements associated with current
and past 10 Waters to Watch, and utilize these waters as a means to tell the story and increase
awareness of bold efforts to reverse persistent declines in aquatic habitat; (Communications
Committee)

2013 Work Plan Updates/Accomplishments
o Priority Task D: (Complete) The Communications Strategy (Tab xx) has been reviewed
by the communications committee and revised to further incorporate priorities of raising
public awareness of the importance of healthy fish habitats through the work of our
FHPs.






National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 9a

o Priority Task E: (ongoing) The Partner Coalition has grown to over 2,000 from 1,600 in
2012. This increase was due in large part to actively marketing the Partnership in 2012 at
events and increasing sign-ups for our database. Our database functionality has improved
dramatically since our switch to our new website in August 2012. We can delineate
certain regions of the country within our database, a feature we previously didn’t have.
We also have the ability to see who is opening our newsletter transmissions and delete
email addresses that are no longer valid. Continuing to grow this database in 2013 will
be an important function of the committee and a priority.

o Priority Task F: (In Progress) The framework of a congressional outreach strategy was
developed and presented to the Board in October 2012 (112" Congress). The strategy is
currently being revised for the 113" Congress. This strategy is a work in progress
pending new legislation and identification of priority members and committees.
Elements of a larger toolkit are in place, including a Partner Letter and general talking
points of the benefits and value of the National Fish Habitat Partnership and the work of
the FHPs.

o Priority Task N: (In Progress) The “Waters to Watch” guidance for FHPs (Tab xx) is
being revised for 2013 and includes some new criteria and a new timeline for the 2013
submissions and announcements as well as a campaign to have a media rollout for each
individual project to better highlight the effort and increase media awareness of the work
of the FHPs.

Documents to be developed in 2013:

Annual Report

Partner toolKkit

Videos highlighting FHP work
NFHP Fact Sheet

2012 Work Plan Outcomes

o Coordinated the rollout strategy for the second edition of the National Fish Habitat Action
Plan. Over half of the printed copies have been distributed.

o New website was launched in 2012 in conjunction with the second edition of the National
Fish Habitat Action Plan.






National Fish Habitat Board

February 26-27
Tab 9b

IFISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

COMMUNICATIONS
STRATEGY

2013 DRAFT REVISION

Committee Members:

Ryan Roberts,
NFHP Communications
Coordinator (Chair)

Laura MacLean,

Director of
Communications and
Marketing, Association of
Fish & Wildlife Agencies
(Vice Chair)

Lindsay Gardner,
Communications
Coordinator, Southeast
Aquatic Resources
Partnership

Kris Gamble,

Public Affairs, National
Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA)

Joe Starinchak,
Outreach Coordinator,
U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service

Maureen Gallagher,
Midwest Regional
Coordinator, U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service

1|Page (DRAFT)

Dianne Timmins,

Cold Water Fisheries
Biologist, EBTJV, N.
Hampshire Fish & Game
Department

Jeanne Hanson,

Field Office Supervisor,
Habitat Conservation
Division, Alaska Region,
National Oceanic and
Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA)
Fisheries

Thomas Litts, Georgia
Department of Natural
Resources (Science and
Data Committee liaison)

Katie Haws,
Project Manager, Midwest
Glacial Lakes Partnership

Cecilia Lewis,
Reservoir Fish Habitat
Partnership,

U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service

Kayla Barrett, Desert Fish
Habitat Partnership,

U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service

Callie McMunigal, Eastern
Brook Trout Joint Venture,
U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service

Board Liaison(s)

Chris Meaney, National
Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA)

Tom Busiahn,

NFHP Coordinator,
U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service

Board Oversight

Mike Andrews,

Vice President,

The Nature Conservancy

Krystyna Wolniakowski,
Director, National Fish and
Wildlife Foundation-NW





2013 COMMUNICATIONS
STRATEGY

BACKGROUND

The communications strategy for the National Fish Habitat Partnership is critical to
issuing and promoting a common message and synergy among the Board, state
agencies, federal caucus, fish habitat partnerships and developing “candidate” fish
habitat partnerships and the national fish habitat partner coalition. The strategy also
emphasizes the importance of maintaining the National Fish Habitat Partnership as a
state-led effort in cooperation with our other partners.

This communications strategy framework guides the mission of the National Fish Habitat
Partnership, as it strives to build an engaged community concerned with the
conservation of our nation’s aquatic habitats. The communications strategy as described
in this document, will be implemented and, managed by the communications committee,
and overseen by the National Fish Habitat Board to help meet the objectives set forth by
the 2" Edition of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.

The direction of overall communications through the communications committee will
improve the National Fish Habitat Partnership and make it a vehicle to engage additional
partners as well as fuel the further growth of the Partners Coalition, bringing new
opportunities to expand the constituency base of existing Fish Habitat Partnerships.

The committee emphasizes the value of communications as a tool for fostering lasting,
productive relationships among diverse partners. These relationships are what makes all
our efforts to revive fisheries and waterways effective and builds credibility with a
growing audience.

Priority actions of this strategy are based on objectives 3 and 5 from the 2" Edition of
the National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Published 2012):

Objective 3:
Broaden the community of support for fish habitat conservation by increasing fishing

opportunities, fostering the participation of local communities —especially young people —
in conservation activities, and raising public awareness of the role healthy fish habitats
play in the quality of life and economic well- being of local communities.

Objective 5:
Communicate the conservation outcomes produced collectively by Fish Habitat

Partnerships as well as new opportunities and voluntary approaches for conserving fish
habitat to the public and conservation partners.

2|Page (DRAFT)





PRIORITY ACTIONS

OBJECTIVE 3:

1. Foster partnerships with organizations to increase reach of NFHP marketing and
communications.

2. Increase media reach of “Waters to Watch” campaign. “Waters to Watch” is the
top vehicle for making an impact by strategically choosing projects of highest
importance to communities across the country. Projects that involve the support
and assistance of local communities and offer educational opportunities to youth
are a high priority.

3. Create a grant program database for FHPs to utilize to find funding and

partnership resources. This database would be navigable regionally and
species/watershed specific.

OBJECTIVE 5:

1. Create tools and informational items for FHPs and NFHP partners to tell the story
of NFHP and clearly explain the value of aquatic habitat conservation and value
added in working through partnership with other organizations.

2. Explore new potential opportunities through FHPs to work with new organizations
to expand partners working under the National Fish Habitat Partnership. These
opportunities to work with new partners would be influenced by specific project
areas in which the FHPs are working on conservation projects.

3. Expand use and gather additional data on socio-economic benefits of the
National Fish Habitat Partnership as it relates to cost benefits and improving

recreational angling opportunities for the American people.

4. Create tools for promotion of the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act for FHP
and partner utilization for meeting with constituents and for project site visits.

3|Page (DRAFT)





PRIMARY FUNCTION OF THE COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE

e Serving in an advisory capacity to the National Fish Habitat Board and its
staff, particularly in identifying outreach opportunities and potential
challenges related to policy decisions. Committee members have different
levels of expertise, some in marketing, some in communications and others with
a familiarity of working with broad partnerships to expand their appeal. Working
together, the committee will operate in the most succinct manner possible,
recognizing that individual efforts may be limited to advance the communications
effort. Despite a short and long term focus now established, further support and
investment will be needed to meet the goals of the committee.

e Developing professional communications materials to keep partners fully
informed, foster mutually beneficial relationships, and encourage new
partners to join Fish Habitat Partnerships. The committee will continue to
develop communications materials that are cohesive and complementary in
message, design, and delivery to have the greatest impact for advancement of
the work of the National Fish Habitat Partnership.

e Maintain and fulfill a list of measurable outcomes for the work of the
communications committee and Fish Habitat Partnerships. A list of
outcomes will be maintained and built upon to show measurable results in terms
of growth in media placement for Waters to Watch and other Fish Habitat
Partnership related products. Growing the National Fish Habitat Partnership
Partner Coalition will be viewed as the ultimate outcome measure.

o Foster partnerships with organizations specializing in marketing and
communications. The committee will work to build mutually beneficial
relationships with other organizations aimed at enhancing the brand and
recognition of the Partnership.

e Advance the work of the Fish Habitat Partnerships. The committee
recognizes the most important factor to promote through the National Fish
Habitat Partnership is the work of the individual Fish Habitat Partnerships FHPs
are the work units of the National Fish Habitat Partnership. The work of the Fish
Habitat Partnerships, are of the utmost importance to showcase, especially how
addressing the objectives in the National Fish Habitat Action Plan is making a
difference. Input by the Fish Habitat Partnerships is critical to making this
function of the committee a reality. Project updates and reports that show the
Action Plan making a significant impact will be essential to elevating the work of
the Fish Habitat Partnership and gaining recognition through media outlets. Full
establishment of a “10 Waters to Watch” subcommittee will help tell the story of
NFHP.

e Advance the passage of the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act.
Coordinate with our legislative team to create the best communications support
materials to help advance the passage of the National Fish Habitat Conservation

4|Page (DRAFT)





Act. This is a primary objective for the committee to focus on as directed by the
National Fish Habitat Board.

COMMUNICATIONS NETWORKS

National Fish Habitat Partnership communications target the following primary networks
to build awareness, support, engagement, advocacy, and action in various forms. The
committee will work through these networks to reach out to their constituencies and local
groups.

(Internal):

National Fish Habitat Board

Promotion of the Board’s leadership, coordination, and facilitation role, and supporting
the Board in its role as ambassadors and influential advocates for the National Fish
Habitat Partnership in policy arenas is critical for communicating Board progress.

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies and State Agencies

Communications will support the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies (AFWA) in
serving as the main conduit for communications with state fish and wildlife agencies.
Communications will also support AFWA'’s role in assisting states align priorities and
resources for Fish Habitat Partnerships. AFWA serves as a direct link to State Fish and
Wildlife Agency Directors and other related staff contacts, which are critical to informing
and seeking input on the work of the Partnership. The relationship with AFWA also
provides opportunities to brief state leadership on the National Fish Habitat Partnership.

Federal Caucus

Communications will also benefit the cohesiveness of the National Fish Habitat Federal
Caucus, by informing the Caucus of initiatives of the Communications Committee at
scheduled meetings led by the US Fish & Wildlife Service. Working to inform policy
makers and political appointees within federal agencies, on the work of the National Fish
Habitat Partnership, will be critical to advancing our efforts and helping them to
recognize the work of the partnership as a priority within their agencies. Working with
the Federal Caucus on emphasizing the importance of the National Fish Habitat
Partnership MOU and getting the word out about the requisite reports will be critical to
the Partnership’s importance within Federal Agencies.

Partner Coalition

The Partner Coalition will serve as an outlet for information sharing as well as spreading
the word about the role of NFHP in a grass roots manner. Growing the number of
partners in the Coalition is a priority for 2013.

Fish Habitat Partnerships

Developing compelling communications that strategically illustrate what the National Fish
Habitat Partnership is all about is one of the most important contributions the committee
can make. Fish habitat conservation projects are the marketable force for
communications, rather than the Action Plan. More visibility and emphasis on Fish
Habitat Partnerships through website updates and media outreach will be a key to
growing a community of support that will assist in the efforts to obtain long-term
sustainable funding for partnerships and their conservation actions.

5|Page (DRAFT)





COMMUNICATIONS CHANNELS

Broader visibility through the media will help grow the community of support for the
National Fish Habitat Partnership and shine a light on the work of Fish Habitat
Partnerships, as well as significantly influence future policies and investments. The “10
Waters to Watch” campaign is the most visible element of the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan to date with regards to gaining media attention. Building upon this current
level of media attention and coordinating visits to “10 Waters to Watch” project sites with
media outlets and policy makers will help increase awareness of the Partnership and
Action Plan, as well as the Fish Habitat Partnerships.

Website

The revamped www.fishhabitat.org webpage was launched in June of 2012 and is the
most critical component of National Fish Habitat Partnership communications as it’s the
main source of broadcasting information. The website is our “newspaper” and it houses
all of the relevant documents for the Partnership. In the technologically savvy world that
exists today our website needs to be direct and succinct if we are to be successful in
getting our messages out. There is a need to clarify the working parts of the National
Fish Habitat Partnership, in an understandable format, since the Partnership operates at
a number of different levels. At the core of the Partnership is the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan. The National Fish Habitat Board oversees implementation of the Action
Plan and establishes guidance and policies for Fish Habitat Partnerships and the
Partnership overall. The individual Fish Habitat Partnerships are the primary working
units of the Partnership, which are strategically focused on protecting, restoring and
enhancing fish habitat at a landscape scale.

Social Media

The National Fish Habitat Partnership currently has a social media presence on
Facebook, Twitter and LinkedIn and has a news curating program called Scoop.it that
digs for news articles related to fish habitat in general. Working to expand our reach in
these mediums has brought in additional partner coalition members in support of the
National Partnership and will expand the NFHP email database capacity. A presence in
social media is important and serves as a forum to relay stories about the achievements
occurring under the guidance of the Action Plan. Staying current with these mediums is
important if we want to stay on the cutting edge of the social media fronts. In the ever-
changing environment of press outreach, social media is one of the Partnerships far
reaching tools we have to utilize effectively.

Trade Shows/Meeting Exhibits

Maintaining a presence among our constituents, by having displays at Trade shows and
meetings across the country will help advance the work and reach of the National Fish
Habitat Partnership. Whenever possible we will work to get out in front of these
audiences to help grow our community of support. (2013 Targeted Events — Exhibit A)

Email Newsletters

E-mail newsletters are another source of communication and are the chief outreach tool
for maintaining contact with our Partner Coalition. Newsletters are the most succinct way
to reach out to this audience and inform them about Fish Habitat Partnership news both
locally and nationally. Our newsletter database program is better suited for our current
needs through the new fishhabitat.org website.

6|Page (DRAFT)



http://www.fishhabitat.org/



Other Outreach Tools

¢ National Fish Habitat Action Plan (“‘one-pager”)
Annual Update
State Fact sheets created for “Status Report”
National Fish Habitat Partnership Map
10 Waters to Watch fact/update sheets

PowerPoint Presentations

A compilation of National Fish Habitat PowerPoint presentations on the core elements of
the Action Plan will be made available on the web for partner use. A NFHP template
PowerPoint presentation is currently available for use by partners.

Marketing Signage

A “traveling display” describing core elements of the Partnership has been created, and
will be updated and refined as needed to meet the desires of the committee and Board.
This will assist partners in establishing a prominent presence at major conferences and
other venues with the potential to expand brand awareness and support for the National
Fish Habitat Partnership.

COMMUNICATIONS GUIDANCE

Brand Enhancement Guidance

The National Fish Habitat Board approved a change to enhance our brand as The
National Fish Habitat Partnership in 2011. Our brand is reflective of what we are to all
audiences, so we want to present a clear picture of our identity to policy makers,
constituents, volunteers and colleagues in the conservation community. Enhancing our
brand and raising our profile needs to be a top priority for the National Fish Habitat
Partnership. This effort will enhance fundraising opportunities and promote our mission.
The image and influence of the National Fish Habitat Partnership brand will clearly
communicate our strengths. The full Guidance can be found here:
http://fishhabitat.orqg/FHP_resource

Logo Guide and Style Sheet:
http://fishhabitat.orqg/FHP resource

Social Media Guidance (Exhibit B)

2013 Trade Shows/Meeting Exhibits-(Exhibit A)*

River Network River Rally
May 17-20, St. Louis, MO.
http://www.rivernetwork.org/events/national-river-rally-2012

American Fisheries Society Meeting

7|Page (DRAFT)



http://fishhabitat.org/FHP_resource

http://fishhabitat.org/FHP_resource

http://www.rivernetwork.org/events/national-river-rally-2012



September 8-12, Little Rock, AR.
http://afs2013.com/

* Other events may be targeted by the Communications Committee in 2013. This
list does not include other related events meetings for 2013.

Social Media Guidance - (Exhibit B)

Overview

The National Fish Habitat Partnership’s Social Media Guidance is based on promoting
the conservation practices of the National Fish Habitat Partnership and individual Fish
Habitat Partnerships respectively. The guidance contained in this document should
serve as advised practices for use of Facebook, Twitter and You Tube. If your Fish
Habitat Partnership is currently using social media, please apply these long-tested
principles to the social media space. The Social Media Guidelines are designed to
advance the National Fish Habitat Partnership brand on social networks.

KEY SOCIAL MEDIA CHANNELS AND CONSIDERATIONS FOR USE

There are many social media channels available to users, and new channels are being
introduced frequently. As such, it would be impossible to provide information on all of
them. We will focus on three of the most popular and most applicable to the National
Fish Habitat Partnership. Those channels are Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn.

Facebook

Facebook is a wonderful way to form online communities where groups of people
can gather to have conversations and share information. Indeed, the National
Fish Habitat Partnership and Fish Habitat Partnerships are already using
Facebook to communicate about their work in aquatic conservation. Of course,
creating and maintaining a Facebook page is a big responsibility and should not
be entered into lightly.

It may be valuable to think of a Facebook page as meeting that is always open,
always going on, and where members of the public and partners may drop by
and watch or participate at any time of day or night. But it's also easy to see how,
if left unstructured or unattended by page administrators this never-ending
meeting could easily become a problem.

When considering whether or not Facebook might be a good option, it is
important to remember that Facebook requires all users to be at least 13 years of
age. Before creating a Facebook page, you should educate yourself about what
Facebook is and how it is used, and familiarize yourself with its terms of service.
This will help you navigate carefully in your development of a fan page and when
creating a Facebook page, you should make it a public fan page.

Perhaps the biggest strength of Facebook is also its biggest weakness:
Facebook fan pages are open to the public, which means any information shared

8|Page (DRAFT)



http://afs2013.com/



on that fan page can be viewed by essentially anyone. As such, you should make
sure that any information shared on that page by you or by your fans is
information that is appropriate to share with the public. This is especially true
regarding the level of detail you provide representing the partnership.

Once you have created a Facebook fan page, invited people to “like” your page
and started gathering “fans,” it is important for you to post good and appropriate
content and monitor the content that is posted to your wall. Unfortunately, not all
the content posted to the wall by your fans may be appropriate. Content that
does not meet that standard should be removed immediately.

If a user posts highly offensive content, the content should be removed
immediately, and you may need to block or ban the user who posted it. Such an
action should not be used liberally but only when content is truly objectionable.

This type of careful monitoring requires vigilance. Before creating a Facebook
page, you should consider whether you or someone else who will administer the
page will be able to monitor that page and post content consistently to help
ensure that only appropriate content is posted. Pages with inconsistent and
infrequent updates can cause your fans to become disinterested, and your page
can become a target for spammers or other predatory parties who recognize that
you appear not to be actively involved on your page.

Twitter

Because of its 140-character-per-post limit and relative lack of multimedia
capabilities, Twitter is designed for quick, simple updates and also can be used
like instant messaging or email to have conversations with one or more people in
a mostly public forum.

Twitter can be a great place to share quick observations, provide updates about
programs, share training deadlines, link to other websites with event details,
share great Scouting stories, and have an informal conversation with followers. In
general, Twitter has a more personal voice, meaning posts on Twitter are
expected to be relatively informal and friendly. It is also important to remember
that Twitter is a public forum and is viewable by virtually anyone. That means
content placed on Twitter should be acceptable to your specific intended
audience of followers as well as a wider audience.

Some direct-messaging capabilities exist with Twitter and utilizing in the right
context can help with dialogue with followers.

Twitter should be updated regularly and watched closely so responses can be
provided to people requesting information or trying to start a conversation.

LinkedIn
Group pages can be a powerful way to connect with other business people in a
meaningful way. It won't thrive if you don’t nurture it.

Creating a Group is an easy way to bring professionals together online. A
9|Page (DRAFT)





LinkedIn Group makes sense for colleges, alumni groups, non-profit
organizations, special interest groups, and more.

To get started, navigate to the “Groups” link on the left side of your page, and
click on the “Create a Group” link. Upload a logo, choose a unique name, and
enter supporting details such as description, summary, and website link.

If you want others to be able to find your group when they search, check the
“Display this group in the Groups Directory” box. In addition, you can choose
whether or not members can display the group logo on their profiles.

Once your group is created, you can navigate to the group under the “Groups”
link on the left side bar. Navigate to your group and click on the “Manage” tab on
your group to get started. From here you can manage membership, invitations,
and add group managers.

LinkedIn does not invite members to join your group, you must invite your
members to join. To invite members to your group, you have a few options. If you
already have a list of members that should be in your group you can “pre-
approve” them, so that when they request to join the group they will be
automatically accepted. What you need is a spreadsheet with their name and
email address. You would upload the file directly by clicking on the “Invite
Members” link and uploading the file under “Batch Pre-approved Members”.
Alternatively, you can manually pre-approve members.

If you would like to block certain members from joining your group, click on the
‘Remove & Block” button on the “Manage” tab and choose which members you
want removed and blocked from joining your user group.

If you've created a group, you are the group owner and manager by default. If
you wish to share the management responsibility with others, you can promote a
member to become manager of the group. To add another manager, click on the
“Members” link, and next click the “Promote to manager” link next to the person
you want to add as a manager. You can remove that user as a manager by
clicking on the “Managers” link and selecting the “Remove as manager” option.

In addition, you can also transfer complete ownership of a group to another

manager. To do this, select the “Change owner” link and select another manager
to take over ownership of the group.

Tips to live by before you m
Think of CNN, your mother and your boss

Don't say anything online that you wouldn't be comfortable seeing quoted on
CNN, being asked about by your mother or having to justify to your boss.

10|Page (DRAFT)





Add value

Sharing of information and experiences benefits the entire fisheries conservation
community and ultimately our partners. Feel free to share and discuss your
experiences in campaigns, field and within your partnerships. Use common
sense in your social media practices where information is concerned that is
internal and/or confidential. If in doubt - ask the owner of the information you
want to share.

Spread the word and connect with your colleagues and other related

organizations
Connect with them through social networks and spread their success stories.

11|Page (DRAFT)






National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 9c¢

NATIONAL

¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Guidance for Selecting National Fish Habitat Partnership 10 “Waters to Watch”
Projects

(Draft Changes for 2013)

Suggestions for 10 Waters to Watch:

All Board-recognized NFHP Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPs) will have an opportunity to
suggest a project for selection for the 2012 campaign, by . Due to the number of Board-
recognized FHPs (18)) competition is expected during the submission process. Therefore, only
one project per FHP (submission dependent) can be selected, to make the process fair. Not All
FHPs will have a project selected for the 10 “Waters to Watch” Campaign. Proposed “Waters to
Watch” submissions should be reflective of projects completed over the past calendar year or
projects with dedicated funding allocated for the current year with the intention of the project
happening in that given calendar year.

Criteria for Selection:

The criteria approved by the National Fish Habitat Board in March 2009 (amended in 2012) for
consideration for a project to be a “Water to Watch” are listed below. Project selection will be
based on these criteria although not all categories may apply to any specific project.

e Size and scope of project. Larger scale projects in scope are preferred for selection;
Projects that offer greatest impact to habitat improvement are preferred.

e Media Friendly—media market size

e Project involves charismatic leaders and dedicated partners.
e Strong community support/involvement.

¢ Volunteer involvement

e Youth participation/education involved in project

e Potential for Success— Project needs to show data of habitat loss or need for
conservation (numbers, inventory, scientific recommendations, community benefit and

1





National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 9c¢

increased angler participation) Projects concerning protection of intact systems will
receive strong consideration.

e Funding opportunities—areas of the country where the probability of strong partnerships
and multiple funding opportunities may be more likely.

e FHP Approval.

e Projects done within the spirit and principles of NFHAP.

Project Reporting and Updates:

Regular reporting and updates are important for future success of the 10 “Waters to Watch”
Campaign. Projects for the 10 “Waters to Watch” will be selected with the understanding that
brief reports will be submitted in (April, August and December) of the given project year) upon
request by the Communications Coordinator, Ryan Roberts rroberts@fishwildlife.orq (202)-624-
5851. A modifiable one-sheet form report will be distributed to each of the Fish Habitat
Partnerships that have projects selected for 2013.

Fish Habitat Partnerships that have projects selected will be required to submit annual updates
every year following the project being named to the list, with the purpose of updating progress
and improvement over time and showing that the selected project has made an impact on
improving fish habitat. Please place an emphasis on gathering quality photos for reporting
purposes, which will help to tell a good story.

These reports will be critical for accountability for the selected projects and will be used for all of
the following:

e Generation of Media Attention (articles, news stories).

o Project Site Visits for partners, members of state and federal agencies, members of
state and local governments and members of Congress and staff.

o Crafting of one-sheet (PDF) documents for each of the projects to document progress.

e General updates — keeping track of project accomplishments and of partner involvement,
volunteer opportunities, or educational initiatives.

There will be coordination with the Partnerships Committee to make this process as transparent
as possible and for the need of any future changes to this criteria.

The “Waters to Watch” campaign has featured 60 projects, since 2007, that are models for
aguatic conservation that have received media recognition across the country, raising public
awareness of the work of our Fish Habitat Partnerships. Through implementation of the

2



mailto:rroberts@fishwildlife.org



National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013
Tab 9c¢

National Fish Habitat Action Plan these projects show over time, that science-based
conservation actions truly do make a difference nationally to benefit fish habitats.

The 2013 “Waters to Watch” timeline is as follows:

February 19" - Guidance and Partner Project sheets sent to Fish Habitat Partnership
March 11" — Project proposal submission deadline

March 15™ — Review by Communications Committee

March 18" - Projects reviewed by Board (via email)

April/May - 2013 10 “Waters to Watch” Announcement






Memorandum of Understanding
Between

The U.S. Department of the Interior
And

The U.S. Department of Agriculture
And

The U.S. Department of Commerce
For

Implementing the National Fish Habitat Action Plan

L. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to promote collaborative, science-
based conservation by ensuring that the component agencies, bureaus, and offices of the
Department of the Interior, the Department of Agriculture, and the Department of Commerce
(Departments), with direct or indirect responsibilities for aquatic habitat conservation, protection,
and restoration, support efforts to implement the National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan)
in accordance with their respective agency missions, policies, and regulations and subject to the
availability of funds.

The Action Plan is a science-based, voluntary, and non-regulatory effort providing a nationwide
strategy to harness the energies, expertise, and existing programs of Federal and state agencies,
conservation organizations, foundations, and individuals.

i & BACKGROUND

Aquatic habitat supports fish, shellfish, amphibians, and other aquatic life that is important to the
Nation’s biological diversity, the economies of local communities and the Nation, and
recreational use and enjoyment by millions of Americans. However, coastal, marine, and
freshwater habitats have been damaged and destroyed by human activities. These losses have
caused significant declines in fish populations throughout the United States, and have resulted in
substantial economic losses. Our Departments have substantial interests in reversing declines in
aquatic communities and habitats by working with partners in state and tribal government, local
government, not-for-profit organizations, private entities, and individuals.

The Action Plan provides a national strategy to address aquatic habitat from the interior to the
oceans. It supports cooperative, proactive, aquatic habitat protection, and restoration goals at
multiple geographic scales. Through fish habitat protection and restoration, jobs are created and





recreational and commercial fishing communities will benefit. The Action Plan’s voluntary
partnership approach complements Federal and state regulations that protect aquatic habitat. The
Action Plan supplements, but does not replace the existing foundation of statutory authority and
associated regulatory programs implemented by the Departments that presently serve to protect
aquatic habitats from degradation. Communication and coordination among our Departments,
whose activities affect aquatic habitat, will help to improve the quality of our stewardship and
the health of our Nation’s aquatic habitat.

III. AUTHORITIES

This MOU is issued by the Secretary of the Interior, the Secretary of Agriculture, and the
Secretary of Commerce (Secretaries), pursuant to the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation
and Management Act (16 U.S.C. § 1801 ef seq.), Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 ef seq.),
Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 U.S.C. §§ 661-666¢.), Coral Reef Conservation Act of
2000 (16 U.S.C. § 6401 et seq.), Coastal Zone Management Act (16 U.S.C. § 1451 et seq.),
Estuary Restoration Act 0f 2000 (33 U.S.C. § 2901 ef seq.), Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C.
§ 1531 et seq.), and the Coastal and Estuarine Lands Conservation Program (16 U.S.C. §§ 1456-
1456d), and other Federal laws. These statutes provide the Agencies with authority to, among
other things:

e Conserve and manage the fishery resources of the United States;
e Cooperate with state and other public or private agencies and organizations in the
conservation of fish and wildlife and their habitats;

Protect, restore, and enhance the coastal and estuarine resources of the United States, and;
e Provide for the conservation of species that are endangered or threatened, and the
ecosystems on which they depend.

IV. DEFINITIONS
As used in this MOU the following terms are specifically defined:

A. National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan). The National Fish Habitat
Action Plan dated April 24, 2006, and any subsequent revisions or amendments.

B. National Fish Habitat Board. A governing board established by the Action Plan
to promote, oversee, and coordinate implementation of the Action Plan.

il Federal Caucus. A working group open to all Federal agencies, chaired by the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, organized to coordinate Federal participation in implementation
of the Action Plan.

D. Fish Habitat Partnership. An entity designated by the National Fish Habitat
Board as a “Fish Habitat Partnership” that coordinates the implementation of the Action Plan at a






regional level. A Fish Habitat Partnership may include among its members Federal, state, tribal,
local, non-profit, or private entities or individuals.

E. Aquatic communities. Aquatic organisms living or growing in, on, or near
freshwater, estuarine or marine habitats and co-occurring with one another under relatively
similar environmental conditions.

F. Aquatic habitat. Any area on which an aquatic organism depends, directly or
indirectly, to carryout the life processes of the organism, including an area used by the organism
for spawning, incubation, nursery, rearing, growth to maturity, food supply, or migration,
including an area adjacent to the aquatic environment if the adjacent area:

(1) Contributes an element, such as the input of detrital material or the promotion of a
planktonic or insect population providing food, that makes fish life possible;

(2)  Affects the quality and quantity of water sources;
(3) Provides public access for the use of fishery resources; or
4) Serves as a buffer protecting the aquatic environment.

G. Aquatic organism. Spemes that depend upon aquatic habitat for one or more
stages of their life cycle, such as spawning, incubation, nursery, rearing, growth to maturity, food
supply, or migration, including but not limited to fishes, shellfish, amphibians, turtles, and
aquatic invertebrates.

H. Conservation. Activities that protect, sustain, and, where appropriate, restore, and
enhance populations of fish, wildlife, or plant life or a habitat required to sustain fish, wildlife, or
plant life or its productivity.

V. RESPONSIBILITIES
To achieve the objectives of this MOU, the heads of all agencies, bureaus, and offices within the

Departments with direct or indirect responsibilities for aquatic habitat conservation, protection,
and restoration shall be responsible for ensuring that the following principles are followed:

A. Principle 1. The Departments Shall Support Implementation of the National Fish
Habitat Action Plan.

(1) The Departments recognize that the Action Plan is a partnership with state
and tribal fish and wildlife agencies, local agencies, not-for-profit organizations, private entities,
and individuals to improve the quality and quantity of aquatic habitat.

(2) The Departments shall ensure their actions, to the extent permitted by law
and subject to the availability of appropriations, and in accordance with their respective agency





missions, policies, and regulations, are consistent with and support the priorities of the Action
Plan. In so doing, the Departments can improve the efficiency of Federal Government
operations and ensure effective coordination with state, tribal, and local agencies, not-for-profit
organizations, private entities, and individuals.

B. Principle 2. The Departments Shall Participate in National Fish Habitat Action
Plan Forums.

(1) The Director, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service; the Chief, U.S. Department
of Agriculture, Forest Service; and the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Oceanic

and Atmospheric Administration shall participate as members of the National Fish Habitat
Board.

(2) Each of the component agencies, bureaus, and offices of the Departments
with direct or indirect responsibilities for aquatic habitat conservation, protection, and
restoration, shall as appropriate, to the extent permitted by law and subject to the availability of
appropriations, and in accordance with their respective agency missions, policies, and
regulations:

(a) Participate as members of the Federal Caucus at policy and
technical levels to coordinate Federal participation in implementation of the Action Plan in
support of state agency-led efforts to achieve the goals of the Action Plan.

(b) Review its policies, procedures, resources, and capabilities to
further the goals of the Action Plan, and make revisions, where appropriate during regularly
scheduled reviews of same, to support the goals.

(c) Incorporate the goals of the Action Plan in its own plans for
managing Federal lands and water resources, during regularly scheduled reviews of such plans.

(d) Contribute materials, technical assistance, services, or matching
funds to projects that support the goals of the Action Plan and Fish Habitat Partnerships
established under the Plan.

(e) Coordinate and contribute technical assistance, services or funds
for the science and data initiatives of the National Fish Habitat Board.

® Consider the goals of the Action Plan when awarding loans, grants,
contracts, and cooperative agreements.

(g) Consider the goals of the Action Plan when issuing permits to
states or private entities when such permits may influence aquatic habitat.

(h) Collect, manage, analyze, and share data and contribute
information technology expertise to build or integrate databases to assess aquatic communities,
habitat conditions and outcomes of projects.





(i) Encourage and support affiliated efforts by non-Federal partners to
implement the Action Plan, including the fulfillment of the Federal trust responsibilities to
Native American governments.

G) Contribute to the development of informational materials for
stakeholders and the general public to raise awareness of the values of aquatic habitat and the
Action Plan.

(k)  Coordinate its activities in support of the Action Plan with other
interagency efforts, including but not limited to America’s Great Outdoors, Landscape
Conservation Cooperatives, the Aquatic Nuisance Species Task Force, the Coral Reef Task
Force, the National Action Plan for Freshwater Resources, the National Ocean Policy
Implementation Plan, and the National Fish, Wildlife and Plants Climate Adaptation Strategy.

1)) Coordinate its activities with states, territories, tribes. and local
governments to meet the goals of the Action Plan.

VI. IMPLEMENTATION

This MOU shall be implemented by all agencies, bureaus, and offices of the Departments, as
applicable.

VII. REPORTING

Within 180 days from the date of this MOU, and at 2-year intervals thereafter, all bureaus,
agencies, and offices implementing this MOU will report to their respective Secretary on agency
accomplishments and progress in support of state-led efforts to achieve the goals of the Action
Plan.

VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Nothing in this MOU shall obligate the Department of the Interior, the
Department of Agriculture, or the Department of Commerce to obligate or transfer any funds.
This MOU is neither a fiscal nor a funds obligation document. Any endeavor involving
reimbursement, contribution of funds, or other transfer of anything of value between the Parties
will be handled in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and procedures, including those
for government procurement and printing. Such endeavors will be outlined in separate
agreements that shall be made in writing by representatives of the Parties and shall be
independently authorized by appropriate statutory authority.

B. Changes to this MOU shall be made in writing by mutual consent of all Parties,
through an issuance of a written modification signed and dated by all Parties.





& Documents furnished to a Party under this MOU may be subject to the Freedom
of Information Act (FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552). A Party shall not release to a FOIA requester
documents originating with another Party. Rather, the Party that received the FOIA request shall
forward such document(s) to the originating Party for review, determination, and response
directly to the requester.

D. This MOU is not intended to, and does not create any right, benefit, or trust
responsibility, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or equity, by any party against the
United States, its agencies, its officers, or any person.

IX. EXPIRATION

This MOU becomes effective on the date that the last party to this agreement signs and shall
remain in effect for 5 years from the date of execution. This MOU may be extended upon
written request of any of the Departments and the subsequent written concurrence of the others.
Any of the Departments may terminate participation in this MOU with a 60-day written notice to
the others.

SIGNATURES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto executed this Memorandum of Understanding on
the date(s) set forth below:

%4.\ Scbgmaan, MAR 05 2012

Secretary Date
Department of the Interior

( ) ! \/! ,l MAR 0 7 2012
Secre?;ry Date
Department of Agriculture

ﬁ:(. 2 @‘7(“"\ Wi~
S¢cretary “ Date

e ent of Commerce






Report to the Secretary of Commerce

Accomplishments in
Support of the National
¢ Fish Habitat Action Plan
September 2012 FY 2006 - FY 2012

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012

Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

NATIONAL
FISH HABITAT &
ACTION PLAN

2ND EDITION

STEWARDSHIP

ESFiSHHABITAT T

The second edition of the National
Fish Habitat Action Plan, 2012.

Accomplishments in
Support of the National
Fish Habitat Action Plan
FY 2006 - FY 2012

In March 2012, the Secretaries of Agriculture, Commerce, and the Interior
signed a memorandum of understanding to promote collaborative,
science-based conservation of the nation’s waterways and fisheries
through the National Fish Habitat Partnership and the implementation of
the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.

£3IFISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

The National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan) provides a national
strategy to address aquatic habitat from the interior to the oceans. The
Action Plan is a science-based, voluntary, and non-regulatory effort
providing a nationwide strategy to harness the energies, expertise,

and existing programs of Federal and state agencies, conservation
organizations, foundations, and individuals. It supports cooperative,
proactive, aquatic habitat protection and restoration goals at multiple
geographic scales.

The mission of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan is to protect,
restore and enhance the nation’s fish and aquatic communities through
partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation and improve the quality
of life for the American people.

The goals of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan are:

1. Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems.

2. Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been
adversely affected.

3. Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats
to improve the overall health of fish and other aquatic
organisms.

4. Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a
broad natural diversity of fish and other aquatic species.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

Since 2006, NOAA has supported the goals of the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan and the National Fish Habitat Partnership (NFHP) through
in-kind contributions of staff and technical assistance and by using existing
funding to support national and partnership activities that match NOAA’s
mission. To date, NOAA’s investments in NFHP exceed $2.6 million of
existing funds.

NOAA provides leadership to NFHP at the national level by:

 serving on the National Fish Habitat Board (Board),

« providing primary support to the Board,

« providing management and policy support to the Board executive
team,

« providing science and technical leadership for the development
and execution of the coastal assessments for the 2010 and 2015
Status of Fish Habitats Report,

« engaging other Federal agencies through the Federal Caucus,

» supporting NFHP communications initiatives,

« building fish habitat partnerships, and

« providing technical support and funding for on-the-ground
project planning and implementation.

Brandywine Creek Dam, DE.

This report to the Secretary of Commerce on NOAA’s accomplishments
and progress in support of state-led efforts to achieve the goals of the
National Fish Habitat Action Plan meets the reporting requirement
established in the MOU. The report highlights NOA A's accomplishments
and progress, through August 2012, in implementing the Action Plan
through four key strategies:

» Supporting existing fish habitat partnerships and fostering new
efforts.

« Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for achieving
fish habitat conservation goals.

« Measuring and communicating the status and needs of aquatic
habitats.

» Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish
habitats.

Support existing fish habitat partnerships
and foster new efforts

Since 2006, NOAA has provided extensive leadership, technical expertise,
and financial support to promote the coastal and marine fish habitat
partnerships and candidate partnerships. NOAA has actively engaged in
the development and implementation of coastally-focused partnerships
through staft support in our regional offices and by providing funding for
activities like strategic planning workshops and partnership coordination.
In addition, NOAA has supported on-the-ground habitat protection and
restoration projects with several coastal partnerships. Since 2006 NOA A’s
support of projects has totaled close to $1.5 million.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

There are nine coastal and marine Board-recognized Fish Habitat
Partnerships:

Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership

California Fish Passage Forum

Great Lakes Basin Fish Habitat Partnership

Hawaii Fish Habitat Partnership

Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership
Matanuska-Susitna Basin Salmon Habitat Partnership
Pacific Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership
Southeast Aquatic Fish Habitat Partnership
Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership

NOAA also provides strong support and leadership in the two Candidate
Fish Habitat Partnerships in coastal and marine areas:

Salmon in the City
North American Salmon Stronghold Partnership

Pacific Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership

NOAA Fisheries staff were instrumental in the establishment of the Pacific
Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership (PMEP), a partnership
that supports priority habitat conservation work for fish along the Pacific
Coast. In FY2010, NOAA provided support for a PMEP coordinator

and a workshop that included federal and state agencies, tribes, local
governments, recreational and commercial fishing representatives and
non-governmental organizations to garner support for establishment of
PMEP. This workshop, organized and implemented through the extensive
support of NOAA staff, was successful in gaining significant support for
the candidate partnership. PMEP was formally recognized by the National
Fish Habitat Board in 2012 as one of eighteen fish habitat partnerships
working to implement the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.

Leadership in PMEP:

NOAA Fisheries staff have participated on steering committees for
PMEDP since 2006. NOAA also serves as Chair of the PMEP Science and
Technology Committee.

Technical expertise:

NOAA staff provided technical expertise for the Strategic Planning
processes for this partnership, including drafting portions of

the Strategic Plans and setting priorities. With NOAA support,
PMEP finalized its Strategic Plan in 2012, with clear objectives for
conservation of marine and estuarine juvenile fish habitat.

Sardines swimming near kelp off
the coast of California.

Financial support:
NOAA provided $102,500 from FY2010-FY2012 to support the PMEP

coordinator and a PMEP workshop.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

9 e R DL LR Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership

In 2007, NOAA developed and mobilized the Southeast Aquatic Resources
Partnership (SARP) to fund and deliver on-the-ground coastal fish habitat
restoration projects in the nine Southeastern coastal states that border the
Gulf of Mexico and the South Atlantic Coast. NOAA-sponsored projects
have restored oyster reef, salt marsh, mangrove, and seagrass habitats.

Leadership in SARP
NOAA staff actively participate on the SARP Steering, Science and Data,
and Outreach and Communications Committees.

Technical expertise:

NOAA has also dedicated considerable leadership, time, and technical
expertise during development of the Southeast Aquatic Habitat Plan
published in 2008. NOA A’s continued contributions complement those of
the Departments of the Interior and Agriculture to ensure the recognition
of linkages between freshwater and saltwater habitats and incorporation of
strategic ecosystem based management objectives aimed at preserving and
restoring fish habitat from the headwaters, through estuaries, to the offshore

marine environment.

Financial support:

NOAA provided $1,175,000 to SARP between FY07 and FY11 to fund 22
coastal restoration projects. These projects leveraged significant additional
federal, state and local funding to catalyze community participation, and
increase stakeholder interest in NFHP at the grass roots level. NOAA
continues to provide technical expertise for ongoing projects and review of
future project selection.

In FY2012, NOAA provided another $200,000 to SARP to continue
restoration work with a focus on the South Atlantic and Cape Fear
watershed in North Carolina.

In addition to funding on-the-ground habitat protection and restoration
projects, NOAA provides approximately $5,000 each year to support the
continued operation of SARP.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

NOAA Helps Rescue North Carolina’s
“Living Dune”

Located on the Outer Banks, North Carolina, Jockey’s Ridge is the tallest
active sand dune system in the eastern United States. Jockey’s Ridge

is often referred to as “The Living Dune” because shifting winds are
constantly reshaping it. However, damage to the dunes has allowed sand
to blow directly on the fringing salt marsh, making it susceptible to wave
and wind erosion.

NOAA Fisheries partnered with the Southeast Aquatics Resources
Partnership, the North Carolina Coastal Federation, the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service, North Carolina Division of Marine Fisheries, The
Nature Conservancy, and Friends of Jockey’s Ridge to participate in the
Jockey’s Ridge Living Shoreline and Oyster Reef Restoration Project.

As a part of this multi-year conservation project, NOAA helped to
construct a low-profile breakwater sill, oyster reefs and planted native
grasses to reduce shoreline erosion and enhance the habitat for seabirds,
fish, crustaceans, oysters and other mollusks.

The project area is the documented environment for more than 75
species, some of which are threatened or endangered.

This project was highlighted as one of NFHP’s “10 Waters to Watch” in
2009.

http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/protection/nthap/livingduness.html

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership

NOAA was a strong supporter in the development of the Atlantic Coastal
Fish Habitat Partnership (ACFHP), a coast-wide collaborative effort to
accelerate the conservation of habitat for native Atlantic coastal, estuarine-
dependent, and diadromous fish. This partnership extends from Maine to

the Florida Keys.

Leadership in ACFHP

NOAA is a voting member on the ACFHP Steering Committee, and
also participates on the ACFHP Science and Data Committee, Finance
Committee, Project Endorsement Workgroup, and the Project Selection
Workgroup.

Recognizing the overlap of many coastal fish habitat partnerships, NOAA
ensured the efficient use and leverage of resources by working with

SARP and ACFHP to develop collaboration opportunities between the
partnerships.

Technical expertise:

NOAA staff has significantly contributed to the development of the
ACFHP Strategic Plan which specifies fish habitat types that are a priority
for the Partnership, threats to those habitats and actions that can be
undertaken to conserve those habitats. As a member of the Science and
Data Committee, NOAA committed significant staff resources to assist

in the development of the Fish/Habitat Matrix, the resource document
that describes the specific habitat needs of approximately 120 Atlantic
estuarine and diadromous fish species.

Financial support:

NOAA has provided funding in support of many ACFHP habitat
conservation projects. NOAA partnered with the State of Massachusetts
and other non-governmental organizations in the development of a pilot
project to install and monitor the success of conservation moorings in the
reestablishment of eel grass habitats that were scoured out by traditional
boat mooring systems—the first project to receive an endorsement from
ACFHP as a project that fulfilled actions within their Strategic Plan.

Catch of the day: Striped Bass

NOAA is currently partnering with ACFHP to transfer this technology
to Mid-Atlantic waters to demonstrate its ability to conserve fish habitats
and provide outreach to the boating community to seek voluntary use of
this mooring technology. NOAA provided $15,000 to the Massachusetts
conservation mooring project, and another $20,000 in 2012 to develop a
similar project in the Mid-Atlantic region.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

Protecting Eelgrass Habitat Using
Conservation Moorings

NOAA partnered with the Town of Tisbury, Massachusetts Division
of Marine Fisheries, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and The
Nature Conservancy to protect important eelgrass habitat within the
Town of Tisbury, MA by replacing traditional boat moorings with
alternative moorings.

Eelgrass is an extremely valuable spawning and nursery habitat for a
variety of fish and shellfish species, including winter flounder, summer
flounder and bay scallop. It also is an important primary producer
supporting the base of the food chain. Throughout Massachusetts and
the Northeast, eelgrass meadows have been declining over the past 20
years. The decline is primarily from deteriorating water quality, but also
as a result of a wide range of physical alterations such as dredging and
filling, as well as boating related impacts.

Visible scars in the eelgrass habitat
from use of traditional chain boat
moorings in MA. Eelgrass habitat is vulnerable from a number of boating related
activities, including the use of traditional chain moorings. Traditional
chain moorings, when placed within or next to eelgrass beds, can
severely damage habitat through scour. The disturbance to the seafloor
by mooring chains also suspends sediment and decreases water clarity,
which prevents light from reaching eelgrass.

What are conservation moorings?

Conservation mooring systems are designed to avoid contact with the
seafloor, often through the use of flexible, floatable lines. Depending
on the substrate, helical anchors may be used in place of a traditional

concrete mooring block in order to reduce the footprint within eelgrass
or shellfish habitat.

To determine the level of eelgrass recovery once conservation moorings
have been deployed, researchers from NOAA, the Massachusetts
Division of Marine Fisheries and the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency are conducting long-term monitoring. of the effectiveness of
this technology as a coastal resource management tool.

0Old style chain drag mooring
responsible for damage to valuable
eelgrass habitat.

This project was endorsed by the Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat
Partnership as a project that fulfilled actions within their Strategic Plan.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

Fish Habitat Partnerships in Alaska

Kenai Fish Habitat Partnership, Mat-Su Fish Habitat Partnership,
and Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership

In response to the National Board’s concern over the number of what were
considered smaller partnerships in Alaska, NOAA, in partnership with
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the State of Alaska, formed a state-
wide umbrella group to coordinate the administrative and data needs of
all the Alaska fish habitat partnerships.

NOAA has also supported the two candidate partnerships in Alaska:
the Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnership (SEAKFHP) and Salmon
In The City. NOAA is working with the SEAKFHP to gain recognized
partnership status.

Leadership in Alaska partnerships

AKR staff participate on steering committees of three of the four
recognized Alaska partnerships (Kenai Fish Habitat Partnership, Mat-
Su Fish Habitat Partnership, and Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat
Partnership).

Technical expertise:

NOAA has dedicated considerable staff time and technical expertise for
the Strategic Planning processes for the Alaska partnerships, including
drafting portions of the Strategic Plans and setting priorities. NOAA
continues to support these partnerships through active participation in
activities such as planning and execution of symposia to share the results
of activities funded by the partnerships.

Financial support:

In support of SEAKFHP, NOAA provided $85,000 of Sustainable Salmon
Funds to the Alaska Department of Fish and Game in 2011 to acquire

a half-time coordinator. NOA A’s contribution leveraged an additional
$30,000 in matching funds from Trout Unlimited. Through this support,
NOAA is assisting SEAKFHP as the partnership develops a strategic plan
that identifies conservation and restoration priorities.

Mat-Su restoration volunteers plant Hawaii Fish Habitat Partnership

gD G (LI Bl s NOAA worked with the Hawaii Fish Habitat Partnership as they were de-
veloping their application to the National Fish Habitat Board to broaden
the Partnership’s geographic focus from predominantly freshwater to one
that includes freshwater, estuarine, and marine fish habitats. NOAA’s lead-
ership on the National Fish Habitat Board was pivotal in encouraging the
Partnership to take this step, and NOAA staff in the Pacific Islands Region
have been providing technical assistance to support the broadened focus.
As a result, a key aspect of the Partnership’s strategic plan is implementing
the “Ahupuaa Approach”—a ridge-to-reef view of aquatic ecosystems in
Hawaii.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

California Fish Passage Forum

NOAA has actively worked with the California Fish Passage Forum since
2009 to protect and revitalize anadromous fish populations. Through this
collaboration, the Fish Passage Forum has developed criteria and a model
to prioritize over 19,000 barriers identified in the California Passage
Assessment Database and finalized a 5 year strategic plan. NOAA has
also supported a fish passage barrier removal project on Connor Creek
that opened previously inaccessible high quality spawning and rearing
habitat for threatened coho salmon.

Coastal & Marine Fish Habitat Protection with the
National Fish and Wildlife Foundation

Recognizing the limited funding opportunities specifically dedicated

to voluntary approaches to coastal habitat protection, NOAA provided
$150,000 to the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) in 2011
to establish the National Fish Habitat Partnership Coastal & Marine Fish
Habitat Protection grant. Through this new funding opportunity, NOAA
and NFWF will fund projects that promote the protection of coastal and
marine fish habitats through the NFHP fish habitat partnerships using
voluntary and non-regulatory approaches that maintain, or prevent the
decline of, aquatic habitat and aquatic resources that depend on those
habitats. The funding policy required that applicants obtain letters

of support and/or endorsement from one of the NFHP fish habitat
partnerships. Through this process, the fish habitat partnerships received
greater visibility among other coastal fish habitat organizations and
endorsed nine proposed projects. Final project selection will occur in the
fall of 2012.

CA

Stream habitat, Yreka,

For more information on the NFHP Coastal & Marine Fish Habitat
Protection funding opportunity, visit www.nfwf.org/nthpcoastal

Mobilize and focus national and local support for
achieving fish habitat conservation goals

NOAA has implemented many national and regional initiatives since
2006 to protect, restore, and enhance fish habitat, including strengthening
and building new partnerships with local organizations.

Cape Fear River Partnership

In 2011, NOAA initiated the formation of the Cape Fear River
Partnership, comprised of key federal, state, local, academic, industry,
and non-governmental organizations in the Cape Fear River basin with
keen interests and specific expertise in fish passage, habitat conservation,
and water quality solutions. Recognizing the economic, ecological, social,
— o and cultural importance of migratory fish in the Cape Fear River, and
Annual Striped Bass Tournament on the striving to create a spirit of focused collaboration that transcends political
Cape Fear River, NC boundaries, the multiple stakeholders comprising the Cape Fear River
Partnership are developing a Cape Fear River Basin Action Plan.

e = e

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |



www.nfwf.org/nfhpcoastal



September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

The plan outlines specific actions the partners will implement within the
Cape Fear River basin to improve conditions for migratory fish.

The Cape Fear River Basin Action Plan is conceived as a set of specific
actions that can be taken, separately and yet in parallel, by the partnership
members to restore fish passage and improve habitat and water quality to
revitalize populations of migratory fish and improve the overall condition
of the river for the benefit of human communities.

The plan includes actions that address migratory fish issues from the
headwaters of the Deep and Haw Rivers to the mouth of the Cape Fear

The newly-built rock arch ramp for River in Brunswick County. The plan also includes actions designed to
fish passage at Lock & Dam #1 on the quantitatively and qualitatively measure the socioeconomic benefits of
Cape Fear River. the conservation actions contemplated within this plan, and to effectively

communicate those benefits to the public. NOAA anticipates the
completion of this voluntary, partnership-based action plan in early 2013.

The Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership is an active participant
in the Cape Fear River Partnership. NOAA has also enlisted SARP’s
expertise to identify high priority migratory fish habitat conservation
projects within the Cape Fear River watershed. These projects will be
funded through $90,000 provided by NOAA to SARP in 2012.

For more information on the Cape Fear River Partnership,
visit http://www.habitat.noaa.gov/protection/capefear/

Measure and communicate the status and
needs of aquatic habitats

NOAA has applied strong leadership, technical expertise, and funding
for NFHP’s scientific and communication activities. In 2012, NOAA
provided over $220,000 in staff time and direct contracts in support of
the NFHP Science and Data Committee. NOAA staft has contributed
editorial and design support for many NFHP outreach products.

Through a Fish’s Eye: the Status of Fish Habitats in the
United States, 2010

€ Tosmmsormsnomns Lo gig NOAA provided extensive leadership and expertise in the production of
M;Jimgfs FASH the 2010 National Fish Habitat Assessment and accompanying report,
F including in-kind support of $616,000. NOAA developed and completed
the coastal portion of the assessment and a separate assessment for
Alaska, both of which were incorporated into the Through a Fish’s Eye
Through A Fish’s Eye: The Status of Fish report released by NFHP in April 2011. For the coastal assessment, the
Habitats in the United States, 2010 NOAA team refined existing NOAA coastal boundary data and analyzed

disturbance variables occurring within the coastal watersheds.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

In addition to its leadership on the coastal assessment, NOAA

coordinated the final development of the Through a Fish’s Eye report.

MR NOAA managed the design, layout and production of the report and
created and implemented an outreach campaign for the report release.
' NOAA provided $15,000 in 2010 and 2011 for printing and layout of
2 the report and for re-printing of the Action Plan. NOAA’s outreach
campaign included the development of state fact sheets that summarize
the assessment results and key fishing and fish habitat facts for each state.
These products have been used by state, federal, and non-governmental
organizations to convey the importance of fish habitat, highlight key

threats to these habitats, and inform state and federal managers on the
many ways that NFHP benefits fish habitats.

Maryland’s recreational and
commercial fishing industry, which
generate more than $600 million
annually to the state, depends on
fish habitats that are on average at
high and very high risk of current
habitat degradation.

Additional assessment support

Through the PMEP Science and Technology committee, NOAA is leading
the development of a plan to assess fish habitat in nearshore marine and

& estuarine areas along California, Oregon and Washington. The assessment
will examine the distribution and density of fish and their habitats, as

well as threats to those habitats. The assessment will also identify priority
needs for fish habitat conservation. NOAA is working with the PMEP
coordinator to compile resources needed to support the assessment.

of spawning American s
American ecls and Adantic sturgeon.

ry
ughly 15 to 20

One of fifty state-by-state fact sheets
designed by NOAA to accompany the
Status of Fish Habitats Report. Since 2008, NOAA has assisted the SARP Science and Data Committee
in their use of the extensive coastal habitat and fishery geospatial data
available throughout the Southeast. This data is used to conduct a coastal
assessment. The Science and Data Committee members are currently
prioritizing these available data into a comprehensive, unified coastal
assessment tool to help SARP further refine science-based decisions in
achieving goals and objectives of the Southeast Aquatic Habitat Plan and
NFHAP. Additional products NOAA has developed through the SARP
Science and Data Committee include:

1. ariparian assessment analysis used to assess the current
condition of riparian habitat within a 30 meter bufter along
streams and rivers throughout the SARP region;

2. the Southern Instream Flow Network which addresses the

impacts of flow alterations in the southeast region’s aquatic

ecosystems;

a southeastern aquatic nuisance species brochure; and

4. an assessment of the Tennessee/Cumberland/Ohio River
Basins.

W

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 |

Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

NOAA HABITAT BLUEPRINT

A framework to improve habitat for fisheries, marine life, and coastal communities NOAA Habitat Blu ep rint

Provide national leadership and coordination to
conserve fish habitats

Support for the National Fish Habitat Board

NOAA has provided extensive and significant leadership and
coordination for the National Fish Habitat Partnership through its
primary Board coordination support since the Board’s creation in

2006. NOAA staft provide leadership support to the Board Chair and
Vice-Chair on Board operations primarily through three annual Board
meetings and one annual conference call. NOAA staft also leads Board
staff coordination across committees and projects. NOAA does this by
establishing a standing Board meeting schedule to ensure the Board
tulfills its budget, oversight, and direction setting responsibilities; by
ensuring the delivery of high quality, timely materials necessary for
effective Board meetings and decision-making; and by ensuring the
establishment of annual Board priorities for implementing the National
Fish Habitat Action Plan. NOAA staff also provide primary staff support
to the Chair, Vice-Chair and Executive Leadership Team on the regular
review of Board membership. NOAA’s leadership in implementing strong
operation systems ensures transparent Board decision-making, which is
critical to the success of a partnership-based effort such as the National
Fish Habitat Partnership.

PURPOSE VISION

think and act strategically across

programs and with partner

organizations to address the growing
challenge of coastal and marine habitat ==

loss and degradation.
OUTCOMES

needs and enjoys. recreation

Why do we need the Habitat Blueprint now?

Protecting our natural infrastructure—our global life support
systems—is vital to protecting our communities and their economies
as well as fisheries and recreational opportunities along our coasts.
With continued widespread loss and deterioration of coastal and
marine habitats, we are in danger of losing this infrastructure.
Congress has charged the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA) with protecting habitat for fish, threatened and
endangered species, marine mammals, and other natural resources
within the coastal zone.

Now that we are turning the corner on ending overfishing, we need to
increase the sustainability and productivity of our fisheries by focusing
on the habitat that fish need to spawn and grow, as well as protecting
the coastal resources on which our communities depend.
Recognizing the need for more concerted efforts to conserve

(protect and restore) habitat, we developed the NOAA Habitat
Blueprint to build on existing programs, prioritize our activities, and
guide our future actions. Simply put—we are improving the way we
do business.

The Habitat Blueprint provides a Healthy habitats that sustain resilient and thriving marine
LOI\E (e BIeToI R RIENENTCII R CIMNOLVR (I and coastal resources, communities, and economies.

We will increase the effectiveness of our Sustainable and abundant fish populations
efforts to improve habitat conditions for Recovered threatened and endangered species

fisheries, and coastal and marine life, Protected coastal and marine areas and habitats at risk habitat that fish need to Spawn and §row, as well as

along with other economic, cultural, Resilient coastal communities

and environmental benefits our society Increased coastal/marine tourism, access, and the CoaStal resources on Wthh our communities

In 2011, NOAA’s growing interest in improving
the sustainability and productivity of our Nation’s
fisheries led to the creation of the NOAA Habitat
Blueprint. Through this new effort, NOAA has
made a concerted effort to focus on conserving the

depend. The NOAA Habitat Blueprint provides a
forward looking framework for NOAA to think
and act strategically across programs and with
partner organizations to address the growing
challenge of coastal and marine habitat loss and
degradation. This framework builds on existing
programs, prioritizes our activities, and guides our
future actions.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |





September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

Through the NOAA Habitat Blueprint, NOAA is implementing many of
the actions called for in the NFHP MOU. The MOU directs NOAA to:

« ensure that its actions are consistent with and support the
priorities of the Action Plan to improve the efficiency
of its operations, and ensure effective coordination with partners
and stakeholders;

« coordinate its activities in support of the Action Plan with other
interagency efforts, such as the National Ocean Policy;

 and to ensure that its policies further the goals of the Action
Plan.

The principles and approaches of the Habitat Blueprint also support the
priority objectives of the National Ocean Policy, including for regional
ecosystem protection and restoration, increased knowledge to improve
management and policy decisions, and better coordinated and supported
regional management of the nation’s oceans, coasts and Great lakes.

For more information on NOAA’s Habitat Blueprint,
visit www.habitat.noaa.gov/blueprint

Looking Forward: NOAA’s Actions to Support the
Goals of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan,
2013-2014

NOAA plans to increase the effectiveness of our habitat conservation
programs and improve coordination with other federal agencies, states, and
non-governmental partners in the next two years through many national
and regional initiatives.

NOAA Habitat Blueprint: Habitat Focus Areas

Through the NOAA Habitat Blueprint, NOAA will select habitat focus

areas in each of its coastal regions by identifying spatial intersections where
collaboration among NOAA management and science programs and
external partners will address multiple habitat-dependent objectives. These
priorities will leverage additional resources and achieve conservation results
with greater efficiency.

- \ National Fish Habitat Assessment
Coral Conservation in Guam is a NOAA will continue its leadership in the development of the coastal

Regional Initiative of the NOAA portion of the next National Fish Habitat Assessment. The coastal team has
Habitat Blueprint. already begun work on the assessment, which will include a more robust

assessment model that incorporates additional information on physical,
temporal, and biological components of fish habitat. This assessment will be
regionally based to take advantage of regional variability and associated data
sets. The assessment is anticipated to be completed in 2015.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |



www.habitat.noaa.gov/blueprint



September 2012 | Supporting the National Fish Habitat Action Plan FY 2006 - 2012

Interagency Coastal Wetlands Workgroup
NOAA is a co-lead with the Environmental Protection Agency of the
Interagency Coastal Wetlands Workgroup. This workgroup, founded
on the 2008 report published by NOAA and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service Status and Trends of Wetlands in the Coastal Watersheds of the
b Eastern United States, 1998 to 2004, also includes representatives from
‘STATIFJW-[EALRSIS\IDS the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and
INTHE CO me saTes the U.S. Geological Survey. In the coming year, the working group will
1998 tr 2004 continue looking at coastal wetlands across the country to determine what
strategies can be used to better conserve these valuable fish habitats. The
working group is using the foundation built from the past 3 years’ work
conducting seven workshops around the country to create an analytical
framework to develop national strategies to better conserve coastal
wetlands. The results from the application of the framework to select
coastal wetlands in the Gulf of Mexico, and along the Atlantic and Pacific
coasts will be used to provide national coordination for conserving coastal

Status and Trends of Wetlands in the wetland habitats.

So.asml Watersheds of the Eastern Increased Non-federal Stakeholder Engagement
nited States, 1998 to 2004 . . : : :
NOAA will work closely with the recreational fishing community and

stakeholders such as seafood distributors and processors to prioritize
habitat conservation efforts and leverage resources to achieve strong,
vibrant, and sustainable fisheries. Action will be taken to identify and
address discrete conservation priorities and needs, such as funding
collaborative scientific studies to clarify the linkages between habitat,
forage fish, and species of recreational and commercial value.

U.S. Department of Commerce | National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration |






United States Department of the Interior

FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE
Washington, D.C. 20240

In Reply Refer to:
FWS/AFHC/052902

Memorandum DEC 2 1 2012

To: Secretary ﬁ//om(/?
Through: PrincipafNDeputy Assistant Secretary for Fish and Wildlife and Parks[]b
From: Director WC{_‘X_‘__

Subject: National Fish Habitat Action Plan Secretarial MOU Report

The National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan) is a science-based, partnership driven
approach to implement Strategic Habitat Conservation for aquatic resources. It provides a
national strategy to address aquatic habitat from the interior to the oceans and is implemented
through the voluntary and non-regulatory participation of all levels of government and the
private sector. The Action Plan supports cooperative, proactive, aquatic habitat protection and
restoration goals at multiple geographic scales.

In March 2012, the Secretaries of the Departments of Agriculture, Commerce, and Interior
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for implementing the Action Plan. The
purpose of the MOU is to promote collaborative, science-based conservation by ensuring that the
component agencies, bureaus, and offices of the Departments support efforts to implement the
Action Plan in accordance with their respective agency missions, policies, and regulations. The
document also outlines the importance of communication and coordination among the
Departments to further improve the quality of the nation’s aquatic resources.

Consequently, the Secretaries agreed that all applicable bureaus, agencies, and offices
implementing the MOU would report on their accomplishments and progress towards achieving
Action Plan goals within 180 days of the MOU signature date. Furthermore, subsequent reports
would be produced and provided to the Secretaries at 2 year intervals thereafter.

The attached National Fish Habitat Action Plan Secretarial MOU Report is a brief account of the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s (Service) activities in support of the Action Plan between 2006
and 2012. The report highlights the Service’s leadership role in developing and supporting Fish
Habitat Partnerships recognized under the Action Plan, funding and staff support provided by the
Service and the planning and management of on-the-ground habitat conservation activities
undertaken by multiple Service programs and external partners.





It is intended to provide a qualitative baseline for future cooperation and coordination among

agencies and their partners and is organized by the four key implementation strategies of the
Action Plan:

* Supporting existing fish habitat partnerships and fostering new efforts;

* Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for achieving fish habitat
conservation goals;

* Measuring and communicating the status and needs of aquatic habitats; and

* Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats.

This report, along with reports from applicable offices and bureaus of the Departments of the
Interior, Agriculture and Commerce, will illustrate the depth of Federal agency involvement in
conserving, protecting, and restoring aquatic habitat across the nation for the benefit of the
American people.

If you have questions, please contact Mr. Jeff Underwood, Acting Assistant Director, Fisheries
and Habitat Conservation at (202)208-6393, or Mr. Tom Busiahn, the Service’s Action Plan
Coordinator, at (703)358-2056.

Attachment





Report to the Secretary
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Progress and Accomplishments in Implementing
the National Fish Habitat Action Plan

October 2012

In March 2012, the Secretaries of Agriculture, Commerce, and the Interior signed a
memorandum of understanding to promote collaborative, science-based conservation of the
nation’s waterways and fisheries through the National Fish Habitat Partnership and the
implementation of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.

The National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan) provides a national strategy to address
aquatic habitat from the interior to the oceans. The Action Plan is a science-based, voluntary,
and non-regulatory effort providing a nationwide strategy to harness the energies, expertise, and
existing programs of Federal and state agencies, conservation organizations, foundations, and
individuals. It supports cooperative, proactive, aquatic habitat protection and restoration goals at
multiple geographic scales.

The mission of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan is to protect, restore and enhance the
nation’s fish and aquatic communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation
and improve the quality of life for the American people.

The goals of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan are:
1. Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems.
2. Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely affected.
3. Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats to improve the overall
health of fish and other aquatic organisms.
4. Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a broad natural diversity of
fish and other aquatic species.

This report highlights agency accomplishments and progress through September 2012 and
provides a qualitative baseline for increased future cooperation and coordination among agencies
and their partners. This report is organized by the four key implementation strategies of the
Action Plan:

Supporting existing fish habitat partnerships and fostering new efforts (page 2).
e Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for achieving fish habitat
conservation goals (page 3).
e Measuring and communicating the status and needs of aquatic habitats (page 4).
e Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats (page 7).

Page 1 of 10





Foster New and Support Existing FHPs

National Fish Habitat Action Plan -Implementation Strategy #1: Support existing Fish

Habitat Partnerships and foster new efforts

. . . NFHAP Goal
Agency Project Title Timeline Addressed
Project Funding Support 2006-present | 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

e The US Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) has provided coordination and funding

FWS

in the development phase of all 18 recognized Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPS)
and 5 candidate FHPs recognized under the National Fish Habitat Partnership’s
(NFHP) Action Plan.

Between 2006 and 2012, FWS provided $18.9 million in project funding to
implement fish habitat conservation projects that address FHP priorities. Those
funds were matched with $49 million in partner contributions and financed a
total of 432 projects in 46 states.

Since 2005, more than $5.6 million has been granted through the Multistate
Conservation Grant (MSCG) program to develop FHPs and increase scientific
understanding through the NFHP. The MSCG program is jointly administered
by the FWS and the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies.

FWS

Fish Habitat Partnership (FHP) Coordination 2006-present | 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

At the national level, FWS provides full-time staff support for National Fish
Habitat Board activities and priorities.

At the regional level, approximately $1 million is allocated annually for FHP
support. This funding provides for the development and operational costs of
FHPs including coordination, meeting and travel expenses, strategic planning,
and development of scientific capabilities.

FWS personnel also serve as primary support staff to 7 of 18 FHPs and some
FHPs also make use of FWS facilities, databases, supplies, equipment and
technical expertise.

Page 2 of 10






Mobilize and Focus National Support

National Fish Habitat Action Plan -Implementation Strategy #2: Mobilize and focus national
and local support for achieving fish habitat conservation goals

Agency

NFHAP Goal

Project Title Timeline tiresscH

FWS

Communicating NFHP's Economic, Human
Health and Environmental Value

2005- present 2

Brief Project or Program Description

The FWS is committed to communicating the economic, human health, and
environmental value of a science-based and voluntary approach to aquatic
resource conservation. FWS regularly provides technical and administrative
support at the regional and national level to execute Congressional briefings and
respond to questions from members of Congress.

Regional and national staff work with national conservation organizations to
communicate accomplishments and the value of continued Congressional
support to promote economic, human health, and environmental value in their
respective districts.

To this end, the FWS also uses a portion of NFHP funding for the development
and distribution of outreach materials that tell NFHP’s story to citizens, partners,
and Congressional members.

Recent publications include the 2nd edition of the National Fish Habitat Action
Plan, the annual NFHP Update, a one-page fact sheet, and a national assessment
of aquatic habitats titled Through a Fish’s Eye: The Status of Fish Habitats in
the United States 2010.

Page 3 of 10






Measure and Communicate Aquatic Habitat Needs

National Fish Habitat Action Plan -Implementation Strategy #3: Measure and communicate the
status and needs of aquatic habits.

Agency

NFHAP Goal

Project Title Timeline dres=cd

FWS

Habitat Conservation Decision-Making Tools Ongoing 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

The FWS’s Fish Passage program created and continues to develop the Geospatial
Fisheries Information Network (GeoFin), a tool used to identify fish barrier
locations. Through GeoFIN, the aquatic conservation community and the general
public have access to geospatial web tools for accessing and analyzing a wide
range of spatial data.

The system can be integrated with the national aquatic habitat assessment to
support strategic aquatic conservation initiatives and to facilitate decision making.
The system may also act as a catalyst for engaging potential partners, enhancing
awareness of aquatic habitat issues and garnering public support for aquatic
resource conservation.

GeoFIN is available to all FHPs and the public at https://ecos.fws.gov/geofin.

FWS

Coordination of Midwest/Great Plains Habitat
Assessments

2010 - present | 1,2, 3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

Since 2010, FWS has coordinated an effort by the Midwest FHPs in cooperation
with the Plains and Prairie Pothole Landscape Conservation Cooperative (LCC) to
complete habitat condition assessments for all or part of 7 FHPs covering all or
part of 24 states.

The LCC contributed $383,000, matching more than $1.4M in partner
contributions, to complete the assessments and a series of GIS based support tools.

These products will allow Midwestern FHPs and individual partners to assess
habitat condition and help predict the outcomes of future restoration work.
Additionally, socioeconomic data will be added to the GIS-based support tools, in
2013 as the result of an interagency agreement between the Plains and Prairie
Pothole LCC and the U.S. Geological Survey.

Page 4 of 10




https://ecos.fws.gov/geofin



FWS

National Assessment of Aquatic Habitats 2006-2011 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

Since 2006, FWS has provided $777,000 to support ground-breaking scientific
analysis of landscape effects on the condition of fish habitats. The research, led by
Michigan State University Department of Fisheries and Wildlife and a team comprised
of staff from NOAA and FWS, works on behalf of the National Fish Habitat Board’s
Science and Data Committee. In 2010, the Board published the first national
assessment of aquatic habitats titled Through a Fish’s Eye: The Status of Fish
Habitats in the United States 2010.

FWS

Communicating Aquatic Habitat Needs Ongoing 2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

FWS biologists have shared information on NFHP at many national and regional
meetings, including several symposia at annual meetings of the American Fisheries
Society. A sampling of others includes:

e Desert Fishes Council, November 2007

e Midwest Fish and Wildlife conference, December 2007

e National Association of Abandoned Mine Land Programs, October 2008

e Land Trust Alliance, October 2009

e Native American Fish and Wildlife Society, June 2010

e National Fisheries Friends Partnership, October 2010

e Recreational Boating and Fishing Foundation, May 2011

Page 5 of 10






FWS

FHP Coordination and Cooperation with LCCs 2010 - present | 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

Conservation challenges in the U.S. are too large for any single entity to address
alone. The Service encourages collaborative efforts between Fish Habitat
Partnerships (FHPs) and Landscape Conservation Cooperatives (LCC). LCCs use
a science-based, partnership approach similar to NFHP’s; however, the LCC’s
main role is to provide science and technical expertise to support conservation
planning at landscape scales.

Targeted communication efforts, financial contributions and staff provided by the
Service have facilitated collaborative relationships between FHPs and LCCs. Of
the 18 recognized FHPs under the Action Plan:

o Eleven have formal communications with one or more LCCs about science
and data needs,

o Six FHPs have formal representation on LCC governing or technical
bodies, and

o Five FHPs have collaborated with LCCs on projects that involve LCC
technical expertise and were supported by LCC funding.

Approximately $395,000 in joint project funds has been used to develop
standardized monitoring strategies and hydrologic data. A portion of the funding
was also used to process and analyze monitoring data for conservation decision-
making.

Page 6 of 10






Provide National L eadership and Coordination

National Fish Habitat Action Plan -Implementation Strategy #4: Provide national leadership
and coordination to conserve fish habitats.

Agency

NFHAP Goal

Project Title Timeline tiresscH

FWS

FWS Senior Leadership Ongoing N/A

Brief Project or Program Description

The senior leadership involvement in key national level roles and the commitment to
successfully implement a partner-led, science-based, non-regulatory approach to
conservation is evidence of the FWS’s commitment to aquatic habitat conservation.
The Director of the FWS or his designee serves as a member of the NFHP Board and
Executive Leadership Team. The FWS’s senior leadership, and senior leadership from
other Federal agencies, has helped facilitate cooperation among governments, NGOs,
and civic associations.

FWS

Funding Board Activities Ongoing N/A

Brief Project or Program Description

A portion of the FWS’s annual appropriation is allocated for the operations of the
National Fish Habitat Board. This financial commitment makes it possible for the
Board to fulfill its responsibilities and directly or indirectly support the efforts of all
federal agencies, bureaus, and offices that implement the Action Plan.

The National Fish Habitat Board is responsible for promoting, overseeing, and
coordinating implementation of the Action Plan. Their activities include:

e Establishing national measures for success and evaluation criteria guidelines
for FHPs;

e Oversight and execution of national science and data committee activities;
e Reporting NFHP accomplishments to Congress, states and other partners; and

e Convening quarterly Board meetings to coordinate agency and stakeholder
involvement

Page 7 of 10






Lead Agency for the Federal Caucus 2005-present N/A

Brief Project or Program Description

e The Service has been the lead agency for the Federal Caucus since 2005 and
continues its leadership role by providing staff support to coordinate Federal
Caucus activities.

e The Federal Caucus was established to coordinate efforts among Federal agencies
implementing the Action Plan. Caucus members meet quarterly to identify
opportunities for Federal agency involvement and intersections between on-going
aquatic habitat conservation efforts. However, Caucus members do not commit
additional resources outside of the mission, goals, and funding obligations of their
respective agencies.

FWS |« Specifically, the Federal Caucus was created to:

o Provide communication links among federal agencies cooperating under
the National Partnership

o Provide a mechanism through which federal partners can jointly identify
strategies and resources to support goals of the National Fish Habitat
Partnership

o Ensure that the National Partnership helps agencies achieve their missions
by enhancing partnerships and improving measurement of results and
performance; and

o Enhance networking and collaboration among federal partners, the National
Fish Habitat Board, and other partners implementing the National Fish
Habitat Action Plan.

Lead Agency for FHP Coordination at the

National Level 2005-present N/A

Brief Project or Program Description

FWS | Since the establishment of the Action Plan, the FWS has provided full-time staff
support to the NFHP Board. Headquarters staff acts as a liaison between the FWS, the
Board, and individual partnerships while also facilitating Board operations and
activities.

National level staff support includes:

Page 8 of 10






Advising FHPs on strategic plan development;
Developing policies, guidance, and procedures used for FHP governance;
Leading the project review, prioritization, and selection process;

Maintaining accurate FHP records (i.e. contacts, performance metrics, funding
history); and

Facilitating communication among FHPs through bi-monthly FHP
coordination calls.

Page 9 of 10






This page left intentionally blank.

Page 10 of 10





\ENT OF
S\ l///%

CONSERVING

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service provides
funds, leadership, and technical assistance to

support the operation and development of Fish

Habitat Partnerships, the primary work units of

Salmon in the City

Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnershi

North American Salmon
Stronghold Partnership

GeographlclSpecles Based Partnerships

Lakes Basin FHP
Plains FHP

Denotes "Candidate”

Fish Habitat Partnership Hawaii

Each FWS Region receives funds to assist
Fish Habitat Partnerships, and tailors its
approach to meet the unigue needs within
each Region. FWS Regional coordinators and
field offices work closely with Partnerships to
identify and implement projects that address
strategic conservation priorities. FWS staff
members serve as primary coordinators of
several Fish Habitat Partnerships.

Fish Habitat Partnerships
January 2012

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service

NATIONAL

FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

the National Fish Habitat Action Plan. There
are currently 18 recognized Fish Habitat
Partnerships, encompassing all 50 States.

NATIONA

FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

2§

Lower Mississippi River -

Conservation Committes
{k kn’\f‘- -t
= e

=

Puerto Rico & U.S. Virgin Islands

FWS helps to ensure that Partnerships
effectively conserve fish and aquatic
communities. Operations of Partnerships
include planning, project development and
implementation, coordination, monitoring,
evaluation, communication and outreach.
FWS does not fund all facets of Partnership
operations; support also comes from other
Federal and State agencies, Native American
governments, conservation organizations, and
private interests.





Fish Habitat Partnership
(Date of Board recognition)

Web page

Southeast Aquatic Resources Partnership (October
2007)

http://southeastaquatics.net

Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture (October 2007)

http://lwww.easternbrooktrout.org/

Matanuska-Susitna Basin Salmon Habitat
Partnership (October 2007)

http://www.nature.org/wherewew
ork/northamerica/states/alaska/pr
eserves/art18561.html

Driftless Area Restoration Effort (October 2007)

http://www.darestoration.com/

Western Native Trout Initiative (February 2008)

www.westernnativetrout.org

Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnership
(May 2008)

http://www.swakcc.org/

Desert Fish Habitat Partnership (March 2009)

http://www.nature.nps.gov/water/
DFH_partnership.cfm

Midwest Glacial Lakes Partnership (March 2009)

www.midwestglaciallakes.org

Hawaii Fish Habitat Partnership (March 2009)

http://www.fws.gov/pacificislands/
hfhp.html

Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership (October
2009)

www.atlanticfishhabitat.org

Ohio River Basin Fish Habitat Partnership (October
2009)

http://science.marshall.edu/jonest
/Ohi0%20river%20basin%20habi
tat/ORBmain.htm

Reservoir Fisheries Habitat Partnership (October
2009)

http://www.reservoirpartnership.o
rg/

Great Lakes Basin Fish Habitat Partnership
(October 2009)

http://www.fws.gov/midwest/GLB
FHP/

Great Plains Fish Habitat Partnership (October
2009)

www.prairiefish.org

Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership (January
2009)

http://lwww.kenaiwatershed.org/

Fishers and Farmers Partnership for the Upper
Mississippi River Basin (March 2010)

http://fishersandfarmers.org/

California Fish Passage Forum (March 2010)

http://www.calfish.org/Programs/
AdditionalPrograms/FishPassage
Forum/tabid/82/Default.aspx

Pacific Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat
Partnership (January 2012)

http://www.pacificfishhabitat.org






ENT OF
o »
e\l 9

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service

US. o,
\Y
o>

NATIONAL
=y BIFISH HABITAT
www.fishhabitat.org PARTNERSHIP

The New Triple Bottom Line
Healthy Habitats = Healthy People = Healthy Economy

ECONOMICS OF FISHERIES CONSERVATION THE POWER OF PARTNERS

* FWS provides seed money for fish habitat
conservation projects

.

It’s all in the numbers... Vo -

28:1 ROI ($28 generated /S
for every $1 taxpayer =
funds used)

* Strategic investments support priorities of 18
Fish Habitat Partnerships (FHPs)

* Regional FHPs leverage money with non-
federal contributions from State and local
governments, Tribes, non-Governmental
organizations, and landowners

$3.6 billion generated
annually

Supports 68,000 jobs y

NFHP ENVIRONMENTAL BENEFITS

* 342 fish habitat conservation projects restored
27,000 acres and 1,560 miles of rivers

NFHP ECONOMIC BENEFITS
* Direct economic impacts (wages and materials)
= $145 million and 1,099 jobs

* Eistimated long-term value of improved habitat
= $851 million, 19,259 jobs

1000 -

UNDERWATER, OUT-OF-SIGHT, OUT-OF-MIND
“Fish” projects provide so much more than just
benefits for fish.
* Reduced flood risk and maintenance costs
(e.g., roads and levees),

g 8

8

Investments
(=]
=

Dallars (in millions)

* Improved human health and quality of life,
and

g

$16M

FWS funds Parner funds  Economic Valua

* Increased property values

February 2012





Big Spring Branch, WI

Before

e Decreased property value e Limited economic value

e Limited recreational value e Increased flood risk

e Reduced water quallty * Limited aesthetic value

C 'In.F"' er H
at "y

5 Ivs All About Value

HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

* Increasing visitor revenue * Increasing property value

* Supporting 20,358 jobs * Restoring 27,000 acres with
* Restoring 1,560 miles with estimate value of $7.9 million

estimated value of $843.7 million






A way of life...

Alaska’s fish feed our forests, wildlife,

and people. Commercial and recreational
fisheries are worth billions of dollars
annually to the State’s economy and
produce 80% of the world’s supply of

wild sockeye, Chinook, and coho salmon.
Resilient fish populations—and the
habitats they depend on—are critical to the
continued vitality of Alaska’s economy and a
unique way of life valued by many.

..worth protecting

Alaska is currently the only state without
any fish listed on the Endangered Species
Act; however, localized declines are
occuring and populations are vulnerable
to the same stressors that have caused
declines in other regions. Partnerships
that strategically protect Alaska’s intact
habitats and restore degraded habitats can
help make the most of limited resources.

-t

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service

National Fish Habitat

Partnership at work in Alaska

Local efforts protecting, restoring, and
enhancing fish habitat i the last frontier

Recognized partnerships operating in Alaska

1. Mat-Su Basin Salmon Habitat Partnership

2. Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnershia
3. Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership

4. \Western Native Trout Initiative

Candidate Partnerships in (or of relevance) to Alaska:
5. Salmon in the City (Anchorage, Alaska)

6. Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnership 3
7. North American Salmon Stronghold Partnership

8. Pacific Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership

LI

" The need for active
- partnerships

Actlve and diverse partnerships
are essential to achieving fish

habitat conservation, due to

Alaska’s remoteness and other
challenging project logistics.

“Bugrst speed” by Chris Cilfone (2011 Alaska Fish Photo Contest)






g N WA W7 N R R A IS RN, Y CEAGAY. A

\ s Awards The U.S. Department of the Interior honored the Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat Partnersh|p with its Partners in; _
Conservation Award 4 The Wasilla Soil and Water Conservation District was awarded “Outreach and Educational
‘ Achievement in Support of Fish Habitat Conservation” for its work associated with the Mat-Su Basin Salmon Habitat Partnership «-

1"-_ R i b ol e oy LN . Tp Y 1 ™ ] 4y oy B, W N
e T i "_:#":"- 'F.-' R ' m%‘\\ \E\

L] - . =, T
'._. __,,-.'-
TA £t
ey . " L e
= T - ™ r
.. : & : ﬁl :
L5 Ty g -
"~ e - . i
L . e R % =
[ F e
- e
i - :;‘."_ "i_. L= &
- 'I'-'\-.--_:.:- - -
. o L
r
* 3 e s G ™
- - | " ‘h

. =, o e
“Reds heading to redds” in southwest Alaska by Todd Radenbaugh (2011 Alaska Fish Photo Contest).

sn“thwest Alaska Protecting Fish Habitats - Bristol Bay is home to the largest, most resilient sockeye salmon stock complexes

in the world. Oil and mineral development in Southwest Alaska pose a potential threat to the region's largely
+ intact fish habitat. The Southwest Partnership represents a diverse group of tribal, non-governmental, private, local, State, and Federal partners. The
= Partnership is actively working to protect intact salmon habitat, watersheds, and cultural and national heritage resources while maintaining access to
v regionally-important fisheries. For example, this partnership recently received a U.S. Department of the Interior “Partners in Conservation Award” for
- securing a conservation agreement protecting 21,000 acres of private in-holdings inside Wood-Tikchik State Park—the nation’s largest—from land use
g activities that might degrade sensitive fish habitats. Its “2011 Southwest Alaska Salmon Science Symposium: understanding habitat and the science
¢ of sustainability” is helping identify regional research needs related to salmon resiliency to focus the partnership’s future work.

Restoring fish passage - Of the hundreds of road culverts surveyed in the Mat-Su Borough, 65% impede salmon migrations. €2
While overall salmon numbers remain strong in the 24,000 square mile basin, localized habitat degradation and salmon =3

declines along the heavily populated southern border of the - - %

Borough spurred local partners to form the Mat-Su Salmon M t k -s t B (7

Habitat Partnership. Recently, the Mat-Su Borough matched a an"s a I'ISI na as'“ g
$51,155 in NFHAP funds with $52,000 to restore passage at the Weltin Way-Wasilla Creek stream crossing and revegetate  e=+
its banks with native plants. This project improved access to 15 miles of Wasilla Creek for native anadromous fishes.

Kenai Peni“sula ?ehs_toring s_tllg_?ml_)ank and in-st_rt_eamhhaKbitaFP- K_novvln _for its \;vAolrIdi(cIass sport
ishing and wildlife viewing opportunities, the Kenai Peninsula is one of Alaska’s premier . . .

*+= (destinations. Increasing population growth and development, and climate change, are high interest fish habitat issues in ng%ffg;n%%ggk
e thisregion. The Homer Soil and Water Conservation District, in partnership with the Alaska Department of Environmental Yasui (2011 Alaska

Vi Conservation, matched $9,100 in NFHAP funds with $34,825 to address water quality and habitat degradation associated Fish Photo Contest)
=" with the Watermelon Trail off-road vehicle crossmg at Beaver Creek. A tnbutary to the Anchor Rlver Beaver Creek is e
= : mousstre and provide mpor ant he salmon and char. e proje “., dt s

[ & ank at -

Alaska Regional Office
Cecil Rich, Alaska NFHP Coordinat8
011 E. Tudor. Rd

.+ Anchorage, Alaske99503
AT *'!E "~ (907) 786-8510 A,
o v s . cecil_rich@fs.gov
5 T ~F

it “hitp://alaska.fws.goV/fisheries/restoration/partnerships.htm
fa_t':fbook: http://www.facebook.com/USFWS.AK Fisheries Habitat





		FWS report - signed transmittal memo 12-21-2012.pdf

		DCN 052902 MOU Report to the Secretary

		DCN 052902 Appendix to Report

		FWS fact sheet on FHPs

		NFHP_Factsheet_2012

		R7_Alaska_FHPs_Factsheet






H. CDW

United States Department of the Interior

BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Washington, DC 20240

IN REPLY REFER TO:

92-00000
WTR-1.00

MEMORANDUM

To: Kenneth L. Salazar
Secretary of the Interior

0CT 22 70
Through: Anne J. Castle A_M_, @A/@

Assistant Secretary — Water and Science

gy el ot ol S 00T 18 201

Subject: Implementation of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan

On March 5, 2012, you signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the
Departments of the Interior, Agriculture, and Commerce implementing the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan (NFHAP). The MOU requires bureaus within Interior to report to their respective
Secretaries this year and at 2-year intervals, thereafter. The Bureau of Reclamation has been
participating in the Federal Caucus of the NFHAP for several years.

Guidance on formatting of the report and the various attachments was coordinated with the
Federal Caucus of the NFHAP, led by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, to ensure consistency
within the Department. Attached is our report of accomplishments under the NFHAP over the
last few years.

We look forward to continued participation in the Federal Caucus of the NFHAP and meeting
our responsibilities identified in the MOU. Please contact Art Coykendall in Reclamation’s
Office of Policy and Administration at acoykendall@usbr.gov or 303-445-2915, if you have any
questions or need additional information.

Attachment





Multi-Bureau NFHP Highlights

Submitted to the Secretary of the Department of the Interior
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

Foster New and Support Existing FHPs

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #1 -Support existing Fish Habitat Partnerships and foster new efforts.)

Agency

Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal Addressed

BOR

San Joaquin River Restoration Program 2006-present 2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

The San Joaquin River Restoration Program is a comprehensive, long-term effort to restore flows to the San Joaquin River from
Friant Dam to the confluence of the Merced River, in order to create a self-sustaining Chinook salmon fishery in the river, while
reducing or avoiding adverse water supply impacts from restoration flows. There are two primary Program goals: Restoration
and water management. The restoration goal is to restore and maintain fish populations in the main stem of the San Joaquin
River below Friant Dam to the confluence of the Merced River, including naturally reproducing and self-sustaining populations
of salmon and other fish. The water management goal is to reduce or avoid adverse water supply impacts to all of the Friant
Division long-term contractors that may result from restoration flows. Federal participation in the Program is authorized by the
San Joaquin River Restoration Settlement Act, part of the Omnibus Public Land Management Act of 2009. Implementing
agencies include the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and National Marine Fisheries Service, along with the State of California
through the California Department of Fish and Game and California Department of Water Resources. To date, the Program has
begun releases into the San Joaquin River to re-wet over 60 miles of the once-dry San Joaquin River channel, completed a
series of studies related to salmon reintroduction, and is working to complete design and environmental compliance activities
that would allow for increased flows in the San Joaquin River and provide for fish passage and fish habitat needs.

BOR

Red Bluff Fish Passage Improvement 2010-2012 1,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

The Red Bluff Fish Passage Improvement project involved construction of a pumping plant with associated fish screens to
replace the existing Red Bluff Diversion Dam. Prior to the screened pumping plant, the existing dam created a barrier to
migrating fish, some of which are listed under the Endangered Species Act. With the addition of the screened pumping plant,
the diversion dam gates will be permanently placed in the open position for free migration of fish.

BOR

Desert Terminal Lakes Program 2006 - Present 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

The $375 million Desert Terminal Lakes Program (DTL Program) funds multiple watershed restoration projects in eastern
California and western Nevada, including three terminal lakes (Walker, Pyramid and Summit) and four associated river basins
(Walker, Truckee, Carson and Summit). The DTL Program has funded various projects that improve riverine and lacustrine fish
habitats, including for two fish species listed under the Endangered Species Act. Within the past two years, these projects have
included large scale water acquisition programs in two river basins that result in the substantial improvement of both riverine
and imperiled desert terminal lake fish habitats. Installation of a fish barrier for non-native species and hazardous fuels
reduction forest management have occurred on land surrounding a unique lake ecosystem in the Sierra mountains allowing for
protection of the lake’s fisheries. In addition, the Program includes several completed and ongoing river restoration projects
that significantly enhance fish habitat. Ongoing federal agency and university research has been funded related to watershed
health issues affecting fish habitat, as well as exploration of fish hatchery improvements for a listed species.

Page 1 of 9






Federal Columbia River Power System Tributary Habitat

2006-present 1,2,3,and 4
Program

Brief Project or Program Description

e Reclamation works in partnership with local landowners, representatives from states, Tribes and other federal agencies, and
conservation groups on habitat projects to improve spawning and rearing habitat for Columbia River Basin salmon and

BOR |[steelhead listed under the Endangered Species Act.
e The program is focused on providing technical services including project coordination, environmental compliance, permit
application, engineering design, and construction monitoring to local project sponsors.
e Reclamation contributes to projects that increase streamflow through water acquisition or lease; remove barriers to
improve access to a greater range of spawning and rearing habitat; replace screens on water diversions; increase channel
complexity.
Bay-Delta Conservation Plan Ongoing 1,2,3&4
Brief Project or Program Description
BOR  |The Bay Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP) is a large and complex science-based ecosystem restoration program for the San
Francisco Bay-Delta Estuary. Reclamation is providing technical assistance in the development of the BDCP and associated
Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement.
Central Valley Project Implementation Act (CVPIA) 2006 - present 1,2,3,and 4
Brief Project or Program Description
® Reclamation provides funding and cooperates with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service in carrying out the numerous and varied
mandates of the Central Valley Project Improvement Act of 1992, including those in Section 3406(b)(1) of the Act to make all
BOR  [reasonable efforts to double natural production of anadromous fish in Central Valley streams.
* Reclamation funds and/or carries out activities associated with the Anadromous Fish Screen Program (AFSP), spawning gravel
augmentation, hydrologic modeling, fish studies, in-stream flow augmentation, and fishery habitat restoration as required by
the Act.
Implementation of Reasonable and Prudent Alternative (RPA). Ongoing 1,2,3&4
Brief Project of Program Description
Reclamation leads a group of Federal and State agencies in a collaborative effort to implement the RPA from the 2009
Biological Opinion for the long-term operation of the State Water Project and Central Valley Project in California. RPA actions
BOR [include floodplain habitat restoration, providing specific flows and water temperatures, improving fish passage and spawning
habitat, and improving species genetics. To date various habitat restoration projects have been implemented and specific
criteria developed to meet water quality criteria for Endangered Species Act listed species.
Science Task Force Ongoing 3&4
Brief Project of Program Description
BOR The Science Task Force was established in 2010 through a Congressional request, with the goal to incorporate new science into

the process for implementing the biological opinions for management of the San Francisco Bay-Delta, and development of an
integrated biological opinion for management of the Delta. Reclamation provides leadership, funding, staff, and resources.

Page 2 of 9






BOR

Battle Creek Salmon and Steelhead Restoration Project 20009 - Present 1,2,3,4

Brief Project or Program Description

Battle Creek is one of the most important anadromous fish spawning streams in the California Sacramento Valley.
Reclamation's Mid-Pacific Region is managing the collaborative effort between Reclamation, Pacific Gas and Electric Company
and various resource agencies, including the California State Water Resources Control Board, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service,
National Marine Fisheries Service, the California Department of Fish and Game, and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
to restore 48 miles of habitat in Battle Creek and its tributaries, while maintaining a renewable energy resource for electric
customers in California. To date, a hydropower diversion dam has been removed, two fish screens and ladders have been
installed, and a powerhouse bypass and tailrace connector have been constructed. In FY 2012, larger numbers of Chinook
salmon returned to spawn in restored habitat upstream of where the diversion dam was removed; over four times the number
of salmon redds (fish nests) were seen than in previous years.

BOR

Lewiston Temperature Management Study 2011-Present 3and4

Brief Project of Program Description

Reclamation's Mid-Pacific Region is preparing a technical memorandum for the Trinity River Restoration Program (TRRP)
Temperature Work Group (TWG) that includes descriptions and preliminary cost estimates for alternatives to improve the
transmission of cold water through Lewiston Reservoir, improve habitat on the Trinity River, increase salmon production, and
maintain recreational benefits. The TRRP TWG is a collaborative work group comprised of multi-agency representatives that
addresses the challenges of managing water releases for temperature control compliance and coordinates projects focused on
temperature monitoring and modeling.

BOR

Conner Creek Mouth Fish Passage Enhancement Feasibility

FY2012 1,234
Study

Brief Project or Program Description

¢ The Trinity River Restoration Program (TRRP) provides support to the NFHP through funding of cooperative watershed
restoration projects conducted with matching and in-kind contributions from a wide range of local, regional, State, Tribal and
federal partners and collaborators.

¢ |In 2012 TRRP, with partners and collaborators, is determining the feasibility, hydraulics, hydrology, fish passage, cost, and
timeline to restore Conner Creek flow to the original confluence with the Trinity River to allow unimpeded access and cool
water refugia for steelhead and coho juveniles during migration flows. Connor Creek is a 2012 NFHP "Water to Watch".

BOR

Lower American River Flow Management Standard 2006-present 1,2,3,4

Brief Project or Program Description

The Lower American River Flow Management Standard is intended to improve the condition of the aquatic resources in the
Lower American River, particularly for fall-run Chinook salmon and Central Valley steelhead, and to promote a dynamic,
resilient and diverse fish assemblage within the context of water availability and operational constraints at Nimbus and Folsom
Dams. The standard consists of three elements: (1) Minimum flow requirements and water temperature objectives; (2) Lower
American River Group (ARG); and (3) a monitoring and evaluation program. Reclamation has been operating to these flows
and temperatures, within the constraints of water availability since 2006. Reclamation serves as the ARG sponsor, and carries
out a number of other activities related to management of the flow standard.

BOR

San Clemente Dam Removal Project, Carmel River, Monterey

2009-2011 3and 4
County, California an

Brief Project or Program Description

Cal American Water (CAW) is the owner of the old (circa 1921) San Clemente Dam located 18.5 miles up the Carmel River.
This dam is considered obsolete and is proposed to be removed. At the request of the CAW, Reclamation provided a Design,
Estimating & Construction review (DEC Review) of how the dam is proposed to be removed and the stream channel restored.
Reclamation's reviews concluded that there were several ways the deconstruction process could be improved. Removal of this
dam would result in creation of more than 25 miles of prime steelhead trout habitat on the Carmel River.

Page 3 of 9






Shasta Lake Water Resources Investigation Draft Feasibility

- 2012 2,3,and 4
Report and Preliminary Draft EIS

Brief Project or Program Description

Reclamation prepared a Draft Feasibility Report and Preliminary Draft EIS in coordination with cooperating agencies, other
resource agencies, stakeholders, and the public, to evaluate the potential enlargement of Shasta Dam and Reservoir to (1)

BOR | ) S . . e
improve anadromous fish survival in the upper Sacramento River, (2) increase water supply reliability in the Central Valley of
California, and (3) address related water resource problems, needs, and opportunties. When the Feasibility Report and EIS are
finalized, the Secretary of the Interior will use both documents and supporting information to provide a recommendation to
Congress.
North-Of-Delta Offstream Storage Investigation 2006-Present 2,3,and 4
Brief Project of Program Description
Reclamation is conducting a study to determine if there is federal interest in an offstream storage facility north of the
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta. One of the primary objectives includes improving the reliability of cold-water carry-over
BOR storage in the Shasta, Oroville, Trinity, and Folsom reservoirs for anadromous fish and other aquatic species. This objective also
includes increasing supplemental flows for cold water releases for salmon and steelhead on the Sacramento and American
Rivers, and providing supplemental Delta outflow during summer and fall months to improve estuarine habitat for anadromous
fish and other estuarine-dependent species. This study is ongoing and planned for public release in 2013.
KIamath BasnT Re.storatlon Program - Enhance overmeermg 2011-current )
salmonid habitat in McGarvey Creek, Lower Klamath River
Brief Project or Program Description
BOR  [Funding is provided to the Yurok Tribal Fisheries Program to conduct stream and floodplain enhancement activities in a
watershed which supports coho salmon, chinook salmon, steelhead, and coastal cutthroat trout. Project objectives include
creating complex off-channel rearing habitat for natal and non-natal salmonids, de-constructing priority floodplain roads and
stream crossings, and installing complex wood jams to improve aquatic habitat conditions for fish and wildlife.
Klamath Basin Restoration Program - Mid Klamath River Habitat
R 2010-current 2
Enhancement Project
Brief Project of Program Description
This project implements treatments to improve thermal refugia habitat and off-channel and side channel habitat for rearing
BOR ESA listed coho salmon in the Klamath River. Project treatments enhance cover complexity through placement of on-site large
woody debris, small woody debris (brush bundles), and willow plantings along 4 miles of lower tributary reaches identified as
important summer refugia habitat for juvenile coho salmon.
KIamat'h Basin Restoratlc.)n Program - Harriman Spring and 2010-2012 )
Fourmile Creek Restoration, Upper Klamath Lake, Oregon
Brief Project of Program Description
BOR This project addresses the problem of poor habitat quality for Lost River suckers and shortnose suckers by restoring natural
hydrologic characteristics to the springs, stream channel, and wetland.
Barkley Springs Habitat Restoration Project, Upper Klamath 2008-2012 )
Lake, Oregon
Brief Project or Program Description
Reclamation has partnered with other agencies to re-create an historical spawning habitat site for endangered shortnose and
BOR [Lost River suckers native to Upper Klamath Lake. Project objectives included reestablishment of spawning population of

endangered suckers, increasing populations of endemic fish species, providing for existing park and boater uses, and protecting
cultural resources. The project created approximately 1 acre of marsh and riparian habitat, and 1,500 feet of a meandering
spring-fed channel.

Page 4 of 9






Upper Klamath Lake Shoreline Wetland Project, Oregon 2010-2011 2

Brief Project of Program Description

BOR This project created 1.5 acres of lake fringe wetland habitat consisting of largewood, rock sills, willows, and soil substrate for
emergent vegetation. The project added habitat diversity to the Upper Klamath Lake shoreline for endangered suckers and
other aquatic species.

Klamt_h Basin Restorjatlon Program - Barkley Springs Sucker 2010-2012 )
Entrainment Reduction Project
Brief Project of Program Description

BOR |[This project eliminated an irrigation diversion in the newly created Barkely Springs sucker spawning habitat area and relocated
it to a new diversion point to allow landowner irrigation management practices to continue. The project provided biological
benefits by elminating a potential entrainment site for endangered suckers and other aquatic species.

Klamath Basin Rest(.aratlon Program - Lower Klamath Sub-basin 2009-current )
Erosion Control Project
Brief Project or Program Description

BOR This project provides funding to the Yurok Tribes' Watershed Program to prevent sediment from entering Klamath River
tributaries and to restore spawing and rearing habitat by de-commissioning forest logging roads.
KIama'Fh .Bas.ln Resjcoratlon Program - Bluff Creek Road De- 2010-current )
commissioning, Mid Klamath River
Brief Project of Program Description

BOR [This project provides funding to the Karuk Tribe to protect and enhance habitat for coho salmon, Chinook salmon, and
steelhead trout populations by decreasing present and future erosion and subsequent sediment deposition from a U.S Forest
Service road complex in the Bluff Creek watershed.

Klamath Basin Restoration Program - Cottonwood Creek fish
. . . 2007-current 2
passage improvement, Mid Klamath River
Brief Project of Program Description
This project involves removal of a fish passage barrier in order to open up 15 miles of additional anadromous spawning habitat

BOR  [within the Cottonwood Creek watershed. The project will remove a low water crossing to alleviate a situation in which coho
salmon and steelhead cannot migrate upstream into areas of the watershed where habitat improvements have been
completed, including sediment reduction and fish screening of diversions on private and public lands.

Gila River Basin Native Fishes Conservation Program 2006 - Present 1,2,3,and 4

BOR  |Brief Project or Program Description

e The GRBNFCP assisted with development of the Desert FHP, and is available to continue further support as needed.

Lake Havasu Fisheries Improvement Program Partnership 2006 - Present 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

The Bureau of Reclamation is continuing to partner with FWS, BLM, USGS, Arizona Game and Fish, California Department of

Fish & Game, Angles United, and the City of Lake Havasu. The Partnership continues to improve fisheries habitat, monitor the
BOR habitat and fishery size and population. Is working on developing the sixth free acessible fishing access facility, and fishing

education and information for Lake Havasu. Working with Clark County Reclamation has developed additonal free fishing
aceess facilities in the Laughlin area. Working with Mohave County in Bullhead City area we have helped develop an acessible
fishing facility at Davis Dam Camp receation area.

Page 5 of 9






Mobilize and Focus National Support

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #2 -Mobilize and focus national and local support for achieving fish habitat conservation

goals.)
Agency Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal Addressed
Gila River Basin Native Fishes Conservation Program 2006 - Present 1,2,3,4
Brief Project or Program Description
¢ The GRBNFCP assists with the implementation of recovery plans and thereby supports fish habitat conservation goals
BOR [outlined in those plans, especially the removal or control of nonnative invasive species.

¢ The Program has funded or helped fund the chemical removal of nonnative fishes from two streams, and has funded
mechanical removal efforts at two additional streams.

Page 6 of 9






Measure and Communicate Aquatic Habitat Needs

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #3 -Measure and communicate the status and needs of aquatic habits.)

Agency Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal Addressed
Central Valley Steelhead Spawning Survey 2006 - Present 1,2,3
Brief Project or Program Description
The primary objective of the survey (January - Mid-April) is to provide yearly estimates of in-river spawning steelhead
abundance in California's Central Valley, or an index of abundance that will be comparable from year to year. Secondarily, the
BOR survey helps to determine how flows affect steelhead spawning locations, timing, and egg to fry survival and determining what
proportion of in-river spawning steelhead are of natural (vs. hatchery) origin. Reclamation coordinates with NMFS, FWS and
California Department of Fish and Game to conduct the surveys.
Interagency Ecological Program (IEP) Ongoing 1,2,38&4
Brief Project or Program Description
IEP is collaboration of Federal and State agencies that collects scientific information to assist in the management of the San
Francisco Bay-Delta Estuary. Reclamation provides leadership, funding, staff, and resources. IEP's goals are to: describe the
BOR |[status and trends of aquatic ecology; develop an understanding of environmental factors affecting aquatic ecology; provide
long-term monitoring and research to support natural resource planning, management, and regulatory activities. IEP hosts a
yearly conference that provides a forum for sharing new information and data. All data collected from the IEP long-term
monitoring programs and studies are made available to the public.
Water Education Foundation - Technical speaker Ongoing 1,2,38&4
Brief Project of Program Description
BOR [Reclamation's Mid-Pacific Regional staff participate as technical speakers on the Water Education Foundation tours. The
Water Education Foundation's goal is to create a "better understanding of water resources and foster public understanding and
resolution of water resource issues through facilitation, education and outreach."
Stranding and isolation pool surveys, Lower American River,
. 'g P ¥ 2009-present 1,2and 3
California
Brief Project or Program Description
During flow release changes that fluctuate above and below a certain threshold on the Lower American River, these surveys
are conducted to ensure that areas previously connected to the channel are continuing to receive flows and temperatures
BOR |appropriate to support juvenile rearing habitat, steelhead spawning and fall Chinook salmon spawning. Participation in
meetings and ongoing coordination with USFWS, NMFS, and the Department of Fish and Game help to ensure that areas are
monitored and appropriate action is taken. Recent years have involved more sophisticated mapping of the side-channel
habitats and predictions on what areas will likely isolate at various flows. This monitoring also contributes to validation of
gravel augmentation efforts and subesequent years' design standards and monitoring requirements.
Klamath River Fish Health Studies 2006 - Present 3
Brief Project or Program Description
BOR This project monitors the myxozoan parasite, Ceratomyxa shasta , in Klamath River Chinook and coho salmon, and develops
appropriate models that correlate parasite abundance with physical parameters to explain mortality patterns in these species.
Long-term Fish Disease Monitoring in the Lower Klamath River [2008 - Present 3
Brief Project of Program Description
This project is developing a multi-year dataset of the prevalence and severity of infection by Ceratomyxa shasta and
BOR  |Parvicapsula minibicornis in juvenile Chinook salmon collected in the Klamath River from Iron Gate Dam to the confluence of

the Trinity River, and within the Klamath River Estuary. Emphasis is placed on supporting current model development of natural
juvenile Chinook salmon abundance and disease prevalence. Abundance and disease prevalence will be used in disease
modeling to estimate juvenile out-migrant Chinook mortality.

Page 7 of 9






Karuk Tribe and Yurok Tribe Annual Funding Agreements (P.L.

638) for Klamath River Fish Studies

2008 - Present

Brief Project of Program Description

BOR
This project provides funding for the Karuk and Yurok Tribes for fish ecology, fish disease, fish distribution studies on ESA-listed
coho salmon and Tribal trust aquatic species in the mid and lower Klamath River.
Gila River Basin Native Fishes Conservation Program 2006 - Present 1,2,3,4
Brief Project or Program Description
e The GRBNFCP has funded numerous aquatic habitat assessments intended to identify the problems of nonnative fishes
BOR |create for native fish habitat.

¢ Nonnative species problems are communicated via a public website, issuance of technical reports and publications, and oral

presentations.

Page 8 of 9






Provide National Leadership and Coordination

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #4 -Provide national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats.)

Agency Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal Addressed
Middle R|0-Grande Endangered Species Collaborative Program Ongoing 123and4
(Collaborative Program)

Brief Project or Program Description
The Collaborative Program has:
e Restored and improved over 1,500 acres of habitat.
¢ Released, to date, over one million Rio Grande silvery minnows into the Rio Grande at Big Bend National Park in Texas.
BOR |* Developed a new Long-Term Plan and Adaptive Management Plan.
* Propagated more than 250,000 Rio Grande silvery minnows at the Dexter National Fish Hatchery and Fish Health Center.
In addition, Southwestern willow flycatcher numbers continued to rise throughout fiscal year 2012 (there are a total of 336
territories from the south boundary of Isleta to Elephant Butte Reservoir).
Upper Colorado River Endangered Fish Recovery Program and
San Juan River Basin Recovery Implementation Program Ongoing 1,2,3and 4
(Programs)
Brief Project of Program Description
The Programs have: (1) Constructed seven fish passages opening up over 400 miles of critical habitat to unimpeded fish
migration on the Colorado, Gunnison, and San Juan rivers; (2) constructed and or contracted with existing fish hatcheries to
BOR |meet the Programs' stocking goals for Colorado pikeminnow, razorback sucker, and bonytail chub; (3) implemented
reoperation plans for Federal and non-Federal reservoirs that have delivered millions of acre-feet of water to meet multiple
uses including instream flows to support endangered fish recovery goals; (4) serve as the reasonable and prudent alternative
for over 2,400 Federal and non-Federal water projects depleting 3.6 million acre-feet annually; and (5) established and
maintained schedules to down-list and de-list the four Federally-listed species by 2023 (humpback chub, bonytail chub,
Colorado pikeminnow, and razorback sucker).
Gila River Basin Native Fishes Conservation Program 2006 - Present 1,2,3,4
Brief Project or Program Description
BOR |e The GRBNFCP is implementing nonnative fish removal efforts that are resulting in the creation of high value native fish

habitats of national renown. .
The Program is funding a USGS study that is intended to develop a new species-specific piscicide that could greatly simplify
stream renovations in the region and elsewhere.

Page 9 of 9







United States Department of the Interior

BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT
WASHINGTON, DC 20240-0001

0CT 25 2012

Memorandum

To: Secretary /{//M JP ) &T_‘B?’(/(/& K/’ ;

Through: Marcilynn A. Burke
Acting Assistant Secretary - Lands and Minerals Management

From: Tommy P. Beaudreau
Director

Subject: Report on the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM)’s
Accomplishments in Support of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan

Under a Memorandum of Understanding among the Departments of Agriculture, Commerce, and
Interior signed in March 2012, individual Bureaus are required to report to their respective
Secretaries on accomplishments and progress in support of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan
(NFHAP). BOEM'’s work addresses NFHAP Goals 1 and 2 through Implementation Strategies 3
and 4 as noted on the attached chart. Goal 1 is to protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic
systems and Goal 2 is to prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely
affected. Attached in the common template provided to all Bureaus are descriptions of BOEM
projects and programs, which support this initiative.

Attachment





Report to the Secretary of the Department of the Interior
Multi-Bureau National Fish Habitat Plan Highlights

October 2012

Purpose: Provide examples of bureau accomplishments and progress supporting the National
Fish Habitat Action Plan (NFHAP).

Contents: The following tables are based on the implementation strategy of the NFHAP.

Agency

NFHAP Goal

Project Title Timeline Addressed

BOEM

Monitoring the East and West Flower Garden Banks ongoin 1&2
in the Gulf of Mexico going

Brief Project or Program Description

The Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) supports an ongoing monitoring
program of the East and West Flower Garden Banks in partnership with National
Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration's NOAA) National Marine
Sanctuaries Program. These Banks, along with Stetson Bank, form the Flower Garden
Banks National Marine Sanctuary. The East and West Flower Garden Banks are the
northernmost coral reefs on the continental shelf of North America and are home to
over 170 species of fish and approximately 300 species of reef invertebrates. The
monitoring program includes: assessing the health of the coral reefs; evaluating
changes in population levels, including reef fish; and measuring coral and algal cover
and growth rates. For more information on BOEM's history of stewardship of the East
and West Flower Garden Banks, see http://www.boem.gov/Environmental-
Stewardship/Environmental-Studies/Gulf-of-Mexico-

Region/flower_garden banks.aspx

BOEM

The Multiagency Rocky Intertidal Network I 182
(MARINe)

Brief Project or Program Description

BOEM is a primary sponsor of an ongoing effort to monitor rocky intertidal sites
adjacent to outer continental shelf (OCS) oil and gas production facilities off
California and potential OCS wave energy sites off Oregon. BOEM and its 39
partners in MARINe monitor shoreline rocky intertidal sites from Alaska to Mexico
using standardized protocols and a shared database (www.MARINe.gov). Partners
include a number of state universities, the California State Water Quality Control
Board, the California Ocean Protection Council, NOAA's Office of Marine
Sanctuaries, and the National Park Service. Many of these sites have been monitored
for periods of 15-25 years. Examples of findings have included the documentation of
the sudden decline of black abalone, which led to the listing under the Endangered
Species Act of that species as endangered, and documentation of significant, long-term
declines in the number of species in mussel beds.

Page 1 of 4






BOEM

The Habitat Role of Oil and Gas Platforms ongoing 1&2

Brief Project or Program Description

‘What to do with oil and gas platforms when they are decommissioned is a subject of
considerable debate. To better understand the impact decommissioning may have on
fish populations, BOEM has supported a number of studies.

In the Pacific:

BOEM has funded over 20 research efforts and continues to examine and determine
the habitat value and ecological importance of oil and gas platforms off southern
California. The habitat value of nine platforms on the Pacific OCS was determined
during a multi-year study that was synthesized in the report OCS Study MMS #2003-
032 and expanded and reported in OCS Study MMS #2009-033, OCS Study
BOEMRE #2010-012, and OCS Study BOEM #2012-020. In total, BOEM will have
funded over 30 years of work at platforms to determine their habitat value and
ecological influence on the local and regional marine ecosystem. BOEM-funded
research has shown that, compared to natural reefs, platforms offshore southern
California act as defacto marine protected areas. These areas experience very little
fishing pressure, harbor much higher densities of large individuals of NOAA-
designated overfished species than natural reefs, produce far more larvae of these
overfished species per unit area than do natural reefs, and are regionally important to
the recovery of these species. On-going studies will determine the overall biological
productivity of Pacific Platforms.

For more information see: http://www.boem.gov/Environmental-
Stewardship/Environmental-Studies/Pacific-Region/Studies/Completed-Studies.aspx
and http://www.boem.gov/Environmental-Stewardship/Environmental-
Studies/Pacific-Region/Studies-Highlights-and- Accomplishments.aspx.

In the Gulf of Mexico:

In the Gulf of Mexico, there are several thousand oil and gas structures which can
effectively increase reef habitat in an environment dominated by soft sediments.
Recent and ongoing studies that focus on the habitat role of platforms include: an
evaluation of the foraging behavior and site fidelity of the blue runner (Caranx
crysos), a species that is associated with platforms and is consumed by large predatory
species such as king mackerel and tuna and grouper species; surveys to determine the
deepwater coral distribution and abundance on active oil and gas platforms and
decommissioned “Rigs-to-Reefs” platforms; and the evaluation of short-term
movement, home range and behavior of red snapper, a popular commercial and
recreational species, around petroleum platforms.

For more information on ongoing studies in the Gulf of Mexico visit
http://www.boem.gov/GMStudies/

For reports from completed studies for both the Pacific and the Gulf of Mexico see
http://www.data.boem.gov/homepg/data_center/other/espis/espismaster.asp?appid=1

Page 2 of 4






 Ageney

Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal

BOEM

Arctic Fish Ecology Catalogue 2009-present 182

Brief Project or Program Description

In cooperation with the U.S. Geological Survey, BOEM is developing a
comprehensive Arctic fish desk reference document that will be available to fisheries
scientists and the general public for use in management, research and education. It
will include such information as distribution, life history, and ecological significance
for fish found in the U.S. Exclusive Economic Zone in the Chukchi and Beaufort Seas.
More than 1200 individual references relative to Arctic marine fishes have been
reviewed to form the scientific basis for the species information. Museum specimens
and associated databases are another important source of information. The Catalogue
also incorporates information from recent fish surveys, including BOEM-funded
surveys in the Beaufort Sea.

BOEM

Chukchi and Beaufort Sea Assessments of Fish and
Their Habitats 2008-present 1&2

Brief Project or Program Description

BOEM is providing support for multiple surveys and assessments of fish, shellfish and
fish habitats in the Chukchi and Beaufort Seas. These studies will provide a geospatial
baseline of fish (and prey) distribution and abundance. When completed in 2015, these
studies will provide the first ever systematic marine fish and habitat survey across the
entire Beaufort Sea continental shelf and slope and update and improve our knowledge
base of fish distributions and their use of habitats in the Chukchi Sea. Study partners
include the University of Alaska, NOAA, and the Department of Fisheries and Oceans,
Canada. Examples of studies include:

e U.S.-Canada Transboundary Fish and Lower Trophic Communities.

Objectives include: documentation of fish and invertebrate species presence,
abundance, distribution and biomass; testing of under-ice methods and
development of the baseline for the ice-covered season; analysis of the dietary
habits, age, and growth patterns of the most abundant species; and a better
understanding of how habitat variables affect distribution.

e Distribution of Fish, Crab, and Lower Trophic Communities in the Chukchi
Sea Lease Area. This study will provide the information needed to compare
these communities with prior studies, as well as adjacent regions, and will also
relate data to physical and chemical parameters. The study will include
sampling during the ice-covered season.

e Population Assessment of Snow Crab (Chionoecetes opilio) in the Chukchi and
Beaufort Seas. To assess the snow crab population, this research project will
survey and evaluate the abundance, biomass, stock structure, diet, and trophic
position of the snow crab in the Chukchi and Beaufort Seas.

Page 3 of 4






e Dispersal Patterns and Summer Ocean Distribution of Adult Dolly Varden
from the Wulik River, Alaska, Evaluated Using Satellite Telemetry. This study
will follow the movements and document the distribution of Dolly Varden in
the Chukchi. The Dolly Varden is an important subsistence fish used by
northwestern Alaskan native peoples.

For more information about ongoing research in the Beaufort and Chukchi Seas visit

http://www.boem.gov/Environmental-Stewardship/Environmental-
Studies/Alaska/Index.aspx

For completed studies search the BOEM Studies Database (ESPIS) at
http://www.data.boem.gov/homepg/data_center/other/espis/espismaster.asp?appid=1

Page 4 of 4







OF PUBLIC LANDS

United States Department of the Interior

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
Washington, D.C. 20240

http://www.blm.gov
In Reply Refer To: NOV 2 0 2012
6500 (230)
Memorandum

Assistant Director,

To: Acting Director )
=, /2
Through: Edwin L. Roberson ¢ A zc4t4- o~

From: Dwight Fielder
Division Chief, Fi

Subject: Submission of the Bureau of Land Management Report - National Fish Habitat
Action Plan

I.  INTRODUCTION

Please find attached the Bureau of Land Management’s (BLM) contributions to the report for the
National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan) and National Fish Habitat Partnership
(Partnership), as agreed under the March 2012 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) (also
attached). This report highlights agency accomplishments and progress through September 2012
and provides a qualitative baseline for increased future cooperation and coordination among
agencies and their partners. This report highlights the BLM’s accomplishments in the four key
implementation strategies of the Action Plan and offers a one-page summary of our most
significant work under the Partnership. The BLM narrative will be combined with the reports
from the other Federal agencies as a complete report of Federal activities in the Partnership.

II. BACKGROUND

With the 2012 MOU, the Secretaries of Agriculture, Commerce, and the Department of the
Interior (DOI) affirmed their commitment to promote collaborative, science-based conservation
of the Nation’s waterways and fisheries through the Partnership and the implementation of the
Action Plan. The Partnership is a voluntary and non-regulatory effort providing a nationwide
strategy to harness the energies, expertise, and existing programs of Federal and State agencies,
conservation organizations, foundations, and individuals. The mission of the Partnership is to
protect, restore and enhance the nation’s fish and aquatic communities through partnerships that
foster fish habitat conservation and improve the quality of life for the American people. The
Action Plan provides a national strategy to address aquatic habitat from the interior to the oceans.





The BLM has been an active member in the implementation of the Action Plan and fully
engaged in each of the Fish Habitat Partnerships within the BLM jurisdiction. Since 2007,
cooperation with the Partnerships and support for implementation of the Action Plan has been
the primary focus of the BLM’s Fisheries Program.

II.  POSITION OF INTERESTED PARTIES

The attached report conveys the highlights of the BLM’s achievements. The other DOI Bureaus
are submitting their reports to the Secretary; the reports from all MOU signatories will be
combined into a comprehensive report. The combined report will show the dedication of the DOI
to this monumental effort for the conservation of fish habitat.
IV.  DECISION OPTIONS
Approve for submission, Approve with changes, Disapprove.

V. RECOMMENDATION

Approve for submission.

VI. DIRECTOR’S DECISION

Attachments

Concurrence Nonconcurrence

Acting Director





Multi-Bureau NFHP Highlights

Submitted to the Secretary of the Department of the Interior
Purpose: Provide examples of bureau accomplishments and progress supporting the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan
Contents: An assemblage of four tables based on the Implementation Strategy of the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan. Following the tables are collections of one-page fact sheets that provide project specific bureau
highlights.

Foster New and Support Existing FHPs
(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #1 -Support existing Fish Habitat Partnerships and foster new

efforts.)
Agency Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal
Leadership in the Reservoir Fish Habitat Partnership 2010-present 1,2,3,4
Brief Project or Program Description
BLM The BLM has played an integral role in the development and continues to serve on the Executive

Committee of this Partnership. In 2011, the BLM hosted the 2nd Annual Membership Meeting of
the partnership in 2011, including providing an on-lake tour of Lake Havasu to allow participants to
view the work conducted through the Lake Havasu Fisheries Improvement Partnership (see
attached highlight page).

Leadership in the Desert Fish Habitat Partnership 2005-present 1,2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

Beginning in 2005, the BLM worked with state, federal, and local partners in the west to develop
BLM |the Desert Fish Habitat Partnership. The BLM played an integral role in the budding partnership,
including providing a coordinator during the critical time when the partnership applied for NFHP
recognition and developed the strategic plan. The BLM continues to be a vital member, providing
leadership on the executive committee and involvement on the steering committee.

Participation in Fish Habitat Partnerships 2005-present 1,2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

The BLM has been an active participant in every fish habitat partnership where we have land,
including serving on the steering committees of the California Fish Passage Forum, Desert Fish
BLM Habitat Partnership, Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture, Great Lakes Basin Fish Habitat Partnership,
Great Plains Fish Habitat Partnership, Kenai Peninsula Fish Habitat Partnership, Matanuska-Susitna
Basin Habitat Partnership, Reservoir Fish Habitat Partnership, Southwest Alaska Salmon Habitat
Partnership, and Western Native Trout Initiative.






Mobilize and Focus National Support

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #2 -Mobilize and focus national and local support for achieving
|fish habitat conservation goals. )

Agency

Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal

BLM

Lower Clear Creek Salmon Restoration 1996-ongoing 1,2,3,4

Brief Project or Program Description

BLM, working with agency partners and non-governmental organizations, continue implementing
stream restoration activities in Lower Clear Creek, a regulated tributary to the Sacramento River, to
restore important salmon and steelhead spawning habitat. Historically the river was “turned upside
down” during the late 1800’s gold rush by industrial-scale dredging operations. Conceived in 1988
with construction beginning in 1996 following years of planning and obtaining secured funding, over
2 miles of stream have been intensively rehabilitated. Salmon runs have responded favorably with
the 12 year average return of over 9000 adults — up from 1600 adults pre-project.

BLM

Maggie Creek Restoration for Lahontan Cutthroat Trout 2006-ongoing 2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

The Maggie Creek Basin in Nevada supports one of the few remaining metapopulations of Lahontan
cutthroat trout (LCT), federally listed as threatened, and has been the focus of comprehensive
watershed restoration efforts involving multiple public and private partners, including the BLM,
since the early 1990s. In the Maggie Creek Basin, more than 90% of the over 70 miles of LCT stream
habitat has been improved through a combination of fencing, culvert replacements, water
developments and prescriptive livestock grazing programs. With the assistance of WNTI funding,
the Elko District of the BLM will be constructing a fish barrier to prevent nonnative fish in
downstream areas from accessing populations of LCT in Maggie Creek in October 2012. Installation
of the barrier will ensure cooperative efforts to enhance and reestablish LCT in Maggie Creek Basin
are successful.

BLM

Green River Restoration and Protection 2006-ongoing 1,23

Brief Project of Program Description

The BLM has contributed greatly to the restoration and protection of the fishes in the Green River
Basin in Utah, a 2010 Water to Watch. This has included non-native riparian vegetation removal in
the White and Escalante River basins.

BLM

Trapper Creek Cooperative Restoration 2006-ongoing 1,2,3

Brief Project of Program Description

The BLM and the Grand Valley Anglers Chapter of Trout Unlimited are partnering to restore and
protect Trapper Creek, a small stream in northwest Colorado which is home to a pure strain of
Colorado River cutthroat trout. Volunteers have provided 100’s of hours of labor to plant riparian
vegetation, install stream structures, and repair livestock fences. In 2008, WNTI provided funds to
replace and upgrade over 11,000 feet of fencing to protect and prevent future damage to the creek.






Mobilize and Focus National Support

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #2 -Mobilize and focus national and local support for achieving
|fish habitat conservation goals. )

Agency

Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal

BLM

Lacks Creek Watershed Restoration 2007-ongoing 1,2,3,4

Brief Project or Program Description

Lacks Creek, a 19 square mile watershed located in northwestern California in the Redwood Creek
drainage, has been the focus of extensive road-related restoration activities designed to reduce
sediment inputs into Redwood Creek -- a tributary to the Pacific Ocean supporting federally listed
salmon and steelhead. The BLM manages approximately 60% of the watershed with the remainder
in private ranch lands. Road assessment efforts have identified approximately 93 miles of roads in
the watershed with the potential to deliver approximately 196,000 yards of material. From 2007
through 2010, 8.5 miles of road have been decommissioned and 16.3 miles have been upgraded
along the 63 miles of road on BLM lands in the watershed. In 2011, $75,000 dollars in fisheries and
riparian funds were earmarked to the Arcata Field Office to continue road restoration work.

BLM

Coleman Creek Connectivity Restoration 2009-ongoing 2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

With funding from WNTI, the BLM is working with U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to provide
unobstructed passage for resident coastal cutthroat trout and other native species in western
Oregon. By replacing and improving a culvert on Coleman Creek, the BLM will provide access to
over 8 miles of habitat in Coleman Creek, upper South Fork Alsea River, and strengthen productivity
and genetic diversity of the population of coast cutthroat trout.

BLM

Lake Havasu Fish Partnership 2005-ongoing 3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

In 1993, BLM began the Lake Havasu Partnership, focused on restoration of the sport and native
fish in this Lower Colorado River reservoir. Since inception, the partnership has been a great
success, coming in significantly under budget, quadrupling angler use days, and increasing imperiled
native fish populations, all without stocking sport fish. In 2011, the Reservoir Fisheries Habitat
Partnership contributed $20,000 to help fund additional angler outreach and economic study. See
project highlight sheet at the end for more information.






Measure and Communicate Aquatic Habitat Needs

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #3 -Measure and communicate the status and needs of aquatic

habits.)

Agency

Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal

BLM

Conservation Success Index 2009-ongoing 1,2,3,4

Brief Project or Program Description

The BLM has been supporting Trout Unlimited's Conservation Success Index (CSI) under an
assistance agreement at headquarters. The CSl is a strategic approach to quantify and map the
conservation status of all native coldwater fishes so that comparisons of existing condition, threats,
future security, and management opportunities can be made across watersheds, river basins, and
entire species, enabling agencies and organizations to best use limited conservation resources.
With BLM's assistance, Trout Unlimited has begun applying CSI to warmwater species in the west as
well, including bluehead sucker, flannelmouth sucker, and roundtail chub, making this an important
effort for the science needs of both the Western Native Trout Imitative and the Desert Fish Habitat
Partnership. In 2012, the approach has been applied to northern California BLM land use planning
efforts under the same agreement.

BLM

San Rafael River Restoration Plan 2011-ongoing 1,2

Brief Project of Program Description

The BLM is leading the development of a restoration plan for the San Rafael River, a tributary to the
Green River, a 2010 Water to Watch. This includes the development of a science based restoration,
conservation and monitoring plan utilizing research results specific to the habitat needs of endemic
fishes with fluvial geomorphology and hydrologic analysis.

BLM

Cooperative Ecosystems Study Unit Project with UC Santa
Barbara 2010-2011 1,2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

The Bishop Field Office, working with the Sierra Nevada Aquatic Laboratory and Marine Science
Institute, and University of California-Santa Barbara (UCSB) conducted a quantitative survey of
invertebrate populations, physical habitat characteristics and water chemistry in Rough Creek,
Bodie Creek and interconnected perennial tributaries in the Bodie Hills, Mono County, CA. The
project is part of a larger cooperative effort of the Walker River Implementation Team (WRIT), to
support recovery of Lahontan cutthroat trout, a Federally Threatened listed species. This project
provides relevant and timely information for evaluation of the potential establishment of a meta-
population of Lahontan cutthroat as part of ongoing recovery efforts.

BLM

Western Native Trout Species Assessments 2006 1,2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

BLM biologists were an integral part of the western native trout species assessments undertaken by
WNTI. These assessments provide information non the status, range, habitat needs, and key
actions for protection and recovery of the species to direct WNTI's activities. You can learn more
about the assessments at http://www.westernnativetrout.org/content/species-assessments






Provide National Leadership and Coordination

(reference the NFHAP Implementation Strategy #4 -Provide national leadership and coordination to conserve
|fish habitats. )

Agency

Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal

BLM

NFHP Focus of the BLM Fisheries Program 2005-ongoing 1,2,3,4

Brief Project or Program Description

Since 2007, the BLM Fisheries Program has made implementation of the National Fish Habitat
Action Plan the central focus of its program. By mission, the BLM is a land management agency,
which cooperative manages habitat for sport and native fish with local, state, and federal partners
throughout the west. Partnership with other agencies and organizations, through NFHP and its Fish
Habitat Partnerships, is a natural way for the BLM to achieve its goals, as the NFHP goal to protect,
restore and enhance the nation's fish and aquatic communities through partnerships that foster fish
habitat conservation and improve the quality of life for the American people.

BLM

Leadership in the National Fish Habitat Partnership 2005-ongoing 1,2,3,4

Brief Project of Program Description

The BLM has provided integral support and participation to the National Fish Habitat Partnership
since its inception. In addition to active participation with the Federal Caucus, BLM staff have
worked on numerous workgroups and initiatives, such as the creation of this report and the
National Fish Habitat Assessment.






Bureau of Land Management
Division of Fish and Wildlife Conservation

NATIONAL

Lake Havasu Restoration
A Financial and Recreational
sSuccess

Project Summary: In 1993, in response to B : e -
declines in angler catch rate and access, the : F E
Bureau of Land Management (BLM) helped to
lead the Lake Havasu Partnership, focused on
restoration of 875 acres of fish habitat in the
21,000 acre reservoir on the Colorado River.
With cooperation from the Arizona Department
of Game and Fish, the California Department of
Game and Fish, the Bureau of Reclamation, the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the U.S. Geological
Survey and Anglers United, the partnership has -
achieved great success by increasing angler-use days and user satisfaction without stocking sport
fish and increasing imperiled native fish populations. In 2001, the American Sportsfishing
Association teamed with the BLM to perform an assessment of the program that showed a
conservative value of $38 million annually from the Havasu Fishery to the regional economy and a
quadrupling of angler use days with increased angler satisfaction. In 2011, the Reservoir Fisheries
Habitat Partnership contributed $20,000 to help fund updated angler outreach and economic study.

PUBLIC LANDS

Strategic Value: Lake Havasu is situated on
the lower Colorado River inundating 30 miles
of the border between California and Arizona.
Nearly 30 million Americans depend on the
reservoir for water and reside within a four-
hour drive, making this one of the highest
recreational-boating sites in the west. To
date, $17 million, 40% less than the original
$28 million estimate, has been spent to install
structures for sportfish, address the declining
native fish population, and produce five
handicap accessible shoreline fishing areas.
With funding from the National Fish Habitat
Partnership, the Lake Havasu partnership
continues to maintain and monitor those
improvements to sustain long-term benefits
for the community. Through the “America’s Great Outdoors” initiative the partnership is also
working to develop a sixth free public shoreline fishing site. The Lake Havasu community has
supported this work with nearly 300,000 volunteer hours and contributions from many other
organizations.

The Lake Havasu Fisheries Improvement Program met all original goals on schedule and
under budget with positive results for anglers and native fish!

To learn more, see http://www.blm.gov/volunteer/feature/1998 /az/lake.html

and http://www.reservoirpartnership.org/




http://www.blm.gov/volunteer/feature/1998/az/lake.html

http://www.reservoirpartnership.org/



		BLM NFHP Report

		NFHAP_MOU_Secretarial_Report_BLM 2012

		Sheet1



		BLM NFHP Highlight








National Park Service Summary - Implementing the National Fish Habitat Action Plan

NFHAP Federal Agency Accomplishments Report

In March 2012, the Secretaries of Agriculture, Commerce, and the Interior signed a memorandum of
understanding to promote collaborative, science-based conservation of the nation’s waterways and
fisheries through the National Fish Habitat Partnership and the implementation of the National Fish
Habitat Action Plan.

The National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Action Plan) provides a national strategy to address aquatic
habitat from the interior to the oceans. The Action Plan is a science-based, voluntary, and non-
regulatory effort providing a nationwide strategy to harness the energies, expertise, and existing
programs of Federal and state agencies, conservation organizations, foundations, and individuals. It
supports cooperative, proactive, aquatic habitat protection and restoration goals at multiple geographic
scales.

The mission of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan is to protect, restore and enhance the nation’s fish
and aquatic communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation and improve the
quality of life for the American people.

The goals of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan are:
1. Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems.

2. Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely affected.

3. Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats to improve the overall health of
fish and other aquatic organisms.

4. Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a broad natural diversity of fish
and other aquatic species.

This report highlights agency accomplishments and progress through September 2012 and provides a
gualitative baseline for increased future cooperation and coordination among agencies and their
partners. This report is organized by the four key implementation strategies of the Action Plan:

e Supporting existing fish habitat partnerships and fostering new efforts.

e Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for achieving fish habitat conservation goals.

e Measuring and communicating the status and needs of aquatic habitats.

e Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats.

Page 1 of 6





Report to the Secretary of the Department of the Interior
National Park Service National Fish Habitat Plan Highlights

November 2012
Purpose: Provide examples of bureau accomplishments and progress supporting the National

Fish Habitat Action Plan (NFHAP)
Contents: The following tables are based on the implementation strategy of the NFHAP

Foster New and Support Existing FHPs

National Fish Habitat Action Plan - Implementation Strategy #1: Support existing Fish Habitat
Partnerships and foster new efforts.

Agency Project Title Timeline Nig(ﬁzs?e%al
Partnerships ongoing 1,2,3,and 4

Brief Project or Program Description

NPS is an active member of the following NFHAP Partnerships:
* Western Native Trout Initiative
NPS - Eastern Brook Trout Joint Venture
* Matanuska-Susitna Basin
» Southwest Alaska Conservation Partnership
» Desert Fisheries Habitat Partnership (NPS hosts this Partnership's website)
* Reservoir Fisheries Habitat Partnership

Mobilize and Focus National Support

National Fish Habitat Action Plan - Implementation Strategy #2: Mobilize and focus national and
local support for achieving fish habitat conservation goals.

NFHAP Goal

Agency Project Title Timeline Addressed

Response to the Invasion of Lionfish in Marine

2007 - 2012 1,2,3,and 4
Parks

Brief Project or Program Description

NPS | The Lionfish Management Plan was developed in 2011 with participation from parks,
non-governmental organizations and universities. This guidance is designed to protect or
mitigate impacts on aquatic resources, protect human health and safety, and inform the
public of impacts from aquatic nuisance species like the lionfish.

Page 2 of 6






Measure and Communicate Aquatic Habitat Needs

National Fish Habitat Action Plan - Implementation Strategy #3: Measure and communicate the
status and needs of aquatic habits.

i . N NFHAP Goal
Agency Project Title Timeline Addressed
Establish Baseline Conditions Prior to the Invasion ongoing 12 and 4
of Asian Carp to Facilitate Control and Restoration T
Brief Project or Program Description
NPS | NPS units in the upper Mississippi River are conducting surveys that use stable isotope
and lipid analyses to determine which areas are vulnerable to the invasion of Asian carp
and establish baseline conditions for future mitigation efforts.
Dry_Tortugas National Park Research Natural Area, ongoing 1.2.3 and 4
Florida
Brief Project or Program Description
The Research Natural Area (RNA) was established in 2007 to restore and protect coral
NPS reefs and fish in concert with the adjacent Tortugas Ecological Reserve. A 2012 Joint
RNA Science Plan report by NPS and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission found that the RNA contributes to spawning and recruitment of several
fish species for major fisheries throughout the Florida Keys and southeast Florida reef
tract.
Benthic Habitat Mapping of Fish Habitats in Ocean
and Great Lakes Na‘t)i%nzgl Parks. 2008 - present land2
Brief Project or Program Description
Mapping of coral reefs, kelp forests, and Great Lakes and Atlantic Ocean benthic
habitats to provide critical information concerning the extent and distribution of fish
NPS habitats. Parks where maps are completed include Point Reyes National Seashore and
Golden Gate National Recreation Area, California; Virgin Islands National Park, Coral
Reef National Monument and Buck Island Reef National Monument, US Virgin Islands;
and most of Glacier Bay National Park and Preserve, Alaska. San Juan Island National
Historical Park, Washington and Channel Islands National Park, California also are
being mapped.
Glacier National Park Bull Trout Protection ongoing 1,2,and 3
Brief Project or Program Description
NPS | Projects at Glacier National Park are focused on protecting habitat for native bull trout

by constructing barriers on Quartz and Akokala Creeks to prevent invasion by non-
native salmonids and by actively removing lake trout from Quartz Lake.

Page 3 of 6






Provide National Leadership and Coordination

National Fish Habitat Action Plan - Implementation Strategy #4: Provide national leadership and
coordination to conserve fish habitats.

Agency Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal
Restoration of Native Species in High Elevation
Aquatic Ecosystems at Sequoia and Kings Canyon ongoing 1,2,3,and 4
National Parks
Brief Project or Program Description
Eradication of non-native fish from five high-elevation lakes and the associated streams
NPS | for the purpose of restoring habitat for mountain yellow-legged frogs that have
disappeared from 92% of their historically occupied sites in the Sierra Nevada. The
project will contribute to the restoration of a number of other native aquatic organisms
(macroinvertebrates and zooplankton) and the native species that rely on them as a
source of food.
Restoration of Native Cutthroat by Controlling Lake onaoin 2 and 3
Trout in Yellowstone Lake. going
Brief Project or Program Description
This project supports the long-term effort to recover Yellowstone cutthroat trout in
NPs | Yellowstone Lake by removing lake trout. It implements the recommendation of a 2008
Science Panel that concluded lake trout could be effectively suppressed through a 3 -5
year surge increase in fishing effort that is being achieved through the use of a
commercial fishing crew. In addition, the Park will be developing a lake trout
population estimate and benchmarks for control.
Eradicate Non-Native Fish to Restore Biological
Integrity in Five North Cascades National Park ongoing 1
Mountain Lakes
Brief Project or Program Description
NPS This project is focused on restoring native zooplankton, benthic invertebrate and

amphibian communities by removing non-native fish species from five naturally fishless
lakes. Eliminating reproducing non-native fish from these lakes may also contribute to
the recovery of downstream populations of native fish, including coastal and west slope
cutthroat trout and the federally listed bull trout and steelhead.

Page 4 of 6






Agency Project Title Timeline NFHAP Goal
i i i i i 0,
Restore Native Fish Populations and Habitats in 20% 2001 - 2011 1.2 3 and 4
Fee Parks
Brief Project or Program Description
e Pictured Rocks National Lakeshore: Restoration of coaster brook trout
populations in Lake Superior tributaries.
e Dinosaur National Monument: Removal of tamarisk to restore spawning habitat
for the federally listed Colorado River pikeminnow.
NPS e Point Reyes National Seashore: Eradication of cape ivy to restore spawning

habitat for anadromous fish in coastal streams.

Santa Monica Mountains National Recreation Area: Removal of non-native
vegetation to restore habitat for southern steelhead.

Big South Fork National River and Recreation Area: Stabilize stream crossings
to protect native fish and mussels.

North Cascades National Park: Remove non-native fish from mountain lakes to
restore aquatic conditions.

Page 5 of 6






Elwha River Restoration Project

Olympic National Park, November 2010

Lake Mills, Elwha River. Photo by NPS.

Project Summary: A contract to remove Glines Canyon and Elwha Dams, the largest dam removal in
North America’s history was awarded to begin in September 2011. Removal of these dams was
determined to be the only practicable approach to restoring the physical and biological resources of the
Elwha River ecosystem in Olympic National Park. Two water treatment plants were constructed to
insure adequate clean water supplies during restoration. Levees were constructed to protect private
lands and tribal reservation property. Fish passages were improved and riparian vegetation is being
cleared or propagated for restoration projects led by tribal re-vegetation crews. This is a multi-agency
project that has already resulted in successful fish movement due to dam removal. Park and tribal staff
are working together and with many other area partners to provide current information and promote
regional and national awareness of this landmark restoration project.

Strategic Value: This project demonstrates the capacity to rehabilitate a river that has been impeded by
dams. As the largest-to-date dam removal project in North America, research on river morphology,
habitat restoration efficacy, and population recovery of fishes can be studied as an example for future
efforts where appropriate.

Benefits: Salmon that have been unable to reach tributaries upstream of the dams have already been
documented in these waters. Once the dams are removed and the river restored, numbers of salmon
and steelhead are expected to exceed 390,000 returning adult fish annually. Understanding how
sediment that has accumulated behind dams is transported post-dam removal in a large system
provides necessary information for management of other dams. This is an example of interagency and
inter-governmental coordination resulting in significant aquatic habitat improvement.

Page 6 of 6






wsﬁg‘%é Recreational Fisheries and Habitat

o - Connections

National Fish Habitat Partnership Board Meeting
February 27, 2013
Arlington, VA





NOAA

Introduction

12 million saltwater recreational
anglers; 85 million saltwater trips;
$82 hillion economic contribution

Natural connection between healthy
habitat and robust recreational
fisheries

Mutual benefits of a shared vision
and collaboration





NOAA’s Commitment to Anglers

NOAA has undertaken an
Initiative to establish a strong

AA and trusting partnership with
”S%RIES the recreational community

 Listening to anglers

« Empowering anglers as responsible
stewards and resource users

« Developing National and Regional
Recreational Action Agendas to
address priority issues

* Following through on commitments






FISHERIES

Goal is improved:

Fishing Opportunities
Recreational Catch and
Effort Data

Socio-economic data
Communication
Institutional Orientation

Recreational Engagement Initiative

Approach:

* Address important regional needs

* Build upon existing programs
consistent with vision themes

* Build public/private partnerships
where possible

* Focus on outcome rather than
process improvements





Recreational Engagement Initiative
Highlights
* Improved Fishing Opportunities
« Barotrauma workshops

NOAA * Gulf Red Snapper

FISHERIES * Improved Recreational Catch and Effort Data

« Marine Recreational Information Program

* Improved Socio-Economic Data
 Saltwater Angler Expenditures
” * Socio-economic data gap analysis
[ (OME - Improved Communication
NS | * Regional recreational fisheries websites and newsletters
« Regional recreational coordinator network created

* Institutional Orientation
« Visibility of Recreational Fishing






On the Horizon

2014
NO * National Saltwater
FISHERIES 2013 Recreational Fisheries
» Regional recreational Summit |l
fisheries roundtables * Next generation national
- National angler recreational action agenda

perceptions survey
* MONF lI

* Regional recreational
action agenda






RFEI - Habitat Linkages

Nahona"y

Coordination with NMFS OHC on NFHP and
other habitat projects

« Habitat component within National Action
Agenda

| == *  Conduit to national recreational fishing

community





RFEI -

Habitat Linkages
(Continued)

Reglonally
NOAA Communication between Regional
FISHERIES recreational and NFHP coordinators/regional

partnerships

 Habitat components within regional action
agendas

 Dissemination of key habitat
information/science to regional/local
recreational community





Looking Forward

> * How can the marine recreational fishing

community be engaged to help ID and
NOAA y e Bt 10 TIED
FISHERIES  resolve habitat challenges”

h * In what ways might NFHP be able to bring
" | focus on habitat iIssues important to the

marine recreational fishing community?






NOAA Thank You
FISHERIES

Questions or Comments:

Russell.Dunn@noaa.gov
7127-551-3740




mailto:Russell.Dunn@noaa.gov




Landscape Conservation Cooperatives

LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION
COOPERATIVES

Douglas J. Austen
LCC National Coordinator
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

‘The conservation community faces unprecedented issues of scale, pace,
and complexity in sustaining our Nation’s fish and wildlife resources.”

r‘gr‘ EY | .

“The conservation challenges of the 21st Century represent a force of change
more far-reaching and consequential than any previously encountered.”
2

2/6/2013





2/6/2013

Secretarial Order 3289

Addressing the Impacts of Climate Change on
America's Water, Land, and Other Natural and Cultural
Resources (9/14/09)

Established the:

e DOI Climate Science Centers

* Landscape Conservation
Cooperatives

“..Interior bureaus and agencies must work together, and with
other federal, state, tribal and local governments, and private
landowner partners, to develop landscape-level strategies for
unoderstanding and responding to climate change impacts.”

Landscape Conservation Cooperatives
What are they?

Applied conservation science partnerships. Partners
include federal and state agencies, Tribes, conservation

organizations, and universities within a geographically
defined area

Fundamental units of planning and adaptive science
that inform conservation actions on the ground

A national and international network of land, water,
wildlife and cultural resource managers and interested
public and private organizations






2/6/2013

LCC Network: Vision and Mission

Vision: To sustain natural and cultural resources valued
by society for current and future generations.

Mission: To function as a network of cooperatives that
provide the forums for developing a shared vision of
landscapes that sustain natural and cultural resources,
that cooperates in its implementation, and that
collaborates in its refinement.

LCC Geographies — A Seamless Network

L Conservation

[ 1. Appalachian 13. Pising and Praiie Petholes T 19. Nortrwestaen Interior Forest
2. California . Guif Coant Prairis. I 14 South Allant: U 20 Westemn Alaska

N 3.Desert I 5. Guf Coastal Plains and Crzarks 15. Southem Rockies 21 Pacific islands
4, Eastern Tabigrass Prairie and Big Rvers 10. Morh Atlantic B 15 Upper Midwest and Great Lakes [0 22 Caribbean
S, Groat Basin I 1. Morth Pacific 17. Aleutian and Bering Sea Islands

B . Great Horihem N 12. Peninsular Florida B 15 Arcc






Involvement in the LCC’s

e All 50 state natural resource agencies
* Many state parks, forest programs
O Department of water in some western states
e Western Gov’s Assoc., NE
¢ All major federal agencies —
* FWS, NPS, BLM, BOR, USGS
* USFS, NRCS
* NOAA/NMFS, EPA, USACE

* Tribes — individual and consolidated groups

* Non-governmental organizations

LCC Organizational Structure

The strategy team has agreed specific national needs exist that exceed
the current capacity of the LCC enterprise.

22 Individual LCC's LCT Executive
r Committee

LCC Coordinators LCC Coordinators
& Sdence Coord. Team (LCT)

& Scdience Coord. L
LCC Science
Coordinators

Team

LCC Coordinators
& Science Coord. Lec-ese

)

Communications
Workgroup Workgroup

Performance Other
Measures Workgroups
Workgroup (total of 11)

2/6/2013





2/6/2013

Development of a National
LCC Council

LANDSCAPE CONSERVATION
COOPERATIVES

National Strategy Team Work

January 2012: U.S. Institute convened representative
National Strategy Team for initial meeting in
Washington, D.C.

February — July 2012: Strategy Team participated in 2
in-person meetings and multiple conference calls to
identify national-level needs and develop a draft
charter.

September 2012: Strategy team drafted charter
proposal at final meeting in Denver.






Strategy Team Members
.

Federal Agencies

Kit Muller, Bureau of Land Management

Cat Hawkins-Hoffman, National Park Service

Doug Parsons, National Park Service
Roger Griffis, NOAA Fisheries Service
Dave Cleaves, U.S. Forest Service
Monica Tomosy, U.S. Forest Service
Doug Beard, U.S. Geological Survey
Robin O’Malley, U.S. Geological Survey

States

Doug Vincent-Lang, Alaska Department of
Fish and Game

Josh Avey, Arizona Game and Fish
Department

Larry Voyles, Arizona Game and Fish
Department

John Rogner, lllinois Department of Natural

Non-G [e] izati LCC Staff
Mark Humpert, Association of Fish and Doug Austen, National LCC Network
Wildiife Agencies Ben Thatcher, National LCC Network

quyA:I';Zrl‘c;;',e:\ssoclqhon of Fish and Wildlife Debra Schlafmann, California LCC

Sara Vickerman, Defenders of Wildlife Genevieve Johnson, Desert LCC

Bruce Stein, National Wildlife Federation Deanna Spooner, Pacific Islands CCC

Garritt Voggesser, National Wildlife Ken McDermond, South Atlantic LCC

Federation Karen Murphy, Western Alaska LCC
Kurt Russo, Native American Land
Conservancy .
Tribal

Mary Klein, NatureServe
Don Motanic, Intertribal Timber Council

Ulalia Woodside, Pacific Islands
Mark Kramer, The Nature Conservancy CCC/Kamehameha Schools

Leslie Honey, NatureServe

Christie McGregor, The Nature Conservancy
Christy Plumer, The Nature Conservancy
Terra Rentz, The Wildlife Society

Steve Moyer, Trout Unlimited

Resources Zach Cockrum, Trout Unlimited

Kenny Ribbeck, Louisiana Department of Jad Daley, Trust for Public Land
Wildlife and Fisheries

Mallory Martin, North Carolina Wildlife
Resources Commission

Breece Robertson, Trust for Public Land

Purpose

The LCC National Council will support the
cooperative large-scale conservation efforts of the
LCC network by working with them to enhance
coordination among the LCCs and to identify
ecological and institutional challenges that should
be addressed at the national scale. Serving as the
national voice for the LCC network, the council will
seek to support actions that can be taken at the
national level to facilitate the work of the
cooperatives.

2/6/2013





Goals
]

Integrate national conservation initiatives and partnerships (i.e. State Wildlife
Action Plans, Migratory Bird Joint Ventures, National Fish Habitat Partnerships, and
The Nature Conservancy’s Ecoregional Assessments) with the LCC network and
provide a venue for higher level conversations about reducing programmatic
duplication and improving efficiency.

Promote, support and ensure recognition of the LCCs as an effectively functioning,
coordinated, and connected network that enhances landscape-scale conservation.
Build a national-level constituency for the LCCs that:

o Focuses on strategic policy engagement

o Shares LCC achievements

o Promotes the LCCs within federal agencies and Congress

o Catalyzes greater commitment by partners to the regional LCCs

Communicate consistent messages about the LCC enterprise at the national level

Increase Tribal government, Alaska Native, First Nation, and indigenous
peoples’ engagement in LCCs.

Membership - Composition

6 Federal agency directors — Agency directors from
BLM, USFWS, NPS, USFS, NRCS, and NOAA will hold

permanent seats.

4 tribal participants — may be from tribal leadership or
tribal organizations

4 State agency directors — State agencies will be
nominated by each of the four AFWA regions.

4 NGO participants - NGO members of strategy team
conduct process to select initial participants.

1 LCC participant - LCT will make recommendation.

o LCT Executive Committee participation encouraged in a non-
membership capacity.

2/6/2013





Membership - Composition

—
2 “major partnership” participants — Initial
participants from JVs and NFHAPs.

4 international participants — 2 from Canada and
2 from Mexico.

2 “At Large” participants — will be filled at a future
date by the LCC National Council.

LCC Summary

® Conservation-Science partnership model is
now producing high quality results for
partners.

Agency engagement at all levels is increasing
and will continue as the LCC’s are seen as a
permanent component of the conservation
effort.

Increasing efficiency, leveraging resources,
and engaging partners.

2/6/2013






MEMORANDUM
To: LCC Network and Partners
From: U.S. Institute for Environmental Conflict Resolution

Subject: LCC National Council Charter Proposal

Landscape Conservation Cooperatives (LCCs) were established as a network of partnerships to
collaboratively address conservation at a landscape-scale across North America, the Caribbean, and U.S.
affiliated Pacific Islands. The existing LCC network is comprised of twenty-two regional LCCs, which are
self-directed, stand-alone partnerships whose work is guided by an LCC steering committee. Currently,
there is a network-wide coordinating team comprised of LCC Coordinators, but this group cannot
address critical national-level needs for coordination and support across the LCC network. Ever since the
LCC effort was initiated in 2009, multiple parties have pointed toward the need for a National Council to
serve the LCC network. During the November 2010 LCC workshop at the National Conservation Training
Center in West Virginia, a working group was engaged to develop the initial concepts for a National
Council.

In response to these efforts and ongoing discussions about the value of a National Council, in 2011 the
U. S. Department of the Interior (DOI) engaged the U.S. Institute for Environmental Conflict Resolution
(U.S. Institute) to conduct an independent, third-party neutral assessment of national partners and DOI
leadership to gauge potential support, concerns, and suggestions for convening an LCC National Council.
The assessment findings indicated there were critical national-level needs to support the long-term
viability of the LCC network, which included: (1) overarching coordination of LCC efforts; (2) consistency
between LCCs for coordination and communication to support a cohesive purpose; (3) articulation of
shared outcomes; (4) support for collaboration across geographies; and (5) advocacy for LCCs.

Given the general support for such a body, the U.S. Institute convened a representative national
“strategy team” to collaboratively develop a path forward and create a proposal for a national body that
would balance the broadly recognized tension between the need to preserve and protect the self-
directed nature of the LCCs with the need for an integrated, interdependent network. Members of the
strategy team were selected to represent the broad array of partners interviewed for the assessment.
Strategy team participants are listed below.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012 1





Federal Agencies

Kit Muller, Bureau of Land Management
Cat Hawkins-Hoffman, National Park Service
Doug Parsons, National Park Service

Roger Griffis, NOAA Fisheries Service

Dave Cleaves, U.S. Forest Service

Monica Tomosy, U.S. Forest Service

Doug Beard, U.S. Geological Survey

Robin O’Malley, U.S. Geological Survey

Non-Governmental Organizations

Mark Humpert, Association of Fish and Wildlife
Agencies

Gary Taylor, Association of Fish and Wildlife
Agencies

Sara Vickerman, Defenders of Wildlife

Bruce Stein, National Wildlife Federation
Garritt Voggesser, National Wildlife Federation
Kurt Russo, Native American Land Conservancy
Mary Klein, NatureServe

Leslie Honey, NatureServe

Mark Kramer, The Nature Conservancy
Christie McGregor, The Nature Conservancy
Christy Plumer, The Nature Conservancy

Terra Rentz, The Wildlife Society

Steve Moyer, Trout Unlimited

Zach Cockrum, Trout Unlimited

Jad Daley, Trust for Public Land

Breece Robertson, Trust for Public Land

LCC Staff

Doug Austen, National LCC Network
Ben Thatcher, National LCC Network
Debra Schlafmann, California LCC
Genevieve Johnson, Desert LCC
Deanna Spooner, Pacific Islands CCC
Ken McDermond, South Atlantic LCC
Karen Murphy, Western Alaska LCC

Tribal

Don Motanic, Intertribal Timber Council
Ulalia Woodside, Pacific Islands
CCC/Kamehameha Schools

States

Doug Vincent-Lang, Alaska Department of Fish
and Game

Josh Avey, Arizona Game and Fish Department
Larry Voyles, Arizona Game and Fish
Department

John Rogner, lllinois Department of Natural
Resources

Kenny Ribbeck, Louisiana Department of
Wildlife and Fisheries

Mallory Martin, North Carolina Wildlife
Resources Commission

Over the course of four meetings and numerous conference calls, the strategy team delved deeply into

the issues of unmet needs, and whether additional support was needed for the LCC Network. The

strategy team discussed needs for coordination, guidance, and support that cannot be met by the LCC

network structure. Through their deliberations, the strategy team, working via consensus, reached the

conclusion that there was strong need for a national council to serve and advance the LCCs and the LCC

network. Recognizing that the LCCs are self-directed partnerships and that participants come from

agencies, organizations and Tribes with their own inherent authorities, the National Council respects

such authorities and will work collaboratively to provide coordination, strategic guidance and

recommendations. As such, the National Council will have no authority over individual LCCs.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012





The strategy team developed the attached draft charter that identifies proposed structure, membership,
purpose, goals, and objectives for the LCC National Council to meet these identified needs. The strategy
team is now soliciting feedback from the LCC network and the broader conservation community to
further refine the proposed council charter.

The process for soliciting and considering feedback is as follows:
e Share draft charter with LCC network, current and potential partners
e Host three webinars to solicit input on the draft charter
e Strategy team will revise draft charter based on input received
e Strategy Team will use the revised charter to convene the LCC National Council

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012 3





LCC National Council — Draft Charter

Introduction

Conservation challenges facing today’s natural and cultural heritage, including the impacts of climate
change, are enormous. They represent a force of change more consequential than any previously
encountered. The magnitude of the challenge is so unprecedented and great that it requires us to come
together, harness our collective power, and approach conservation in ways we never have before.

Existing governance structures struggle with landscape-scale management and the multiple scales of
collaboration and coordination required. A network of twenty-two self-directed Landscape
Conservation Cooperatives (LCC) was established to help address these complex conservation and
collaboration challenges. This network is working across geographies and jurisdictions at a new regional
scale and delivering unprecedented regional collaboration. The LCC network is helping to create
enabling conditions to support the success of conservation efforts and initiatives underway across the
landscape.

The LCC National Council will serve the LCC Network by learning from them and helping to identify the
ecological and institutional challenges faced by the LCCs that should be addressed at the national scale.
Serving as the national voice for the LCC Network, the council will seek to support changes that can be
made at the national level to facilitate the work of the LCCs. The council will provide a platform for
highlighting LCC successes and challenges. Sustained funding is needed for the LCC Network, and the
council will work to ensure that local and regional partnership efforts are supported at the highest
levels.

Looking inwardly, the LCC National Council will provide national level coordination to identify
opportunities to reduce duplication, leverage resources and capacities, and improve efficiencies and
conservation outcomes across the LCCs.

Recognizing that the LCCs are self-directed partnerships and that participants come from agencies,
organizations and Tribes with their own inherent authorities, the National Council respects such
authorities and will work collaboratively to provide coordination, strategic guidance and
recommendations. As such, the National Council will have no authority over individual LCCs.

This is an initial charter that will serve as guidance to convene the LCC National Council. All these
elements, including council membership, will be revisited by the National Council within the first two
years of operation.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012





Purpose

The LCC National Council will support the cooperative large-scale conservation efforts of the LCC
network by working with them to enhance coordination among the LCCs and to identify ecological and
institutional challenges that should be addressed at the national scale. Serving as the national voice for
the LCC network, the council will seek to support actions that can be taken at the national level to
facilitate the work of the cooperatives.

Goals

The following National Council goals emerged from the LCC Network and from national level partners.
They identify needs essential to sustaining the viability of the LCCs that the existing network cannot
address without additional national level support.

e Integrate national conservation initiatives and partnerships (i.e. State Wildlife Action Plans,
Migratory Bird Joint Ventures, National Fish Habitat Partnerships, and The Nature Conservancy’s
Ecoregional Assessments) with the LCC network and provide a venue for higher level
conversations about reducing programmatic duplication and improving efficiency.

e Promote, support and ensure recognition of the LCCs as an effectively functioning, coordinated,
and connected network that enhances landscape-scale conservation.

e Build a national-level constituency for the LCCs that:

0 Focuses on strategic policy engagement

0 Shares LCC achievements

0 Promotes the LCCs within federal agencies and Congress

0 Catalyzes greater commitment by partners to the regional LCCs

e Communicate consistent messages about the LCC enterprise at the national level

e Increase Tribal government, Alaska Native, First Nation, and indigenous peoples’ engagement in
LCCs.

Organizational Structure

LCCs: There are twenty-two individual, self-directed LCCs. Each of these LCCs has a steering committee
as well as working groups. Each LCC also has a staff Coordinator and Science Coordinator. At the
national staff level, there is a National LCC Coordinator and an Assistant LCC Coordinator.

LCC staff: The LCC staff have organized into an LCC Coordinators Team (LCT) and a Science Coordinators
team. The LCT has also selected an Executive Committee to work directly with the National LCC
Coordinator and the LCT collectively on operational aspects of network governance, and other matters
as appropriate, while respecting individual LCC steering committee governance authority.

LCC Network: Collectively, the partners in the twenty-two LCCs, the twenty-two Steering Committees
and their staff, and the National LCC Coordinator and Assistant LCC Coordinator comprise the LCC
Network.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012 5





LCC National Council: The council will coordinate, collaborate and provide strategic guidance to the LCC
Network and all its partners. Additionally, the council will work to engage other organizations, agencies,
tribes, and NGOs to further support collaborative landscape scale conservation.

Working Groups: When the council has identified a high-priority issue, action, or product, they may form
a workgroup to conduct discussions and prepare recommendations for consideration by the council.
Workgroups will carry out tasks as assigned by the council. Workgroups may be permanent or non-
permanent and may disassemble when an issue is resolved or a product completed.

Membership
Selection Criteria
The following are characteristics the National Council seeks in all members. Individuals selected for the
council will be collectively evaluated relative to these required characteristics:
e Be an active participant and an advocate for the LCC mission.
e Have a commitment and willingness to collaborate.
e Be able to think beyond the boundaries of his/her agency, organization, or Tribe.
e Be able to represent a broad array of natural and cultural resources.
e Have decision-making authority/influence within their agency, organization, or Tribe.
e Be committed to soliciting input from and reporting back to their agencies, organizations, Tribes,
and colleagues.
e Have experience in collaborative processes at different scales.
e Beinvolved with an agency, organization, or Tribe that:
0 Is engaged in the LCC enterprise.
0 Hasresources and/or a mission that aligns with the LCC network.
O Has science/knowledge capacity and/or is actively engaged in resource management
activities.

The following overarching characteristics are desirable in some of the members to ensure the National
Council has these attributes:
e Be able to represent a North American perspective that includes international interests (i.e. It is
recommended that the Council select a member(s) that come from the non-contiguous United
States and/or Mexico or Canada).
e Have science/knowledge communications capacity.

Participation: All members (or their designated alternate) are expected to be present at a majority of
the meetings, conference calls, or other forums in which discussion and/or decision making occurs.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012 6





Alternates/designees: The Council will be effective only with consistent and engaged participation.
Members should designate alternates who are fully informed, can act on behalf of their member, and
can participate consistently.

Composition
The LCC National Council will consist of twenty-three participants as outlined below:
e 6 Federal agency directors — The participating federal agencies were selected based on their
authority to make natural resource management decisions about large landscapes.

0 Federal agency directors from the Bureau of Land Management, the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service, the National Park Service, the U.S. Forest Service, the Natural Resource
Conservation Service, and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration will
hold permanent seats on the council.

e 4 Tribal participants

O Tribal participants will not be limited to tribal leadership, but also can be participants
from tribal organizations.

0 Tribal participation may include Tribes, Alaska Natives, First Nations, Pacific Islanders,
Caribbean peoples, and other indigenous representatives.

0 Selection entity: Initially, Tribal representatives on the National Strategy Team will
develop a selection process, initial call for applications, and review and select members.
Thereafter, review and selection will be the responsibility of the National Council.

e 4 State agency directors

O State agencies will be nominated by each of the four respective AFWA regions.

0 Selection entity: Each regional state fish and wildlife association’s executive committee
(i.e. Southeastern Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, Northeast Association of
Fish and Wildlife Agencies, Midwest Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, and
Western Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies) will review and select their
respective participants.

e 4 NGO participants

0 Selection entity: Participating NGOs on the LCC Strategy Team will conduct the initial
call for applications, will review applications, and will make final selections. Thereafter,
review and selection will be the responsibility of the National Council.

e 1 LCC participant

0 LCC participants could be steering committee members or LCC staff and will be selected
by the LCC Network. The LCC participant should have the ability to speak for broader
LCC issues. In addition, attendance from the LCT/Executive Committee is expected.

0 Selection entity: The LCT will recommend an individual for participation. If the LCT
cannot reach consensus, then their list of recommendations will be forwarded to the
Executive Committee for final selection.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012





e 2 “major partnership” (MP) participants

0 MP participants will include participants from major partnerships such as Migratory Bird
Joint Ventures, National Fish Habitat Action Partnerships, and other relevant
partnerships.

0 Selection entity: The LCC Strategy Team has determined that, initially, MP participants
will come from the Joint Ventures and the National Fish Habitat Partnerships. Future
Major Partnerships will be determined by the LCC National Council. The participant for
the Joint Venture will be selected by the Joint Venture Management Board. The
National Fish Habitat Action Partnership participant will be selected by the National Fish
Habitat Action Partnership Board.

e 4 International Participants

0 International participants will include two from Canada and two from Mexico.

0 Selection entity: LCC staff, on behalf of the council, will send letters to all Canadian and
Mexican partners participating in LCC Steering Committees and ask them to suggest
participants. Additionally, LCC staff and Strategy Team members will reach out to
Canadian and Mexican conservation entities via trilateral organizations such as the
Trilateral Committee for Wildlife and Ecosystem Conservation Management and the
North American Free Trade Agreement’s Commission for Environmental Cooperation to
seek participation.

e 2 “At Large” participants

0 An additional two member seats are designated as “at large” and will be filled at a
future date by the LCC National Council.

0 “Atlarge” participants may come from organizations and interests not currently
represented, such as local governments, international partners, industry, the
philanthropic community, and other federal agencies such as the Bureau of Indian
Affairs, the Bureau of Reclamation, the U.S. Department of Energy, U.S. Department of
Defense, U.S. Department of Transportation, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers, and the U.S. Geological Survey.

In addition to the above designated voting members, the LCC National Council is encouraged to actively
invite participation from other strategic partners as appropriate. While not voting members, other
partners involved in landscape-scale conservation are encouraged to attend and participate in the LCC
National Council.

The Strategy Team recognizes the direct tie between the LCCs and the Climate Science Centers and
encourages attendance by an appropriate National Climate Change and Wildlife Science Center
representative.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012 8





Terms

Initial term lengths:

The National Council’s first participants will be selected for either a 3-year or 2-year term to initiate a
staggered term rotation. After the first 3-year terms are served, all terms will be two years in length.

Initial term durations are as follows:
e Federal agencies — Permanent members
e Tribal representatives — two 3-year terms and two 2-year terms
e State representatives — two 3-year terms and two 2-year terms
e NGO representatives — two 3-year terms and two 2-year terms
e |CCrepresentative — 2-year term
e Major Partnership representatives — 2-year terms
e Atlarge seats — 2-year terms

Roles & Responsibilities

The LCC National Council is responsible for reporting to Congress, States, Tribes, and other partners on
the status and accomplishments of the LCCs. Recognizing that the LCCs are self-directed partnerships
and that participants come from agencies, organizations and Tribes with their own inherent authorities,
the National Council respects such authorities and will work collaboratively to provide coordination,
strategic guidance and recommendations. As such, the National Council will have no authority over
individual LCCs.

Specific key roles are outlined below.

Chair — The Chair of the National Council holds the following responsibilities:

e Prepare a written meeting agenda for all matters to be addressed by the council.

e Prepare and issue all notices, including meeting notices, which are required to be given to the
council and public.

e Preside at all meetings of the council, and unless otherwise directed by the council, present
items of business for consideration by the council in the order listed on the meeting agenda.

e Appoint working groups as required.

e “Call the vote” when consensus is not achieved,

e Represent the LCC network to the Administration, Congress, key decision-makers, etc.

Vice chair — The Vice-chair will fulfill all the responsibilities of the chair in his/her absence.

Staff - The National LCC coordinator, or his/her designee, will provide staff support for the National
Council and assist the Chair in finalizing meeting arrangements, tracking votes, documenting meeting
discussions, distributing council notes and products, and identifying opportunities to speak on behalf of
the LCC network.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012





Decision-making

The National Council’s decision-making process will consist of the following elements.

Quorum:
Two-thirds of the LCC National Council must be present for decision-making to occur.

Decision-Making Process:
The National Council will seek consensus for all decisions. This implies thoroughly exploring issues and
working actively and constructively to find mutual agreement. If full consensus is not possible, then the
National Council will move to the decision-making model as outlined below:
e Inthe absence of consensus, a teleconference or in-person meeting is needed to make
decisions. Email conversations may only be used to make decisions where consensus exists.
e If a quorum has been reached, agreement must come from 75% of the number of participants
present.

Meetings: The National Council will meet quarterly (two in-person meetings and two web/conference
call meetings), particularly as the Council is initially becoming established. The National Council can elect
to meet more or less frequently as needed. The Council may reduce the number of in-person meetings
to once per year if travel restrictions or funding is a barrier for achieving quorum. Decision-making as
noted above can occur via e-mail or conference calls between quarterly meetings if actively facilitated
by the Chair.

Travel support: The National Council may provide travel support for non-federal partners as needed to
support capacity to participate.

Draft LCC National Council Charter
9/28/2012 10






DRAFT

FWS Science Investment and Accountability Schedule
Commitment in Support of a National Landscape Conservation Cooperative Network
FY 2013 - 20xx

Complex and persistent challenges have led the Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) to re-assess how best to pursue the FWS mission. Our
response, as well as that of the larger conservation community, focuses on improved levels of collaboration that enable a region’s private,
state, federal, and tribal conservation infrastructure to operate as a networked, leveraged system. Specifically, within any given ecological
region, entities comprising the private, state, federal, and tribal conservation infrastructure must interact as a system if they are to expect
system-level impacts. Organizations and agencies recognize the need for “functional connectivity” and are developing ways to integrate
their otherwise independent capacity for conservation planning and design, conservation delivery, as well as monitoring and evaluation.
They acknowledge that the goals and objectives expressed at landscape scales exceed the singular grasp of any one organization. In
recognition of the importance of these emerging themes in conservation, the FWS has committed to:

e Connecting explicit and strategic goals to budgets by collaboratively developing conservation targets that link biological objectives
for fish, wildlife, and plants and other natural resources to landscape and habitat conditions necessary to sustain species at
desired levels;

e Leveraging assets in ways that support the health of the “conservation partner ecosystem”;

e Pursuing conservation at landscape scales as a science-based, socially-driven endeavor;

e Remaining transparent and accountable to our work by communicating outcomes and results of investments based on
conservation goals and measurable objectives.

e Acknowledging the uncertainties in alternative landscape conditions by using an adaptive management framework where
learning is an explicit objective of management; and

Integrating our work with partners to effectively achieve conservation results expected by the public.

The FWS Science Investment and Accountability Schedule (SIAS) will address our contribution and developing role with the National
Landscape Conservation Cooperative (LCC) Network. Keeping in mind our agency’s mission and our vision for science, the following fiscal
and accountability measures will help ensure that our investment and participation with the network remains efficient and effective; and
supports the following Vision and Mission of the Network.





DRAFT

LCC Network Vision: Landscapes capable of sustaining natural and cultural resources for current and future generations.
LCC Network Mission: A network of cooperatives depends on LCCs to:

e Develop and provide integrated science-based information about the implications of climate change and other stressors
for the sustainability of natural and cultural resources;

e Develop shared, landscape-level, conservation objectives and inform conservation strategies that are based on a shared
scientific understanding about the landscape, including the implications of current and future environmental stressors;

e Facilitate the exchange of applied science in the implementation of conservation strategies and products developed by the
Cooperative or their partners;

e Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of LCC conservation strategies in meeting shared objectives;

e Develop appropriate linkages that connect LCCs to ensure an effective network.

SIAS is comprised of nine interrelated Conservation Activity Areas and associated benchmarks that are guided by the Strategic Habitat
Conservation (SHC) framework. SHC was adopted by the FWS and USGS in 2006 to improve where and how to deliver conservation most
efficiently to pursue specific biological outcomes. Implementation of SHC incorporates elements of the conservation enterprise in an
iterative process of adaptive management, including: biological planning, conservation design, delivery of conservation actions, and
decision-based monitoring, and assumption-driven research.

Activity Area 1 Organizational Operations - Addresses fundamental organizational and administrative components necessary to
establish and maintain a LCC as part of the National Network.

Activity Area 2 Landscape Conservation Planning Foundation - Defines the foundation upon which an LCC builds an integrated
landscape conservation planning, design, and delivery process.

Activity Area 3 Landscape Conservation Design - Integrates the biological, ecological, and cultural goals and objectives that
support priority resources defined by an LCC.

Activity Area 4 Informing Conservation Delivery - Communicates and delivers science and technology products and tools for
on-the-ground actions and decision making so as to influence current and future landscape conditions.

Activity Area 5 Decision-based Monitoring - Tracks status and trajectory of priority resources and changes in landscape
conditions and conservation objectives.





Activity Area 6

Activity Area 7

Activity Area 8

Activity Area 9

DRAFT

Assumption-driven Research - Evaluates key uncertainties and assumptions through targeted research to help
guide improvements for biological planning conservation design, delivery, inventory and monitoring, and
operational evaluations.

Data Management and Integration - Facilitates information discovery, sharing, and collaboration.

Science and Conservation Community Integration - Engages with the key science consortia and conservation
partnerships within the geography.

Conservation Science and Adaptation Strategy - Provides context and strategies for LCC actions and identifies
processes for sharing information, knowledge, products, tools, and strategies that benefit the LCC Network’s vision,
mission, and guiding principles.

By Activity Area, the document identifies benchmarks that will help guide the allocation of funding appropriated by Congress to the Fish
and Wildlife Service for Cooperative Landscape Conservation and Adaptive Science. Each benchmark reflects an expected progression of
development and achievement for LCCs. Initially, they emphasize administrative activities that are essential for building the strong
foundation every LCC needs to succeed in its conservation mission. Later, the benchmarks emphasize fish and wildlife activities that are
integral components of every adaptive management framework and which enable LCC partners to produce the scientific knowledge and
capacity, and conservation plans and strategies, needed to sustain fish and wildlife at landscape scales by accomplishing specific biological

outcomes.

FWS Internal Peer Review of Self-assessment

Option 1: Each LCC’s scorecard will be reviewed by a LCC Coordinator/Science Coordinator from a different FWS region. This
could be done anonymously, but should also consider how to have open process to encourage dialog.

Option 2: Panels consisting of LCC Coordinators/Science Coordinators, Science Apps ARDs, and FWS Steering Committee
Representatives will review and provide feedback on LCC scorecards.





DRAFT

Organizational Operations - Addresses fundamental organizational and administrative components necessary to establish and
maintain a LCC as part of the National Network. The LCC consists of the Conservation Science Team (CST) providing direct staff support, Steering
Committee Member (SCM) organizations, and science and technical teams. The CST and SCM actively engage other relevant individuals,
organizations, and partnerships creating collaborative relationships with key decision makers who influence current and future landscape
conditions. The CST maintains strong professional contacts and connections, networking to keep Cooperative members abreast of current
conservation issues, techniques, etc. Also, the CST identifies partner capabilities to address the LCC mission and works with partners to address
capacity gaps by adding key positions, relying on partner capacities, utilizing contracts, or by training appropriate to the size and complexity of the
LCC geographic region. The LCC participates in development of common national LCC network messages to relevant state, regional, and national
entities and cultivates informational relationships with its Congressional delegation and staff as appropriate.

Activity Area
Benchmarks

1-
2.
3-
4-
5-

Minimally; not at all; none;

Somewhat; barely; fair; to a small degree;
Medium; moderately; average:

Mostly; largely; good; to a large degree:

Fully; completely; excellent; significantly:

Self-Assessment and
Supporting Documentation
(use separate sheet as necessary)

Engagement and Coordination —
LCC CST and SCM are active in
fostering strategic engagement and
outreach to external audiences
influencing landscape conservation
decisions including state and federal
agencies, Universities, NGOs, and
partnerships (e.g., JVs, NFHPs,
AFWA regions), and regional and
local community planners.

Leveraging Resources - Member
agencies/organizations of the LCC
contribute resources (e.g., staff,
funding, tools) to fill science and
technical capacity and information
gaps necessary to achieve the LCC
mission.






Steering Committee - Steering
Committee makes decisions toward
achieving mission, and has
established metrics and processes
to measure success toward meeting
goals and objectives.

DRAFT

Engaged Technical Community and
Dedicated Technical Staff - The LCC
has organized technical capacity to
improve the community's
knowledge base and to address
specific conservation information
and science needs. The LCC has
dedicated technical staff (e.g.,
science coordinator, geospatial
technician, and other science
expertise) as appropriate to the size
and complexity of the LCC
geography. The technical
community for each LCC interacts
and shares lessons learned, as
appropriate, with other LCCs and
the National Network.

Participation in LCC network —
CST and SCM participate in LCC
Network activities including staff
participation on national working
groups, coordinator calls, document
review and national meetings.
Provide information and otherwise
support briefing for decision makers
(e.g., Congressional delegation).






DRAFT

Landscape Conservation PIanning Foundation - Defines the foundation upon which anLCC builds an integrated landscape
conservation planning, design, and delivery process that informs the identification of priorities to target science and technology relevant to
achieving the mission of the LCC and the LCC Network. Establishes the conservation science foundation of LCCs based on transparent replicable
processes and procedures to identify priority biological, ecological, and cultural features and processes expressed as measurable conservation
objectives at various spatial and temporal scales. To be successful, landscape conservation planning and priority setting is a dynamic and iterative
process that acknowledges and anticipates change, particularly new threats, that require LCCs to assess conservation priorities over time.

Establish Conservation Priorities
- The LCC conducts systematic and
transparent process(es) to
determine biological, ecological and
cultural conservation priorities
relevant to achieving the mission of
the LCC and supporting the LCC
Network.

Assess Existing Conservation
Efforts - The LCC analyzes past
and/or current large scale planning
efforts and existing conservation
priorities (e.g., those identified by
JV, NFHP, Marine National
Monuments management plans,
State Wildlife Action Plans, etc.)
within the LCC geography. Where
applicable, the LCC helps integrates
conservation priorities and design
activity across partnerships to
achieve LCC mission.
Knowledge/information gaps to
support existing efforts are
identified.






Collate and Establish Measurable
Conservation Goals and Objectives
- The LCC is using existing
conservation goals and measurable
objectives as appropriate or
establishing new conservation goals
and measurable objectives as
needed for the identified priority
resources. Goals and objectives are
linked to the ability of current and
future landscapes to

support desired resource levels at
appropriate spatial scales across an
LCC geography.

DRAFT

Refining Landscape Conservation

Planning Foundation - The LCC
partnership has developed a
mechanism and timeline for
updating conservation priorities and
associated objectives, including
revisiting the assumptions under
which it bases its decisions relative
to achieving the LCCs larger goals
and objectives.

Function as Part of Integrated
Network of Self-directed LCC
Partnerships
- LCC identifies shared priorities
with other LCC(s) and coordinates
planning and priority setting
activities as appropriate.






DRAFT

Landscape Conservation Design — Involves the integration of biological, ecological, and cultural goals and objectives that support
priority resources defined by the LCC and to support the mission of the LCC network. LCC members develop or assemble climate, land-cover,
land-use, hydrological and other relevant data in spatially explicit contexts used to define and predict integrated landscape patterns to support
biological, ecological, and cultural resource goals and objectives defined in previous activity area (planning foundations). Results of predicted
integrated landscape design are used to establish conservation and adaptation strategies to help target conservation delivery based on landscape-
scale assessments.

Landscape Assessment - The LCC
partnership conducts rigorous
analyses, in light of current and
expected future conditions, of the
predicted capacity of landscapes
within their geography to support
the LCC's priority resources at
objective levels.

Risk and Vulnerability
Assessment - LCC members are
coordinating, supporting or
conducting risk and vulnerability
assessments specific to the LCC's
priority resources and agreed upon
conservation goals and objectives.

Integration of Multiple
Conservation Objectives into
Landscape Conservation Design -
The LCC is utilizing outputs from
Planning Activity Area, landscape
assessments, risk & vulnerability
analyses to develop spatially-explicit
conservation design that reflect
landscape conditions to support
biological, ecological, and cultural
priorities of the LCC.






DRAFT

Provide Decision Support - The
LCC develops landscape
conservation decision support
information and tools to inform
partners’ conservation strategies
relative to meeting LCC objectives
for priority resources.

Function as Part of Integrated
Network of Self-directed LCC
Partnerships
- LCC identifies shared priorities
with other LCC(s) and coordinates
conservation design, as appropriate.

Informing Conservation Delivery — Ensuring that science and technology are useful and used by decision makers influencing
current and future landscape conditions. Many organizations participating as members of LCCs have extensive conservation delivery or related
programs and efforts. LCCs develop tools and information to inform conservation delivery decisions now and in the future and ensure tools are
relative to individual organization mission pursuits. These products are built with end users in mind, transferred and accessed with minimal
impediment, and used in a manner that improves landscape conservation and efforts to reach common and shared priorities toward functional
landscapes.

Assessment of Information
Delivery - The LCC develops user-
specific effective delivery
techniques to ensure that the
products and tools are available for
various decision makers influencing
landscape conditions relevant to
resource priorities and conservation
objectives of the LCC.

Decision-based Monitoring — Entails a collaborative monitoring approach to track and evaluate landscape change overtime relative
to LCC conservation objectives for priority resources. LCCs utilizes existing monitoring infrastructure to develop collaborative monitoring
networks among partners that efficiently track and evaluate status and trajectory of resource priorities and landscape condition change overtime.






Collaborative Monitoring —
Works with the Service’s Refuge
Inventory and Monitoring Program
and other LCC member
organizations with monitoring
capacity to facilitate the
development of a formal LCC
collaborative monitoring
community. Monitoring Community
defines clear monitoring objectives,
shared protocols, systematic
processes, and time intervals of
monitoring programs. The
partnership utilizes and builds on
existing monitoring programs and
capacities (e.g., National Park
Service, Forest Service, NOAA, state
agencies).

DRAFT

Tracking Priority Resource Status
- The LCC tracks change in status of
resource priorities relative to
established conservation objectives
at time-relevant intervals. Results
are being used by decision makers
to refine conservation and
adaptation actions.

Monitoring Landscape Change -
The LCC is using existing or
facilitates development of new
technologies to measure and
evaluate landscape change overtime
relative to resource priorities and
their respective conservation
objectives.






DRAFT

Function as Part of Integrated
Network of Self-directed LCC
Partnerships — The LCC coordinates
with the LCC network to share and
integrate (where appropriate)
monitoring protocols, processes,
and data to facilitate cross-LCC
integration and expedite learning
over space and time.

Assumption-d riven Research - places conservation planning, conservation design, and conservation delivery in the adaptive
management framework anticipated via SHC. Identified uncertainties and assumptions in the models used to develop conservation objectives are
prioritized and targeted for research. This information and knowledge will guide improvements to the SHC processes of biological planning,
conservation design, conservation delivery, inventory and monitoring, and operational evaluations.

Testing Underlying Assumptions
- The LCC has identified, prioritized,
and targeted research that
addresses key uncertainties and
significant gaps in knowledge at the
planning, design and monitoring
steps for the LCC's priority
resources.

Keyfactor/Sensitivity Analyses —
The LCC conducts or facilitates
statistical analyses of key model
parameters from planning
foundations and conservation
design to examine their relative
influence on current or projected
priority resources and conservation
objectives of the LCC.






DRAFT

Spatial Data Analyses — The LCC
conducts or facilitates rigorous

analyses of key spatial data
uncertainties (e.g., classification
errors) related to the use and
application of spatial data used in
planning and modeling. Errors are
documented to facilitate refinement
of geospatial datasets.

Data Management and Integration - racilitates formal mechanisms for information discovery, sharing, and collaboration.
Guidance documents from the LCC Network Data Management Working Group call for individual LCCs to coordinate information management
and delivery both internally (intra-LCC), and externally (inter-LCC) as many resource issues will cross existing LCC geographies. This Activity Area
addresses whether the LCCs are coordinating across partners and linking activities to standards developed to function as a national network.

Data Management Capacity - The
LCC has identified how information
management will occur among
Cooperative members and the LCC
Network.

Ongoing Projects Actively
Populating Shareable Systems - The
LCC lead data management entity is
facilitating the upload and use of
identified systems following best
practices and guidance from the
LCC Network Data Management
Working Group.






Function as Part of Integrated
Network of Self-directed LCC
Partnerships - Actively ensures that
LCC supported science, planning,
data, tools, priorities, etc., are
compatible and interoperable with
other LCCs so that LCC products and
activities can link to conservation
objectives and at broader scales
(e.g., continental and oceanic).

DRAFT

Science and Conservation Community Integration - 7o be successful, an LCC must fully engage the key science consortia
and conservation partnerships within the geography. For example, LCCs and Climate Science Centers (CSC) work together as CSCs provide
research in support of priority climate science needs identified by LCCs. Other important LCC partners and partnerships include, USGS
Cooperative Fish and Wildlife Research Units, Cooperative Ecosystem Studies Units, Migratory Bird Joint Ventures, National Fish Habitat
Partnerships and others. This element relates to the level of cooperation between the LCCs and relevant partner organizations, the depth of
involvement in shared planning and implementation, and the impact of cooperative science on resource management. LCCs must work closely
with other conservation science activities to ensure efforts are coordinated and integrated.

Climate Science Centers - LCC
and CSC collaborate on priority
setting and research activities,
interact regularly, and exchange
and/or integrate relevant science
information.

Science Partnerships: - The LCC
provides input to inform
development of partners’ strategic
science planning and foundational
documents that inform science
implementation plans.






DRAFT

Key Conservation Delivery
Partners (e.g., JVs, NFHP, AFWA
regional associations) - LCC has
established partnership and
interacts frequently to identify
applied conservation priorities and
related information needs.

Conservation Science and Adaptation Strategy - Establishes the context, collaborative and integrated strategies, and roles
and responsibilities of LCC partners in pursuing LCC mission. Each LCC is contributing to a broader effort by establishing and sharing priorities and
producing products and tools that have utility beyond the LCC's geography.

Conservation Integration &
Application Plan — A comprehensive
strategic action plan updated every
three years that describes science
agenda, approach and progress in
collaborative monitoring, and
communications strategy of the
LCC. Identifies processes for sharing
information, knowledge, products,
tools, and strategies that benefit the
LCC Network’s vision, mission, and
guiding principles.







¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Updated Survey of Fish Habitat Partnerships
on relationships with Landscape Conservation Cooperatives

Tom Busiahn, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
February 2013

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab 12d

In February 2012 a questionnaire was sent to the 18 recognized Fish Habitat Partnerships
(FHPs), asking questions about their working relationships with Landscape Conservation
Cooperatives (LCCs). The purpose was to gather information that will help to encourage
collaboration among FHPs and LCCs. Fourteen FHPs returned the completed questionnaire. A
report was included in the briefing book for the National Fish Habitat Board meeting of April 17-

18, 2012.

On January 7, 2013, each FHP was asked to update the information from the 2012 survey.
Thirteen responses were received, including three FHPs that had not responded in 2012.
Results are shown in the table below. New or updated information is shown in red text.

Generally communication and collaboration increased between 2011 and 2012, but decreases
were noted in a few cases. More FHP partners are represented on LCC steering committees
and subcommittees. Several FHPs responded to the question “What are the most effective
ways for FHPs to engage with LCCs?” These responses, lightly edited, are included after the

table.
Formal Official Joint projects Communicated Update
communication? representation on with LCCs? FHP science January 2013
LCC bodies? needs to LCCs?

Atlantic e North Atlantic e South Atlantic e North e North Atlantic | Involvement
Coastal Fish LCC LCC partnership Atlantic LCC LCC decreased with
Habitat e South Atlantic committee e South e South Atlantic | the Appalachian
Partnership LCC e North Atlantic Atlantic LCC LCC LCC and Gulf

e Peninsular LCC technical Helped develop | Helped develop | Coastal

Florida LCC

committees

e Peninsular
Florida LCC —
offered seat on
steering
committee to
FHP

2012 science
needs, and
engaged
through project
endorsements
and
implementation

2012 science
needs

e Appalachian
LCC
e Gulf Coastal
Plain/Ozarks
LCC
No
communication
in 2012

Plain/Ozarks LCC
in 2012.

Peninsular
Florida LCC
coordinator
presented at FHP
meeting

California
Fish
Passage
Forum

e North Pacific
LCC
e California LCC

No. Considering
nominating a
member of the
California LCC
steering committee

None

No






Formal
communication?

Official

representation on

LCC bodies?

Joint projects
with LCCs?

Communicated
FHP science
needs to LCCs?

Update
January 2013

Desert Fish
Habitat
Partnership

e Desert LCC
e Southern
Rockies LCC

None

None

e Southern
Rockies LCC
FWS Regional
meeting

Worote letters
and gave
presentations to
LCCs that
overlap DFHP
geography. LCCs
were informed
of science tools
available to
DFHP as well as
science and data
needs, e.g.
spring & ciénega
habitat
assessment &
monitoring
protocol, spatial
database for
assessment
information,
detailed spatial
data on
hydrological
alteration, such
as stream
dewatering or
change in timing
of peak runoff or
low flows to help
DFHP prioritize
projects to
benefit natural
hydrologic
process and
native fish
habitat.

Driftless
Area
Restoration
Effort

None

None

e Plains &
Prairie
Potholes
LCC

$130K project
with Midwest
FHPs to use
monitoring
data to drive
conservation
decisions

e Plains &
Prairie
Potholes LCC

e Eastern
Tallgrass
Prairie & Big
River LCC

Science needs
communicated
through the
Midwest
Regional NFHP
Coordinator

Looking forward
to working with
the Eastern
Tallgrass Prairie
& Big River LCC
as they continue
to develop






'S'i NATIONAL

FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

Tab 12d
Formal Official Joint projects Communicated Update
communication? representation on with LCCs? FHP science January 2013
LCC bodies? needs to LCCs?
Eastern e Appalachian e Appalachian LCC e Appalachian e Appalachian Worked with
Brook Trout LCC steering LCC and LCC via the Appalachian LCC
Joint e North Atlantic committee, Eastern science needs | to redesign
Venture LCC science & data Brook Trout workshop EBTJV website,
workshop JV launch e North which now
organization new Atlantic LCC serves for
community via internal and
web portals submitting external
e New Project funding communication
to develop proposal, and contains
web-based discussion at | much
tool for LCC-NFHAP information that
riparian meeting, and | was previously
restoration submittinga | unavailable.
in eastern list of science
U.S. streams needs
Fishers & e Plains & e Plains & Prairie e Plains & e Plains & When a science
Farmers Prairie Potholes LCC Prairie Prairie team leaderisin
Partnership Potholes LCC Potholes Potholes LCC | place, will
for the LCC Indirect communicate
Upper $115K project communication science needs to
Mississippi to develop a through Midwest | the LCCs
River Basin standardized, Science Advisory

incremental, &
sustainable
monitoring
strategy for
habitat
restoration in
the UMR Basin

$130K project
with Midwest
FHPs to use
monitoring data
to drive
conservation
decisions

Network.

Great Lakes
Basin Fish
Habitat
Partnership

e Upper
Midwest-
Great Lakes
LCC

e Upper Midwest-
Great Lakes LCC
FHP co-chairs have a
seat on the steering
committee.

e Plains &
Prairie
Potholes
LCC

$130K project
with Midwest
FHPs to use
monitoring data
to drive
conservation
decisions

e Plains &
Prairie
Potholes LCC

Indirect
communication
through Midwest
Science Advisory
Network






Formal Official Joint projects Communicated Update
communication? representation on with LCCs? FHP science January 2013
LCC bodies? needs to LCCs?
Great Plains | e Plains and e Plains and Prairie e Plains and e Plains and
Fish Habitat Prairie Pothole LCC Prairie Prairie
Partnership Pothole LCC technical team Pothole LCC Pothole LCC
Midwest NFHP $150K plus Participation on
coordinator is on $130K project technical team
Plains & Prairie with Midwest
Pothole LCC steering | FHPs to use
committee monitoring data
to drive
conservation
decisions
Hawaii Fish e Pacific Islands | None None o Pacific Islands
Habitat Climate Climate
Partnership Change Change
Cooperative Cooperative
Informal
meetings to
discuss climate
change and
restoration
planning held
between PICCC
and FWS habitat
programs
Kenai None None None e Northwest
Peninsula Interior
Fish Habitat Forest LCC

Partnership

Conversations
with interim
coordinator
regarding data

and science
needs
Mat-Su e Northwest e Northwest None to date. None to date.
Basin Interior Forest Interior Forest Will seek to Will provide
Salmon LCC LCC science partner with input to the
Habitat committee, Northwest Northwest
Partnership alternate for Interior Forest Interior Forest
steering LCCon LCC’s science
committee development of | needs
its science plan assessment
Midwest e Upper e Plains & Prairie | $130K project No
Glacial Midwest- Pothole LCC with Midwest
Lakes Great Lakes e Eastern Tall FHPs to use

Partnership

LCC

Grass Prairie —
Big Rivers LCC
Steering committees

monitoring data
to drive
conservation
decisions






¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

National Fish Habitat Board
February 26-27, 2013

communications
committee

Tab 12d
Formal Official Joint projects Communicated Update
communication? representation on with LCCs? FHP science January 2013
LCC bodies? needs to LCCs?
Ohio River Indirect None e Plains & e Plains &
Basin Fish communication Prairie Prairie
Habitat through Midwest Potholes Potholes LCC
Partnership | Science Advisory LCC Indirect
Network $130K project communication
with Midwest through Midwest
FHPs to use Science Advisory
monitoring data | Network
to drive
conservation
decisions
Pacific e North Pacific e North Pacific LCC None Some dialogue,
Marine and LCC Science/Tradition not
Estuarine e California LCC al Ecological comprehensive
Fish Habitat Knowledge
Partnership Subcommittee
and GIS
Subcommittee
Reservoir e Gulf Coast e Gulf Coast None e Gulf Coast Considering
Fisheries Prairie LCC Prairie LCC Prairie LCC resigning from
Habitat steering Science forum Gulf Coast
Partnership committee & held in February Prairie LCC
science 2012 steering
committee committee. Not
a good use of
time. SHC not
applicable to
reservoir
research
prioritization.
Southeast e South Atlantic | e South Atlantic e South e South Atlantic
Aquatic LCC LCC partnership Atlantic LCC LCC
Resources e Gulf Coast committee and e Gulf Coast e Gulf Coast
Partnership Prairie LCC communications Prairie LCC Prairie LCC
e Gulf Coastal committee Through LCC e Gulf Coastal
Plain and e Appalachian LCC | and Multistate Plain and
Ozarks LCC steering Conservation Ozarks LCC
e Appalachian committee Grant funding, e Appalachian
LCC e Gulf Coast developing LCC
Prairie LCC hydrologic Science forums,
steering information for | steering
committee the South committee
e Gulf Coastal Plain | Atlantic meetings,
and Ozarks LCC partnership
partnership committee
committee and meetings.






Formal Official Joint projects Communicated Update
communication? representation on with LCCs? FHP science January 2013
LCC bodies? needs to LCCs?
Southwest e Western Alaska DF&G None e Western
Alaska Alaska LCC representative sits Alaska LCC
Salmon on both LCC and FHP
Habitat steering committees
Partnership

What are the most effective ways for FHPs to engage with LCCs?

Pacific Marine and Estuarine Fish Habitat Partnership & California Fish Passage
Forum

Taking an initial first step to do a crosswalk with their strategic goals and priorities as
well as the goals and priorities of each FHP will identify areas of synergy — that is a
fairly straightforward process. A key next step might be an MOU or some other type of
document that represents a commitment and willingness of both organizations to work
together to achieve mutual goals and communicate consistently and productively.
Describing how all organizations in a geographic area can convene to articulate a key
set of priorities is a significant challenge at the landscape scale, but it's necessary given
finite resources.

Alaska FHPs

At the next all-Alaska FHP meeting in February 2013, coordination with LCCs has been
identified as an agenda topic. A representative from the Northwest Interior Forest LCC
will attend. The Mat-Su Partnership and Kenai Peninsula FHP will be updating their
strategic action plans, including the section on climate change. This effort may lead to
more specific actions with respect to coordination with LCCs and identification of
science needs.

Midwest Glacial Lakes Partnership

The most effective way to engage with the LCC’s would be to have representation on
the Technical Team of the LCC, or to participate in some way with the ongoing
functioning of the LCC'’s.

Midwest Glacial Lakes has overlap with three LCC’s; the Plains and Prairie Potholes,
Eastern Tallgrass Prairie and Big Rivers, and Upper Midwest-Great Lakes LCC’s. ltis
important to maintain communication between the FHP’s and the LCC'’s since both are
federally/affiliated partnership efforts. It is important to cross-foster information and to
work collaboratively on issues of interest to both.






'S-i ETII?AF' HABITAT National Fish Habitat Board

PARTNERSHIP February 26-27, 2013
Tab 12d
Driftless Area Restoration Effort

Participation on technical teams, face to face communication, invites to FHP tours,
symposiums, meetings, etc.

Atlantic Coastal Fish Habitat Partnership

Sharing of our comprehensive coastwise expertise and research on fish habitat, its
protection and restoration. ACFHP has a great deal to contribute to the LCCs that
cover our area. Few state, federal and local groups are aware of ACFHP and what we
have done and are doing that can contribute to their efforts. We are the specialists in
our area of expertise and can probably act as a consultant to these groups.

Desert Fish Habitat Partnership

Standardized spring and ciénega habitat assessment and monitoring protocol, and
comprehensive spatial database to store the assessment information, detailed spatial
data on hydrological alteration, such as stream dewatering or changing in timing of peak
runoff or low summer flows, can help DFHP prioritize areas where habitat and
streamflow restoration projects would benefit natural hydrologic process and native fish
habitat. Together these information sources will help DFHP and our cooperative
partners prioritize habitat protection, restoration, and enhancement projects to benefit
desert fishes in the future and allow DFHP to more effectively meet its goals by working
strategically at the landscape scale. Hopefully the LCCs can help to fill DFHP’s science
and data gaps.






¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

National Fish Habitat Board Meeting
February, 26-27 2013
Tab 13

National Fish Habitat Board Member and Staff Contact Information

BOARD MEMBERS:

Kelly Hepler — Chair/State Representative
Alaska Department of Fish and Game

333 Raspberry Rd.

Anchorage, AK 99518-1599

Ph: 907 242-1907
Kelly.Hepler@alaska.gov

Current term through July 31, 2015

Stephen G. Perry — Vice Chair/State
Representative (Northeast AFWA)
Chief, Inland Fisheries Division

NH Fish and Game Department

11 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1745

603-271-1438 (fax)
stephen.perry@wildlife.nh.gov
Current term through July 31, 2015

Mike Andrews - At Large

Vice President

The Nature Conservancy

6114 Fayetteville Road, Suite 109
Durham, NC 27713

Ph: 919-484-7857 ext 117
mandrews@tnc.org

Current term through July 31, 2013

Dan Ashe — Federal Government
Director

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
1849 C Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20240
Dan_Ashe@fws.gov

Serves by virtue of office

Douglass Boyd — At Large

Sportfishing & Boating Partnership Council
1945 Lockhill Selma #101

San Antonio, TX 78213
douglassboyd@yahoo.com

Current term through July 31, 2014

Randy Fisher — At Large

Executive Director

Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission
205 SE Spokane Street, Suite 100

Portland, Oregon 97202

Ph: 503-595-3100

Randy Fisher@psmfc.org

Current term through July 31, 2013

Brad Gentner — At Large

Coastal Conservation Association
Gentner Consulting Group

9007 Eton Road

Silver Spring, MD 20901

Ph: 202-455-4424
brad@gentnergroup.com

Current term through July 31, 2014

Chris Horton — At Large

National Assembly of Sportsmen’s Caucuses
Regional Director

249 Fletcher Lane

Bismarck, AR 71929

Ph: (501) 865-1475
chris@sportsmenslink.org

Current term through July 31, 2014

Joe Larscheid- State Government (Midwest
AFWA)

lowa Department of Natural Resources

502 East 9th St.

Wallace Building

Des Moines, 1A 50319

Ph: 515-281-5208
joe.larscheid@dnr.iowa.gov

Current term through July 31, 2015

D. Fred Matt- Indian Tribal

Executive Director

Native American Fish & Wildlife Society
34290 Mission Dam Road

Saint Ignatius, MT 59865

Ph: 866-890-7258

fmatt@nawfs.org

Current term through July 31, 2015




mailto:Kelly.Hepler@alaska.gov

mailto:stephen.perry@wildlife.nh.gov

mailto:mandrews@tnc.org

mailto:Dan_Ashe@fws.gov

mailto:douglassboyd@yahoo.com

mailto:Randy_Fisher@psmfc.org

mailto:brad@gentnergroup.com

mailto:joe.larscheid@dnr.iowa.gov

mailto:fmatt@nawfs.org



¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Bob Mahood- At Large

Executive Director

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council
4055 Faber Place Drive, Suite 201

North Charleston, SC 29405

Ph: 843-571-4366
robert.mahood@safmc.net

Current term through July 31, 2013

Stan Moberly- American Fisheries Society
American Fisheries Society

Northwest Marine Technology, Inc.

955 Malin Lane, SW

Olympia, WA 98501

Ph: 907-736-2251

Ph: 360-736-2251

Mobile: 360-951-7888
stan.moberly@nmt.us

Current term through July 31, 2015

Samuel Rauch — Federal Government
Deputy Assistant Administrator for Fisheries
NOAA Fisheries Service

1315 East West Highway

Silver Spring, MD 20910
samuel.rauch@noaa.gov

Serves by virtue of office

Ron Regan — State Representative (AFWA)
Executive Director

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies
444 North Capitol Street, NW

Wiashington D.C. 20001

Ph: 202-624-7890

rregan@fishwildlife.org

Serves by virtue of office

Gordon Robertson- At Large
Vice President

American Sportfishing Association
1001 North Fairfax St. Suite 501
Alexandria VA 22314

Ph: 703-519-9691
grobertson@asafishing.org
Current term through July 31, 2013

National Fish Habitat Board Meeting
February, 26-27 2013
Tab 13

Mike Stone - State Government (Western
AFWA)

7242 Bomar Drive

Cheyenne, WY 82009-2018

Phone: 307.635.7795 (h)

Phone: 307.631.7696 (cell)
mdsfish@gmail.com

Current term through July 31, 2015

Nick Wiley — State Representative
(Southeast AFWA)

Executive Director

FL Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission

620 South Meridian Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600
nick.wiley@myFWC.com

Current term through July 31, 2015

Krystyna Wolniakowski — National Fish
and Wildlife Foundation

Director, Western Partnership Office
National Fish and Wildlife Foundation
421 SW 6™ Suite 950

Portland, OR 97204

Ph: 503-702-0245
Wolniakowski@NFWF.ORG

Current term through July 31, 2015

Chris Wood- At Large

President and Chief Executive Officer
Trout Unlimited

1300 N. 17th St., Suite 500
Arlington, VA 22209-2404

Ph. 703-284-9405

cwood@tu.org
Current term through July 31, 2014

Anne Zimmermann- Federal Government
USDA, Forest Service

Director, Watershed, Fish, Wildlife, Air and
Rare Plants

Syndey R. Yates Building

201 14th Street, SW Room 3SE
Washington, DC 20250-1121
azimmermann@fs.fed.us

Current term through July 31, 2015




mailto:robert.mahood@safmc.net

mailto:stan.moberly@nmt.us

mailto:samuel.rauch@noaa.gov

mailto:rregan@fishwildlife.org

mailto:grobertson@asafishing.org

tel:307.635.7795

tel:307.631.7696

file://HQDATA4/HC/Hc/NFHAP/Board%20Meetings/Board%20Meeting%20stuff/Board%20members%20and%20contact/mdsfish@gmail.com

mailto:nick.wiley@myFWC.com

mailto:Wolniakowski@NFWF.ORG

mailto:cwood@tu.org

mailto:azimmermann@fs.fed.us



¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

BOARD STAFF:

Chris Meaney (Board Coordination)
NOAA-Fisheries

Office of Habitat Conservation

1315 East West Highway
SSMC3/Room 14214

Silver Spring, MD 20910

Ph: 301 427-8629
Christopher.meaney@noaa.gov

Tom Busiahn (Fish Habitat Partnerships,
Federal Caucus Coordination)

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

ARLSQ 840

4401 N. Fairfax Dr.

Arlington, VA 22203

Ph: 703/358-2056

tom_busiahn@fws.gov

Matt Menashes (Policy Advisor and State
Agency Liaison)

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 725
Washington, DC 20001

Ph: 202-624-3602
mattm@fishwildlife.org

National Fish Habitat Board Meeting
February, 26-27 2013
Tab 13

Andrea Ostroff (Science and Data
Coordination)

U.S. Geological Survey

12201 Sunrise Valley Drive

Mail Stop 301

Reston, VA 20192

Ph: 703.648.4070
aostroff@usgs.gov

Ryan Roberts (Communications
Coordination)

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 725
Washington, DC 20001

Ph: 202-6245851
rroberts@fishwildlife.org

Gary Whelan (Science and Data
Coordination)

Michigan DNR

Mason Building, Eighth Floor
P.O. Box 30446

Lansing, M1 48909

Ph: 517-373-6943
whelang@michigan.gov




mailto:Christopher.meaney@noaa.gov

mailto:tom_busiahn@fws.gov

mailto:mattm@fishwildlife.org

mailto:aostroff@usgs.gov

mailto:rroberts@fishwildlife.org

file://HQDATA4/HC/Hc/NFHAP/Board%20Meetings/Board%20Meeting%20stuff/Board%20members%20and%20contact/whelang@michigan.gov




$3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Board Member Guide

A Manual for
Members of the
National Fish Habitat Board

V.2
Updated January 2013






Page |2

Board Member Guide Table of Contents

Introduction

History of the National Fish Habitat Partnership
Mission, Goals, Objectives

The National Fish Habitat Board

Figure 1. National Fish Habitat Partnership structure
Roles and Expectations of Board Members
Figure 2. The Fish Habitat Partnerships

Fish Habitat Partnerships

Partners Coalition

Federal Caucus

Budgeting

Committees

National Fish Habitat Board Staff

Policy and Technical Documents Approved by the National Fish Habitat Board

Appendix A. Definitions

Appendix B. National Fish Habitat Board Charter

www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 8
Page 9
Page 9
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15





Page |3 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

Introduction

Congratulations on your appointment to the National Fish Habitat Board. This manual provides
background for you in your role as a Board member, and includes the Board’s charter and useful

definitions in the appendix.

The 22-member Board was established to promote, oversee and coordinate the National Fish
Habitat Partnership (Partnership) and implementation of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan
(Plan). You will serve alongside aquatic conservation leaders from across the United States. The
Board includes members from federal, state and tribal governments as well as conservation

organizations and industry.

This Board sets priorities in line with the Action Plan, makes decisions on budgets, approves and
guides Fish Habitat Partnerships, develops national measures of success and evaluation criteria for
partnerships, and reports to Congress, states, and other partners on the status and

accomplishments of the Partnership. The Board is supported by staff and committees.

Membership on the Board marks you and your organization as a leader in fish habitat conservation,
and gives you an opportunity to contribute to the Partnership’s vision of “healthy habitats, healthy
fish, healthy people, and healthy economies”. Your work with the Board and the Partnership will

have an impact on aquatic habitats in our country for generations to come.





Page |4 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013
HISTORY OF THE NATIONAL FISH HABITAT PARTNERSHIP

Determined to reverse the declines of America's fish habitats, leaders from state and federal agencies,
tribes, foundations, conservation and angling groups, businesses and industries joined together to
create the National Fish Habitat Action Plan (Plan). The approach is similar to the effort undertaken for
waterfowl and their habitat in the 1980s through the North American Waterfowl Management Plan.

Development of the Plan began in 2001 when an ad hoc group of fisheries interests, led by the Sport
Fishing and Boating Partnership Council, explored the concept of developing a partnership for fish
habitat. The effort built momentum in 2003 when the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies issued
an endorsement and agreed to take a leadership role. The Association appointed a diverse work group
that drafted the Plan in 2005-06. The Plan was signed on April 24, 2006 by the Secretaries of Interior
and Commerce and the President and Executive Director of the Association.

In September 2006, the National Fish Habitat Board held its inaugural meeting and approved its charter
under the chairmanship of John Cooper (South Dakota Department of Game, Fish and Parks). In
subsequent meetings, the Board developed policies and guidance for Fish Habitat Partnerships and
formally recognized Partnerships that met the criteria; approved a framework for assessing the
condition of the nation’s fish habitats; and issued the report Through a Fish’s Eye: The Status of Fish
Habitats in the United States 2010. The Board annually bestows National Fish Habitat Awards to honor
individuals or entities that demonstrate extraordinary dedication, innovation or excellence in aquatic
resource conservation and annually announces “Ten Waters to Watch”, which represent a snapshot of
key conservation efforts in progress. Kelly Hepler (Alaska Department of Fish and Game) has chaired the
Board since May 2008.

Under the leadership of the Board, the National Fish Habitat Partnership has grown to include
thousands of organizations and individuals in all 50 states, and has met the objectives of the original
Plan. In July 2012 the Board issued the 2™ Edition of the Plan, identifying new objectives to build upon
past progress.

The National Fish Habitat Action Plan encompasses five important lessons that emerge from America's
past efforts to protect and restore fish habitat:

e be strategic rather than merely opportunistic

e address the causes of and processes behind fish habitat decline, rather than the symptoms

e provide increased and sustained investment to allow for long-term success

* monitor and be accountable for scientifically sound and measurable results

e share information and knowledge at all levels from local communities to Congress

The Plan offers an unprecedented opportunity to meet the challenges of protecting, restoring and
enhancing aquatic habitats on a national scale. The plan's vision of healthy habitats, healthy fish,
healthy people and healthy economies will be achieved through cooperation, investment and
stewardship. This vision will result in local actions that yield measurable social, economic and ecological
benefits — and more fish!





Page |5 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

MISSION, GOALS, AND OBJECTIVES
(from the National Fish Habitat Action Plan, 2" Edition, July 2012)

Mission

The Mission of the National Fish Habitat Partnership is to protect, restore, and enhance the nation’s fish
and aquatic communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation and improve the
quality of life for the American people. This mission will be achieved by:

Supporting Fish Habitat Partnerships and ensuring their effectiveness.

Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for achieving fish habitat conservation goals
Measuring and communicating the status and needs of aquatic habitats

Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats

Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems

Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely affected

Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats to improve the overall health of
fish and other aquatic organisms

Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a broad natural diversity of fish
and other aquatic species

Obijectives

1.

Achieve measurable habitat conservation results through strategic actions of Fish Habitat
Partnerships that improve ecological condition, restore natural processes, or prevent the decline
of intact and healthy systems leading to better fish habitat conditions and increased fishing
opportunities.

Establish a consensus set of national conservation strategies as a framework to guide future
actions and investment by the Fish Habitat Partnerships by 2013.

Broaden the community of support for fish habitat conservation by increasing fishing
opportunities, fostering the participation of local communities — especially young people —in
conservation activities, and raising public awareness of the role healthy fish habitats play in the
quality of life and economic well-being of local communities

Fill gaps in the National Fish Habitat Assessment and its associated database to empower
strategic conservation action supported by broadly available scientific information, and
integrate socio-economic data in the analysis to improve people’s lives in a manner consistent
with fish habitat conservation goals.

Communicate the conservation outcomes produced collectively by Fish Habitat Partnerships, as
well as new opportunities and voluntary approaches for conserving fish habitat, to the public
and conservation partners.





Page |6 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013
THE NATIONAL FISH HABITAT BOARD

The Board consists of up to 22 members. Except those who serve by virtue of their office, members are
appointed by the Board’s Executive Leadership Team, consisting of the President and Executive Director
of the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies; Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Oceanic
and Atmospheric Administration; and the Director of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. See the Board
charter in Appendix B for details.

State Government Representatives
The Board includes five state fish and wildlife agency representative and the Executive Director of the
Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies.

Federal Government Representatives

The Board includes up to five federal agency representatives. These include the Assistant Administrator
for Fisheries, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, and the Director of the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service, Department of the Interior, who serve by virtue of their office.

Indian Tribal Representation
The Board includes at least one representative from an Indian tribal or native Alaskan government.

Non-Governmental Organizations
The National Fish and Wildlife Foundation and the American Fisheries Society each nominate a
representative for approval by the ELT.

Other Groups

The remaining eight members are appointed from a range of interests including: sportfishing,
commercial fishing, sportfishing industry, academic, and land and aquatic resource conservation
organizations. In addition, these members are appointed to ensure the Board includes a balance of
governmental and non-governmental organizations and a balance of freshwater and marine interests.

Figure 1. National Fish Habitat Partnership structure

Partners Coalition |------
National Fish Habitat Board ~ J----- Board Staff
Federal Caucus [ I
. - Fish Habitat Communications
ar.tners (states, Partnerships [ | Committee
tribes, federal

agencies, NGOs, ]

| Partnerships
landowners, etc.) — P

Aquatic Habitat Committee
Conservation
Projects

Science & Data
—  Committee






Page |7 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013
ROLES AND EXPECTATIONS OF BOARD MEMBERS

General Board Position Description
Board members must be organized, proactive, analytical and creative thinkers, and should have
excellent coalition building skills. Board members represent the views of their organization and sector,
but must also be able to keep in mind the bigger picture, i.e. what’s in it for all instead of what’s in it for
my group. They must be willing to invest time and energy in the Board and the Partnership, and
participate in Board meetings to the best of their ability. We encourage all Board members to:

* advocate actively for the National Fish Habitat Partnership

* help the 18 board-approved Fish Habitat Partnerships leverage resources, and

+ work to enhance collaboration among partners

+ identify challenges facing fish habitats and resources to address the challenges.

Code of Conduct

Members appointed to the National Fish Habitat Board are expected to conduct themselves in a
professional manner using the highest principles, values, and standards, to guide their interactions and
decisions as a Board member. Members should seek to guide the Partnership in a way that contributes
to the welfare of its key stakeholders and respects the rights of all constituents affected by its
operations.

Board Member Commitment

Members of the Board are expected to participate in three or more Board meetings per year (at least
two in person and one conference call) plus related activities. While there are no specific time
commitments, members should be willing to spend whatever time is necessary to become informed
about agenda topics and engaged during the Board meeting discussions and decisions. Members
should carefully review Board meeting briefing books, provided in advance of meetings.

Committees and Workgroups

Board members may be asked to serve on ad hoc committees or workgroups that are formed to
accomplish specific tasks undertaken by the Board. Every Board member should expect to serve on one
or more of these committees during his/her tenure as Board member.

Board Member Travel Expenses

The Board has travel assistance funding built-in to its budget annually for members to utilize if necessary
for travel to and from Board meetings. Please contact Ryan Roberts or Matt Menashes to inquire about
travel expenses.

Federal Agency Involvement on the Board

Federal employees serving as members of the Board may participate in discussions, offer proposed
suggestions for Board actions, and advance the goal of further integrating agency programs with respect
to fishery habitat conservation. This includes engaging in discussions of agency policy, advising other
Board members about their own agency’s goals and criteria in awarding funds, and commenting on
proposed suggestions for program activities. In all cases, federal employees may offer to make
recommendations to other officials within their own agencies regarding ideas and concepts discussed
during Board meetings and conferences.

The Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) provides an orderly procedure for federal agencies to seek
advice and assistance from citizens and experts. Any time a federal agency intends to establish, control,





Page |8 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

or manage an advisory group that includes persons other than federal, state, tribal, or local government
employees operating in their official capacities, the agency must comply with FACA and implementation
guidelines. The Board is not nominally or actually controlled by federal agencies; therefore, the Board is
not an “advisory committee” as defined by the Federal Advisory Committee Act. State and private
members maintain a leading, active role in the management and direction of the Board, and the Board is
a collaborative undertaking, not predominately an advisory body to federal agencies.

Figure 2. The Fish Habitat Partnerships

¥3FISH HABITAT

PARTNERSHIP

Fish Habitat Partnerships
January 2012

Salmon in the City

Southeast Alaska Fish Habitat Partnershi,

North American Sa/monﬂ_,__———;o

Stronghold Partnership

Geographic/Species Based Partnerships
1. Alantic Coastal FHP

2. California Fish Passage Forum
3. Desert FHP
4. Dnftless Area Restoration Effort

5. Eastern Bt

out Joint Venture

Partnership
asin FHP
s FHP
9. Hawaii FHP
10. Kenai Peninsula FHP
Imon Habitat Partnership

ial Lakes Partnership

e Trout Inttiative
> Marine and Estuarine FHP

_ p
T +® e 2 Lower Mississippi River e
stem Based Partnership. 'S Conservation Committee
Reservoir FHP -:,
st
Denotes "Candidate g s
Fish Habitat Partnership Hawaii Puerto Rico & U.S. Virgin Islands

FISH HABITAT PARTNERSHIPS

Eighteen Fish Habitat Partnerships are implementing aquatic habitat conservation projects across the
nation based on their scientific assessments and strategic plans. Each Fish Habitat Partnership was
recognized by the Board after demonstrating that it met the criteria established by the Board in the
Policies and Guidance for Fish Habitat Partnerships. The 18 recognized Fish Habitat Partnerships and
four “Candidate” Fish Habitat Partnerships are shown in Figure 2.




http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/approved_fhp_guidance.pdf



Page |9 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

PARTNERS COALITION

The Partner Coalition serves as an outlet for information-sharing on priorities, projects, and successes,
while helping the Board to build a grassroots network of support for fish habitat conservation. The
Coalition consists of individuals and organizations who sign up through the web site (fishhabitat.org).

FEDERAL CAUCUS

Several federal agencies contribute to the work of the Partnership, not just the agencies that are
represented on the Board. The Federal Caucus was created in 2005 to facilitate interaction among
federal agencies and with other partners by:
e providing communication links among federal agencies cooperating under the National Fish
Habitat Partnership;
e providing a mechanism through with federal partners can jointly identify strategies and
resources to support goals of the National Fish Habitat Partnership;
e ensuring that the National Fish Habitat Partnership helps agencies achieve their missions by
enhancing partnerships and improving measurement of results and performance; and
e enhancing networking and collaboration among federal partners, the National Fish Habitat
Board, and other partners implementing the National Fish Habitat Action Plan.

The Federal Caucus meets every three months or as needed. In 2012, the Caucus was instrumental in
achieving a Secretarial Memorandum of Understanding in support of the Partnership, signed by the
Secretaries of Agriculture, Commerce, and the Interior.

BUDGETING

Board Operations

The Board approves an annual budget that includes funding for staffing resources, the work of the
science and data committee, communications products and programs, partnership coordination, and
Board travel. The budget runs on a calendar year basis, and is approved each year in January.

The budget is recommended by Board staff, based on priorities of the Board. Board members guide the
development of and approve Board priorities in line with the Action Plan objectives. The Association of
Fish and Wildlife Agencies (AFWA) and the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) both serve as
fiduciary agents for the Board.

Revenues are received from federal sources, state agency contributions, Multistate Conservation
Grants, and other grant sources. Typically, the USFWS provides funds to AFWA to support the Board’s
priorities, and also directly funds Board priorities for science and data needs and web site development
after consultation with the Board. The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) and
U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) also directly fund Board priorities for science and data needs. State
agency funds are solicited on an ad hoc basis and are typically focused on key areas such as science and
data support needs. Multistate Conservation Grants are dependent upon proposals making their way
through a joint AFWA/USFWS process.





Page |10 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013
Project Funding
The USFWS funds cost-shared projects that protect, restore, or enhance fish and aquatic habitats or
otherwise directly support habitat-related priorities of Fish Habitat Partnerships. Each year in October,
the USFWS Director allocates available project funding among Fish Habitat Partnerships consistent with
the goals, objectives and strategies of the National Fish Habitat Board. Each Fish Habitat Partnership
prioritizes projects consistent with its strategic plan and submits its project list to the designated lead
USFWS Region. The USFWS Regions rank projects with consideration of Fish Habitat Partnership
priorities and the criteria in USFWS policy (www.fws.gov/policy/717fw1.html). USFWS Regional
Directors submit ranked lists of projects to the Director. A national-level project review group reviews
project lists and makes recommendations to the USFWS Director and to the Board. The USFWS Director
selects final projects for funding that are consistent with the goals and strategies of the National Fish
Habitat Board and allocates funds to the USFWS Regions to implement approved projects.

COMMITTEES

Three standing committees operate under the Board’s purview. These committees accomplish specific
tasks undertaken by the Board and report back to the Board as necessary.

Science & Data Committee

The Science and Data Committee’s purpose is to provide scientific and data management expertise and
oversight to advance the goals and objectives of the National Fish Habitat Board (Board) in a
scientifically sound and strategic manner.

Duties and roles of the Committee’s co-chairs and members include:

e Provide advice to the Board on setting future science and data priorities.

e Develop strategies for executing and implementing Board science and data priorities by ensuring
the direction, purpose, and needs for future national assessments are well-defined.

e Qversee, coordinate, and review the development of the national fish habitat assessment
including, but not limited to, assisting the assessment teams with relevant contacts, data
acquisition, and expertise as needed.

e Provide expert advice and support on habitat and data issues to the Board, National Assessment
Teams, and Fish Habitat Partnerships to ensure scientific data conformity and coordination
between FHPs, partner agencies, and the Science and Data Committee.

Communications Committee

The Communications Committee’s role is to support the partnership by sustaining critical
communications needs and initiatives. The Communications Committee plays an essential role in
crafting the messages that raise awareness about the partnership and help build a community of
support for fish habitat conservation.

Partnerships Committee
The Partnerships Committee serves as a forum for preliminary discussions, fact-finding, and formulating
recommendations for Board actions that affect Fish Habitat Partnerships.

In addition to standing committees, the Board appoints ad hoc committees to address specific needs. As





Page |11 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

of January 2013, the following committees are active:

Habitat Conservation Committee, charged with recommending a consensus set of national
conservation strategies as a framework to guide future actions and investments by the Fish
Habitat Partnerships.

Funding Committee, charged with identifying funding opportunities to help support the work of
the Board and the Fish Habitat Partnerships.

Government Affairs Committee, charged with identifying strategies to raise awareness of the
Partnership among government agency leaders, and to improve linkages between the
Partnership and government initiatives that affect fish habitat conservation.

NATIONAL FISH HABITAT BOARD STAFF

The National Fish Habitat Board has a small staff that shares duties in support of Board efforts while also
fulfilling specific roles. Shared duties are as follows:

Prepare materials necessary for Board actions

Provide strategic Planning recommendations to Board for Plan implementation, including
staffing levels, restructuring of teams, adding new teams, or permanent staff support for teams.
Support, and as appropriate, participate in Federal Caucus, Partners Coalition, and other
stakeholder activities to insure consistency with Action Plan and implementation

Provide assistance to sub-committees and work groups that are formed by the Board

The following individuals serve as staff to the Board:

Tom Busiahn, FWS, 703-358-2056, tom_busiahn@fws.gov

Matt Menashes, AFWA, 202-624-3602, mattm@fishwildlife.org

Chris Meaney, NOAA Fisheries, 301-427-8629, Christopher.Meaney@noaa.gov
Gary Whelan, Michigan DNR, 517-373-6948, whelang@michigan.gov

Andrea Ostroff, USGS, 703-648-4070, aostroff@usgs.gov

Ryan Roberts, AFWA, 202-624-5851, rroberts@fishwildlife.org

Other individuals from partner agencies and organizations may also contribute to staffing the Board.

National Fish Habitat Partnership Coordinator - Tom Busiahn, FWS

Serve as the Board’s liaison with Fish Habitat Partnerships and facilitate communication among
the Partnerships

Maintain and compile reports on accomplishments of Fish Habitat Partnerships

Maintain database of contact and other information on recognized and candidate Fish Habitat
Partnerships

Provide information and guidance to prospective Fish Habitat Partnerships

Convene regular meetings of Federal agency personnel (the “Federal Caucus”) to promote
awareness, coordination, and Federal agency contributions to NFHAP activities

Maintain database of Federal agency contact information and distribute information on
activities of the Board and NFHAP partners

Encourage Federal agencies to provide current contact information through the online Federal
partners map



mailto:tom_busiahn@fws.gov

mailto:mattm@fishwildlife.org

mailto:Christopher.Meaney@noaa.gov

mailto:whelang@michigan.gov

mailto:aostroff@usgs.gov

mailto:rroberts@fishwildlife.org



Page |12 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

Policy Advisor and State Fish and Wildlife Agency Liaison — Matt Menashes, AFWA

Coordinate with state fish and wildlife agencies to represent interests of state fish and wildlife
agencies on all NFHP matters and teams

Provide funding guidance options for Board approval and provide direction for expenditure of
funding in accordance with Board direction

Work with National Fish and Wildlife Foundation, agencies, non-profit organizations, corporate
sponsors, private entities, and other stakeholders/interests to secure funding resources to
support Action Plan administration and implementation consistent with Board direction
Coordinate and leverage funding with NFWF and other funding resources such as the federal
caucus, state agencies, congress, corporate, non-profit, and private sponsors

Supervise Communications Coordinator

Board Coordination, - Chris Meaney, NOAA Fisheries

Coordinate communication with Board, Board staff, and among Board sub-committees.

Work with Board staff, Board Chair and Vice-Chair to prepare materials and assist in running
Board meeting s three times a year.

Develop annual report to Board Chair each January summarizing Board activity during the past
calendar year and highlighting any areas needing improvement

Science and Data Coordination — Gary Whelan, Ml DNR and Andrea Ostroff, USGS (Co-Chairs)

Establish measurement criteria and reporting protocols

Develop procedures and policies for reviewing science and data needs for NFHAP projects
Work with and support Fish Habitat Partnerships in following NFHAP science and data policies
and procedures

Provide system classification and habitat assessment information

Communication with and assistance to data systems manager for data bases, or links to other
systems needed for system classification, habitat assessment, and existing priorities databases
Produce and print Science and Data reports as directed by the Board

Assist and coordinate with Science and Data Committee on issues relating to National Fish
Habitat Action Plan Implementation

Communications Coordinator — Ryan Roberts, AFWA/NFHAP

Receive and disseminate information to partners and stakeholders and among teams and the
board as directed by the Board

Produce information based materials for the public, partners and stakeholders as directed by
the Board through core staff in support of other team functions

Produce information for target audiences as directed by the Board

Assist partners to communicate within organizations and agencies

Coordinate communications for consistency and accuracy with Action Plan and Board directives
with other partner and stakeholder communication leads

Oversee development and maintain content of www.fishhabitat.org website

Coordinate outreach materials for Action Plan Initiatives and Fish Habitat Partnerships as
needed

Tailor development functions to successfully implement and support Science/Data,
Communication, Partnership, and Partner Outreach support and other Action Plan resource
related needs to insure successful implementation consistent with Action Plan and Board
direction

Work with the legislative team on strategic planning for communications related materials to



http://www.fishhabitat.org/



Page |13 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

benefit the National Fish Habitat Conservation Act
e Actively coordinate with State fisheries coordinators on NFHAP communications materials
relative to the States

POLICY AND TECHNICAL DOCUMENTS APPROVED BY THE NATIONAL FISH HABITAT BOARD

Information about the Board not covered in the above summary is included in the Board Charter which
is included in this guide as Appendix B.

The following documents provide additional background and information on past guidance to the Fish
Habitat Partnerships and serve as a record of the Board’s policy and technical positions. These will help
provide new members with historical context and a foundation from which to work in order to advance
the National Fish Habitat Partnership. These can all be found on www.fishhabitat.org) :

* Policies and Guidance for Fish Habitat Partnerships (October 8, 2008)

 Recommended Strategic Plan Framework for Fish Habitat Partnerships (October 8, 2008)

e Process for Recognizing New Fish Habitat Partnerships (March 4, 2010)

e Guidance on the Use of the “National Fish Habitat Action Plan” Brand (October 7, 2009)

* A Framework for Assessing the Nation’s Fish Habitats (October 2008)

* Final Interim Strategies and Targets for National Fish Habitat Action Plan (November 8, 2007)

e Through a Fish’s Eye: the Status of Fish Habitats in the United States 2010 (April 2011)




http://www.fishhabitat.org/

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/approved_fhp_guidance.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/Final_NFHAP_Strategic_Plan_Framework.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/PROCESS_FOR_RECOGNIZING_NEW_FISH_HABITAT_PARTNERSHIPS.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/NFHAP_Branding_Guidance.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/Framework_for_Assessing_the_Nations_Fish_Habitat.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/Final_Interim_Strategies_Targets_0.pdf

http://fishhabitat.org/sites/default/files/www/fishhabitatreport_012611_1.pdf



Page |14 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013
Appendix A

DEFINITIONS

National Fish Habitat Partnership

The National Fish Habitat Partnership is an organization established to conserve fish habitat nationwide,
leveraging federal funds with private funds to achieve the greatest impact on the landscape through
priority conservation projects. The National Fish Habitat Partnership is aimed at growing a community
of support concerned about fish habitat conservation and the future of our aquatic habitats.

Fish Habitat Partnership

A National Fish Habitat Board approved group of state, federal, local, nonprofit, tribal, Alaskan Native or
private individuals or entities that coordinate to implement the Plan at a regional level. Fish habitat
conservation projects proposed by these FHPs are eligible for funding as NFHAP projects.

Candidate Fish Habitat Partnership

A partnership that is working toward recognition by the Board to become a recognized Fish Habitat
Partnership. Candidate Fish Habitat Partnerships are eligible for coordination and technical assistance
from the Board. Fish habitat conservation projects proposed by these Partnerships are eligible for
funding as NFHAP projects.

Coalition Partner

A group that is not working toward recognition by the Board as a Fish Habitat Partnership, but that is
working to achieve the goals of the Action Plan through the conservation of fish habitat. Coalition
Partners will share in the coordination and technical assistance provided by the Board.

Fish Habitat Conservation Project
Fish Habitat Conservation Projects are:

1. approved actions taken for the conservation or management of aquatic habitat for fish and
other aquatic organisms;

2. the provision of technical assistance to states and local communities to facilitate development
of strategies and priorities for aquatic habitat conservation;

3. the obtaining of a real property interest in lands or waters, including water rights, if the
obtaining of such interest is subject to terms and conditions that will ensure that the real
property will be administered for the long-term conservation of such lands and waters and the
fish dependent thereon. Real property interest means any ownership interest in lands or a
building or an object that is permanently affixed to land.





Page |15 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

Appendix B

NATIONAL FISH HABITAT BOARD CHARTER
(Adopted by the Board on September 22, 2006; revised April 19, 2007, and October 13, 2010)

I. BACKGROUND

The National Fish Habitat Board (hereafter “Board”) is responsible for carrying out a cooperative
nationwide program to conserve (protect, restore and enhance) the habitats of the Nation’s marine and
freshwater fish populations. The Board is a voluntary association of public and private sector entities
that serves as the body overseeing the implementation of the National Fish Habitat Action Plan (“Plan”).

[I. MISSION and GOALS
The purpose of the Board is to promote, oversee, and coordinate implementation of the Plan.
The Board’s mission is to conserve (protect, restore and enhance) the nation’s fish and aquatic
communities through partnerships that foster fish habitat conservation and improve the quality of life
for the American people.
This mission will be achieved by:

e Providing national leadership and coordination to conserve fish habitats.

e Approving and supporting Fish Habitat Partnerships and fostering new efforts.

¢ Establishing interim and long-term national fish habitat conservation goals and supporting

regional fish habitat conservation goals.
* Mobilizing and focusing national and local support for fish habitat conservation.
¢ Measuring and communicating the status and needs of fish habitats.

The Board’s goals are to:

e Protect and maintain intact and healthy aquatic systems.

* Prevent further degradation of fish habitats that have been adversely affected.

* Reverse declines in the quality and quantity of aquatic habitats to improve the overall health of
fish and other aquatic organisms.

¢ Increase the quality and quantity of fish habitats that support a broad natural diversity of fish
and other aquatic species.

¢ Increase fish and therefore fishing opportunities.

In furtherance of the Plan’s mission, the Board's role is to:

¢ Coordinate agency and stakeholder involvement at the national level.

+ Develop appropriate policies and guidance for recognizing Fish Habitat Partnerships.

+ Develop processes to prioritize and deliver National Fish Habitat Action Plan funds to the
partnerships.

o Develop criteria for funding and related resources.

o Establish national partnerships or other arrangements that provide funding and other resources
to the Fish Habitat Partnerships and other efforts of the Plan.





Page | 16 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

Establish national measures of success and evaluation criteria guidelines for Fish Habitat
Partnerships and facilitate Fish Habitat Partnership adaptation of these guidelines for their
unique systems.

Report to Congress, States and other partners on the status and accomplishments of the
National Fish Habitat Action Plan.

Carry out such administrative, organizational, or procedural matters as are necessary or proper.

IIl. BOARD BYLAWS

A. Appointment — The Board will be appointed by the Executive Leadership Team (ELT). The membership
of the ELT shall consist of: the President and Executive Director of the Association of Fish and Wildlife
Agencies; Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration; and
the Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service, Department of the Interior. The ELT will have final
responsibility for appointment and, if necessary, removal of all Board members, except those serving by
virtue of their office.

B. Membership

1.
2.

Members--The Board shall consist of up to 22 members.

State Government Representatives--The Board shall include five state fish and wildlife agency
representatives and the Executive Director of the Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies. Each
of the four regional Associations of Fish and Wildlife Agencies (Northeast, Southeast, Midwest,
and Western) shall nominate a representative to the ELT for approval. The fifth state
representative will be appointed by the ELT. These representatives shall be selected to create an
appropriate balance between inland and coastal states. The Executive Director of the
Association shall serve by the virtue of his or her office.

Federal Government Representatives.—The Board shall include up to five federal agency
representatives. These shall include the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Oceanic
and Atmospheric Administration, and the Director of the Fish and Wildlife Service, Department
of the Interior, who shall serve by virtue of their office.

Indian Tribal Representation—The Board shall include at least one representative from an Indian
tribal or native Alaskan government.

The National Fish and Wildlife Foundation and the American Fisheries Society each shall
nominate a representative for approval by the ELT.

The remaining eight members shall be appointed to ensure the Board includes representation
from the following range of interests: sportfishing, commercial fishing, sportfishing industry,
academic, and land and aquatic resource conservation organizations. In addition, these
members shall be appointed to ensure the Board includes a balance of governmental and non-
governmental organizations and a balance of freshwater and marine interests.

C. Terms of Service

1.

Normal Term—Except as provided in paragraphs (3) and (4) of this Subsection, the term of office
of a member of the Board is three years.

Members whose terms have expired shall serve until replaced.

Initial Appointment—The initial appointment of the charter Board shall be for a term of three
years.

Transitional Re-appointment — Except for the members appointed under paragraphs (2), (4) and
(5) of Section IlI.B., four shall be re-appointed initially for a term of one year, four shall be re-
appointed for a term of two years, and up to five shall be re-appointed for a term of three years.





Page |17 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

After these transitional terms, terms will be as provided in paragraph (1) of this Subsection.

5. Vacancies—Any vacancy among the Board members shall be filled through appointment by the
ELT, and any Board member appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the remainder of that
term for which his or her predecessor was appointed.

D. Procedures

1. Selection of Board Chair-- At the first meeting of the Board, the Board shall elect a Chair from
the state government membership of the Board. Each subsequent Chair shall be elected by the
Board from among the state government representatives.

2. Term of Chair—The term of any Chair shall be two years, provided that any Chair may serve
successive terms. No Chair shall serve more than 3 consecutive terms.

3. Meetings--The Board shall meet at the call of the Chair at least twice a year. The Chair shall
endeavor to establish a proposed meeting schedule identifying potential meeting dates within
the twelve month period following each meeting of the Board. Except as provided below, the
Chair must give Board members at least two months’ notice of a Board meeting and shall
provide a draft agenda at that time. Notice must be provided in writing, but may be delivered by
email or facsimile to each Board member. The Chair with due cause may call the Board for
emergency meetings, provided, however, that business of the meeting must be restricted to the
reasons for which the meeting is called. Board meetings shall be open to the public, provided,
however, that the Board may meet in executive sessions closed to the public to discuss
personnel, legal matters, or any other matter of a private or necessarily confidential nature.
These closed sessions shall be clearly identified in the meeting announcement. Notification of
Board meetings shall be made to members of the Partners Coalition and other interested
parties.

4. Quorum—A majority of the current membership of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business.

5. Participation and Attendance--If a Board member is not able to attend a Board meeting he or
she may appoint a designee provided an official proxy is signed and presented to the Board
Chair. A Board member may designate another Board member to hold his/her proxy, but no
Board member may hold more than 1 proxy. If a Board member, other than a Board member
who serves by virtue of office, fails to attend three consecutive regularly scheduled meetings,
the Chair, in consultation with the ELT, may remove that person from the Board and request
that the ELT appoint a replacement. A Board member may participate in a Board meeting by
conference call with the prior approval of the Chair. If a Board member, other than a Board
member who serves by virtue of office, attends three consecutive regularly scheduled meetings
by conference call, the Chair, in consultation with the ELT, may remove that person from the
Board and request that the ELT appoint a replacement.

6. Voting—The Board should strive to achieve consensus on all actions proposed. If consensus
cannot be achieved within the time frame allotted to the action on the agenda, all actions must
be approved by the vote of two-thirds of all members present and voting. Each Board member
shall have one vote. All voting shall proceed under Robert’s Rules of Order. The Board may
extend the discussion period for items on the agenda, or consider items not on the proposed
agenda for a meeting, provided that such changes to the agenda must be approved by a vote at
the time they are proposed.

7. Other Procedures--The Board shall establish other procedures as needed to schedule meetings,
develop agendas, and otherwise facilitate and conduct business, including those procedures or
matters required to comply with any requirements resulting from incorporation of the Board
under law.





Page |18 www.fishhabitat.org

8.

January 2013

Chair’s Responsibilities—In addition to such duties established elsewhere in these bylaws, the
Chair shall:

a. Prepare a written agenda of all matters to be considered by the Board at any meeting;

b. Prepare and issue all notices, including notices of meetings, required to be given to the
Board and public;

c. Preside at all meetings of the Board and, unless otherwise directed by the Board,
present items of business for consideration by the Board in the order listed on the
agenda for the meeting;

d. Conduct all meetings in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order and these bylaws;

e. Appoint committees as required; and

f. Perform other duties as requested by the Board.

Appointment of Vice-Chair—The Board shall elect a Vice-Chair from among the Board
membership. In the absence of the Chair, or in the event of the Chair’s inability to act, or a
conflict of interest for the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair, and when
so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chair. The
Vice-Chair shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Chair or
by the ELT. The term of the Vice-Chair shall be the same as the term of the Chair.

E. Board Responsibilities

1.

Coordination - The Board will coordinate agency and stakeholder involvement at the national
level and establish national partnerships that provide funding and other resources to the
Partnerships and other efforts of the Plan.

Conservation Goals and Objectives - The Board will develop and amend, as appropriate, specific
national fish habitat conservation goals and objectives with the advice from the Science and
Data Committee established pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subsection F of this Section.

Partnerships - The Board will develop and amend, as appropriate, a strategy to encourage the
formation of Fish Habitat Partnerships (“Partnerships”). This strategy will be updated
periodically to include new information on fish habitat status and the status of existing
Partnerships.

Recognition of Partnerships - The Board shall develop and amend, as appropriate, criteria for
recognition of Partnerships. The Board shall distribute the criteria, establish a process for parties
to use in seeking recognition as a Partnership, and maintain a publicly accessible registry of
recognized Partnerships. Such criteria shall include provisions to promote transparency and the
highest standards of ethical conduct in the decision-making of the Board regarding recognition
of Partnerships.

Evaluation Criteria- The Board will establish national measures of success and evaluation criteria
guidelines for Partnerships

Funding - The Board will develop and implement strategies to increase public and private
funding for fish habitat conservation, provided that the responsibility for implementation of
such strategies by any Board member shall be limited by any legal or administrative restrictions
that may apply to the activities of any such member.

Report - The Board will develop a strategy (including funding) to support development of a





Page |19 www.fishhabitat.org

January 2013

“Status of Fish Habitats in the United States” report to Congress States, and other partners. The
report shall be completed in 2010, and every 5 years after.

F. Coordination and Support

1. Staff-The Board shall accept staff support provided by The Association of Fish and Wildlife
Agencies, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s National Marine Fisheries
Service, and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The Chair, in consultation with the contributing
entities, shall act on behalf of the Board in directing the activities of the staff. The Chair, in
consultation with the Board, may accept additional staff or other support from other entities.
The contributing entities shall use their best efforts to provide common office space for all
Board staff and take such other measures as they deem appropriate to facilitate
communication, cohesiveness, and efficient operations for the benefit of the Board.

2. Science and Data Committee --The Board shall establish a Science and Data Committee chaired
by a State representative or another entity recommended by the Committee and approved by
the Board, and consisting of at least two State agency representatives, two Federal agency
representatives, two non-governmental organization representatives, and two academic
representatives. All Committee members will have demonstrated knowledge of the Plan’s
science foundation. The Board shall solicit information from the Science and Data Committee
and incorporate that information, and other appropriate information, into the strategies and
goals developed by the Board. The Board will support the Science and Data Team by providing
necessary staff, funding, data and other resources needed to complete the national assessments
and reports called for in the Plan.

3. Federal Caucus—The Board shall coordinate with the broadest possible range of Federal agencies
through the Federal Caucus, a partnership of Federal agencies organized to coordinate Federal
participation in the implementation of the Action Plan, and make every attempt to expand the
Federal Caucus to include all Federal agencies involved with fish habitat. The Board shall
coordinate with the Federal agencies to develop and implement habitat protection and
rehabilitation strategies at national and regional scales, to ensure that Federal agencies policies
are consistent with the Plan, and to otherwise support implementation of the Plan.

4. Partners Coalition--The Board shall coordinate with the broadest possible range of stakeholders
and other interested parties to increase involvement and support for coordinated fish habitat
conservation at national and regional scales.

G. Committees
The Board may establish and otherwise manage committees as needed to carry out the responsibilities
of the Board. Such committees may include individuals who are not members of the Board.

H. Board and Committee Expenses

Board and Committee members will not be compensated for their time working on Board or Committee
business or traveling to meetings. Travel expenses generally should be borne by the agency or other
entity that employs the Board or Committee member, but reimbursement arrangements may be made
if funds for this purpose are available.

IV. Procedure to Amend Charter

The Board may decide to amend this charter by consensus or a two-thirds vote of all members present
and voting. Any proposed change to this charter must be noted on the draft agenda that is sent out at
the time the meeting is scheduled.





